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From: Transport GCU

Sent: Tuesday 5 November 2024 13:06

To: Catherine Johnson; Transport GCU

Cc: Edel Mulholland; Brandon Taylor; Ellen Costello

Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Décument for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Departiagnt of
Transport

Attachments: Department of Transport Cover Letter - 2024.10.15 - 240323.pdf;
Gannow EIA SD - F - 2024.10.15 - 240323.pdf; 20241105 DoT
submission.docx

Some people who received this message don't often get email from generalco-
ordinationunit@transport.gov.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good afternoon,

Please find attached for your consideration submission on behalf of Department of Transport in
relation to Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy
Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway.

Kind regards
Jacqui

Jacqui Traynor

Central Policy, Coordination and Reform

An Roinn lompair

Department of Transport

Lana Liosain, Baile Atha Cliath, D02 TR60
Leeson Lane, Dublin, D02 TR60

T +353 (0)1 604 1177

gecu@transport.gov.ie www.gov.ie/transport

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2024 3:00 PM

To: Transport GCU <GeneralCo-OrdinationUnit@transport.gov.ie>; Transport Department of
Transport <info@transport.gov.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mbkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable
Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway -
Department of Transport

cAuTIoN: This eMail originated from outside your organisation and the BTS Managed Desktop service. Do not
click on any links or open any attachments unless you recognise the sender or are expecting the email and
know that the content is safe. If you are in any doubt, please contact the OGCIO IT Service Desk.

Dear Sir/Madam,
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Gannow Ltd is investigating the potential for a proposed renewable energy development
at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in County Galway. McCarthy Keville
O'Sullivan Ltd. (MKO) has been appointed as Environmental Consultaiits on this project
and will be preparing an Environmental Impact Assessment Report Staternent (EIAR) for
the proposed renewable energy development. Please see attached a Covérietter and
Scoping Document providing details of the proposed project. As part of the EIA process,
we would welcome any comments that you might have in relation to the proposed project,
including baseline data, survey techniques or potential impacts that should be considered
as part of the assessment process and in the preparation of the EIAR.

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it would bé
much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611
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Ta eolas sa teachtaireacht leictreonach seo a d'fhéadfadh bheith priobhaideach
no faoi run agus b'fhéidir go mbeadh abhar runda né pribhléideach ann. Is le h-
aghaidh an duine/na ndaoine n6 le h-aghaidh an aonain ata ainmnithe thuas agus
le haghaidh an duine/na ndaoine sin amhain ata an t-eolas. Ta cosc ar rochtain
don teachtaireacht leictreonach seo do aon duine eile. Murab ionann tusa agus an
té a bhfuil an teachtaireacht ceaptha dé biodh a fhios agat nach gceadaitear
nochtadh, céipeail, scaipeadh n6 usaid an eolais agus/né an chomhaid seo agus
b'fhéidir d'fhéadfadh bheith midhleathach.

Ta ar Raiteas Priobhaideachta le fail ar www.gov.ie/transport

The information in this email is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is
intended solely for the addressee. Access to this email by anyone else is
unauthorised. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying,
distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it is prohibited
and may be unlawful.

Our Privacy Statement is available on www.gov.ie/transport
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MKO

Tuam Road,
Galway
H91vW84

05" November 2024

Re: Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy

Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway

The Department of Transport has the following comments in relation to the consultation
request relating to the Scoping Report for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in

the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway.

It should be noted that the Department considers the construction involved in providing this
development and especially, the connection cables to the national grid, may have effects on

both the environment and the Regional and Local Road network.

Where the developer proposes the placement of any cables (or additional cables) in one or
more trenches within the extents of the (regional and local) public road network, it is
necessary to consider the following:

. Their presence within the public road will likely significantly restrict the Road
Authority in carrying out its function to construct and maintain the public road and will likely
add to the costs of those works post construction.

° Their installation within the lands associated with the public road may affect the
stability of the road. In particular where the road is a “legacy road” (where there is no
designed road structure and the subgrade may be poor or poorly drained) or bog rampart
the design needs to take account of all the variable ground conditions and not be based on a
sample of the general soil conditions. This should include a constructability assessment to a
950mm minimum cover depth to the HV Cable on legacy roads, roads over peat/bog

ramparts.

Lana Liosain, Baile Atha Cliath, D02 TR60, Eire
Leeson Lane, Dublin 2, D02 TR60, Ireland

T +353 1 6707444 | info@transport.gov.ie
www.gov.ie/transport



° The possible effect on the remaining available road space (noting that there may be
need to accommodate other utilities within the road cross-section in the future or additigpal
drainage for climate adaptation).

. The necessity to have the power in the cables switched off where the Road
Authority considers this necessary in order to carry out its function to construct and
maintain the public road and a complete operation and maintenance manual should be

agreed with the Local Authority.

The Department consider it important that the examination of the proposal should include

consideration of the following:

. Examination of all available technologies including both Overhead Line (OHL) and
Underground Cable (UGC) options or combinations of both) and route options other than
the routing of cables along the public road the ensure the best performing route and
technology option is selected,

° Examination of options for connection to the national grid network at a point closer
to the wind farm in order to reduce the adverse impact on public roads,

° Details of where within the road cross section cables are to be placed so as to
minimise the effect on the Roads Authority in its role of construction and maintenance,

° Examination of details of any chambers proposed within the public road cross
section so as to minimise the effect on the Roads Authority in its role of construction and
maintenance,

. Elimination of permanent jointing bays from beneath the road pavement to protect
the integrity of the road structure for the safety of those driving on the public road by
eliminating hard spots and also preserve the road width for other utilities, temporary joint
bays to be used in any public road installation,

° Prevention of the attachment of cables to all bridge structures and culverts by
diverting them beneath or away from these structures and,

. Rationalisation of the number of cables involved (including existing electric or
possible future cables) and their diversion into one trench, in order to minimise the impacts

on the road network and the environment along the road boundary (hedgerows).



The Department considers the following should be considered when applying conditiens to

any approval:

1. A condition requiring the specific approval of the local authority to the detail of the
final route of cables through the public road space. If during construction, there is a need to
deviate from the detailed design then the approval of the local authority would again be
sought. This would assist in minimising the impact on the public road.

2. A condition requiring the developer to comply with all appropriate standards and,
inter alia the Guidelines for Managing Openings in Public Roads, 2017 in order to ensure
orderly development.

3. A condition requiring that the location of the cables would be recorded as exactly
as possible (maybe using BIM type technology) so as to facilitate the further use of road
space for utilities and the maintenance/construction of the public road by the Roads
authority. This record should include as constructed surveys of all infrastructure altered,
added, removed or relocated and exact detail of the road construction including any drains
or other features encountered. The record should be lodged with the local authority and
with the ESB Networks for retention on their records.

4. A condition to require the elimination of permanent jointing bays from under the
road pavement to protect the integrity of the road structure, thereby improving safety for
those driving on the public road by eliminating hard spots and preserving the road width for
other utilities.

5. A condition requiring the developer to route cables away from bridge structures
and specifically preventing the developer from attaching cables to road bridges. This would
allow for the future maintenance of bridges without interruption of the electricity supply
along the cables.

6. A condition requiring the replacement of culverts that have been excavated during
the cable duct placement operation. The replacement culverts should be designed
appropriately and include an allowance for the effects of climate change.

7. A condition requiring the developer to notify the Roads Authority of the owner of
the cables (Owner) and the controller (Power Controller) of the power transmitted along the
cables. In addition, the condition should require Owner and Power Controller to notify the

Roads Authority of any change in ownership of the cables or change of Power Controller



transmitting power along the cables. In all instances the Owner and Power Controller-should

be required to maintain an agreed contacts list with the Roads Authority.

Central Policy, Coordination and Reform

An Roinn lompair

Department of Transport

Lana Liosain, Baile Atha Cliath, D02 TR60
Leeson Lane, Dublin, D02 TR60

T +353 (0)1 604 1177

gcu@transport.gov.ie www.gov.ie/transport
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From: Defence Property Management Planning

Sent: Thursday 31 October 2024 14:16
To: Catherine Johnson
Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Document Proposed/Renewable

Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent
townlands in County Galway - DoD

Attachments: 2024-10-31 Observation Letter for Gannow Windfarm Co
Galway.pdf

You don't often get email from propertymanagementplanning@defence.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Dear Ms. Johnson,

In reply to your email request below, dated 15 October 2024, please see the attached response
from the Department of Defence.

Please contact me if you have any additional queries.

Best regards,
Paul

Paul Farrell

Property Management Branch

An Roinn Cosanta
Department of Defence
Béthar an Staisitin, An Droichead Nua, Contae Chill Dara, W12 AD93.

Station Road, Newbridge, Co.Kildare, W12 AD93.

T+353 (045) 452086

E-mail:paul.farrell@defence.ie

www.defence.ie

Follow us on Twitter: Department of Defence | Civil Defence | Office of Emergency Planning

From: Defence Property Management Planning <PropertyManagementPlanning@defence.ie>
Sent: Thursday 17 October 2024 14:40

To: cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie; Defence Property Management Planning
<PropertyManagementPlanning@defence.ie>
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Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Document Proposed Renewable Energy Development in
the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - DoD

Dear Ms. Johnson,

The Department of Defence wishes to acknowledge receipt of your email below re: Prénosed
Renewable Energy Development in Gannow and adjacent townlands in Co. Galway

We will consult with the relevant Military Authorities and we will revert in due course.
Kind Regards,

Paul

Paul Farrell

Property Management Branch

An Roinn Cosanta
Department of Defence
Bothar an Staisitin, An Droichead Nua, Contae Chill Dara, W12 AD93.

Station Road, Newbridge, Co.Kildare, W12 AD93.

T+353 (045) 2086

E-mail:paul.farrell@defence.ie

www.defence.ie

Follow us on Twitter: Department of Defence | Civil Defence | Office of Emergency Planning

From: Defence Info <info@defence.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:02

To: Defence Property Management Planning <PropertyManagementPlanning@defence.ie>
Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed
Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County
Galway - DoD

Afternoon all
Please see attached for your info
Kind regards

Kevin
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Kevin McDonald

An Roinn Cosanta

Department of Defence

Béthar an Staisiuin, An Droichead Nua, Contae Chill Dara, W12 AD93.
Station Road, Newbridge, Co.Kildare, W12 AD93.

Follow us on Twitter: Department of Defence | Civil Defence | Office of Emergency Planning

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 14:59

To: Defence Info <info@defence.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable
Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - DoD

cAuUTION: This eMail originated from outside your organisation and the BTS Managed Desktop service. Do not
click on any links or open any attachments unless you recognise the sender or are expecting the email and
know that the content is safe. If you are in any doubt, please contact the OGCIO IT Service Desk.

Dear Mr Watchorn,

Gannow Ltd is investigating the potential for a proposed renewable energy development
at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in County Galway. McCarthy Keville
O'Sullivan Ltd. (MKO) has been appointed as Environmental Consultants on this project
and will be preparing an Environmental Impact Assessment Report Statement (EIAR) for
the proposed renewable energy development. Please see attached a Cover Letter and
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

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it would be
much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

N
Offices in Galway and Dublin M '< o )
"4

mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611
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Fogra faoi Rundacht: Ta an riomhphost seo agus aon iatan a ghabhann
leis runda. Is leis an duine / n6 daoine sin amhain a bhfuil siad

seolta chucu a bhaineann siad agus ni ceart iad a Iéamh na a scaoileadh
chuig aon triu pairti gan cead roimh ré 6n Roinn Cosanta.

Notice re Confidentiality: This e-mail and any attachment transmitted
with it are confidential. They are intended solely for the use of the
intended recipient and should not be read or released to any third party
without the prior consent of the Department of Defence.



From: Environmental Co-ordination (Inbox)

Sent: Friday 3 January 2025 09:33
To: Catherine Johnson
Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Bocument for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Forest-Service
Attachments: Gannow wind farm Co Galway.pdf

You don't often get email from environmental co-ordination@agriculture.gov.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good morning,
Please see comments/observations attached from our Felling Division.
Regards

Environmental Co-ordination Unit

From: Forestry Info <forestryinfo@agriculture.gov.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 26 November 2024 14:40

To: OBrien, Neill <Neil).OBrien@agriculture.gov.ie>

Cc: Walsh, Ciaran <Ciaran.Walsh@agriculture.gov.ie>

Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed
Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County
Galway - Forest Service

Neil
For your area.

Peg

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 26 November 2024 14:11

To: Forestry Info <forestryinfo@agriculture.gov.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mbkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mkoireland.ie>

Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed
Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County
Galway - Forest Service

CAUTION: This Email originated from Outside of this department. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.
Otherwise Please Forward any suspicious Emails to Notify.Cyber@agriculture.gov.ie .

Dear Sir/Madam,

| just wanted to follow up on the below information regarding Gannow Wind Farm in
County Galway. Please see attached the Scoping document that was sent to you on the

15t October 2024.
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If you could return any comments, queries, or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it
would be much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do not hesitate
to contact me.

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

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:01

To: forestryinfo@agriculture.gov.ie

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
Forest Service

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

Disclaimer:
Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine

The information contained in this email and in any attachments is confidential and
is designated solely for the attention and use of the intended recipient(s). This
information may be subject to legal and professional privilege. If you are not an
intended recipient of this email, you must not use, disclose, copy, distribute or
retain this message or any part of it. If you have received this email in error, please
notify the sender immediately and delete all copies of this email from your
computer system(s).

An Roinn Talmhaiochta, Bia agus Mara

Ta an t-eolas sa riomhphost seo, agus in aon cheangaltain leis, faoi run agus ta
sé dirithe ar an bhfaighteoir/na faighteoiri beartaithe amhain agus nior cheart ach
doibh siud é a usaid. D’fhéadfadh an t-eolas seo a bheith faoi réir pribhléid
dhlithiuil agus ghairmiuil. Mura tusa faighteoir beartaithe an riomhphoist seo, nior
cheart duit an teachtaireacht seo, né aon chuid di, a Uusaid, a nochtadh, a
chéipeail, a dhaileadh n6 a choinneail. Ma fuair tu an riomhphost seo go
hearraideach, cuir an seoltéir ar an eolas laithreach agus scrios gach céip den
riomhphost seo 6 choéra(i)s do riomhaire, le do thoil.


http://www.mkoireland.ie/

An Roinn Cosanta
Department of Defence

MKO,
Tuam Road,
Galway
H91 VW84

31 October 2024

Re: Scoping Document Gannow Ltd, Gannow Windfarm Co. Galway

Without Prejudice

Dear Ms. Johnson,

I refer to your letter dated 15 October 2024, in relation to Proposed Renewable Energy
Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway.

I wish to advise at the outset that any determination in relation to a planning consent is
solely a matter for the planning authorities and/or ABP, as appropriate. Therefore, the
following observation is made on a non-prejudicial basis, and is not intended to be used
to rely on for a prospective planning application, nor is this observation to be relied on in
the event of any commercial transaction pertaining to such lands and it is not to be relied
on in the event of any contract exchange pertaining to same.

As a matter of practice, the Department of Defence does not provide observations or
advice in the scoping process, except where the relevant parties have been directed by a
planning authority to seek the Department’s views.

Based on the information supplied and following consultations with the subject matter in
the Irish Air Corps, the Department of Defence wishes to make the following
observations:

e All turbines should be illuminated by Type C, Medium intensity, Fixed Red
obstacle lighting with a minimum output of 2,000 candela to be visible in all
directions of azimuth and to be operational H24/7 days a week. Obstacle lighting
should be incandescent or, if LED or other types are used, of a type visible to
Night Vision equipment. Obstacle lighting used must emit light at the near Infra-
Red (IR) range of the electromagnetic spectrum, specifically at or near 850
nanometres (nm) of wavelength. Light intensity to be of similar value to that
emitted in the visible spectrum of light.

Bothar an Staisitin, An Droichead Nua, Contae Chill Dara, W12 AD93.
Station Road, Newbridge, Co.Kildare, W12 AD93.

T +353 45 492000 | customer@defence.ie

www.defence.ie


http://www.defence.ie/

Any Irish Air Corps (IAC) requirements for are separate to Irish Aviation Authority
(IAA) require

We would appreciate if you could keep us informed on any progress relating to this
proposed development.

Nothing in the above observation shall be taken as a binding response by the Minister for
Defence in the event that a planning application is made. The Minister reserves the right
to comment on an actual planning application as and when it is submitted in accordance
with the provisions of the planning regulatory code.

Please contact me if you have any queries in this regard.

Yours faithfully,

Sent via e-mail

Paul Farrell

Property Management Branch
Department of Defence
Station Road

Newbridge

Co. Kildare

W12 AD93

045 452086
paul.farrell@defence.ie



mailto:paul.farrell@defence.ie

From: Drainage Admin

Sent: Friday 1 November 2024 17:28

To: Catherine Johnson

Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping . Bocument -
Ref 429 - 2024

Attachments: Response Letter Gannow Renewable Energy Development.pdf

You don't often get email from drainage.admin@opw.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good evening,
| hope this email finds you well,

Please find letter attached from West Region Drainage Maintenance in response to above Scoping
Report.

Kind regards,
Sarah

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:03

To: Info Opw <info@opw.ie>

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
Office of Public Works

This email has been scanned by the OPW Secure Email Gateway and contains terms which
may relate to invoices or payments.

Please pay particular attention to email that is unexpected. If in doubt please forward any
suspicious emails to icthelpdesk@opw.ie

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
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WEST REGION
ARTERIAL DRAINAGE &
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Headford
Co. Gaiway

Date: 23 October 2024

Ref: 429 - 2024
Att: Drainage Admin
Cec: Shane Flaherty (A/Engineer Grade 1)

West Region Drainage Maintenance - Report to Drainage Admin

Re:  EIA Scoping for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway

| refer to your recent correspondence in relation to the above project and would like to make the
following observations:

If any new culverts or bridges (or modifications to any existing culverts or bridges) are required to
cross watercourses as part of the development or on proposed or existing access roads to serve or
access the development, you should be aware that these require consent from the Commissioners of
Public Works. This is a requirement of Section 50 of the Arterial Drainage Act of 1945 as amended.

Further information on the process including copies of the appropriate application form and brochure
are available on our website at:

https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/957aa7-consent-requirements-constructionalteration-of-
watercourse-infrastru/

Please note that, in the context of seeking consent under Section 50, the current required design
standard for bridges or culverts is based on the flood with an annual exceedance probability of 1%
(often referred to as the 100 year flood), increased by 20% to cater for the effects of Climate Change.
Bridges or culverts are required to be able to convey this design flood without significantly altering
the hydraulic characteristics of the watercourse — further details on this issue are available in the
brochure and can be clarified depending on the circumstances of any particular proposed bridge or
culvert.

You should be aware that a grant of Planning Permission by a planning authority for a development
which contains bridges or culverts does not confer section 50 consent on the applicant, nor does it
absolve the applicant from the requirement to obtain such consent from the Commissioners.

With regard to any proposed Grid Connection Route which may cross several water courses. If the
cable and ducting are to be buried in the road, as they cross bridges over the water courses, and there
is no interference with the opening in the bridge spanning the watercourse, then there is no issue. On
the other hand, if it is proposed to pass the cable in its ducting through the opening of any bridge or
culvert, this would be considered to be a modification of a bridge and it would require the consent of
the Commissioners under Section 50 as mentioned above. Similarly, if it is proposed to carry the cable



WEST REGION
ARTERIAL DRAINAGE &
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

in its ducting across watercourses on new support structures spanning the watercourses, these should
be treated as if they are bridges, and the consent of the commissioners under Section 50 should be
obtained. If the cable and ducting is to be buried under the natural bed of the watércourses being
crossed, Section 50 would not apply, and we would recommend that the duct be buried asufficient
distance below the natural bed to allow for erosion and mobility of the stream bed.

We would recommend that a flood risk assessment be carried out with regard to the propasad
development and its construction. This should consider all sources, pathways and receptors of flood
risk including nearby drainage district channels. This should be carried out in accordance with the
principles set out in the guideline document “The Planning System and Flood Risk Management” as
published by the Minister for the Environment, Heritage and Local Government and the Office of
Public Works. Please be aware that this is a separate issue from the requirement to obtain Section 50
consent as mentioned above.

In terms of the preparation of an EIAR, the matters referred to above principally relate to the
Hydrology Section, and the Risk of Flooding on a development such as this can impact on Landscape
(e.g. landslides that have been reported in recent years), Infrastructure (roads and bridges) and people
and their homes, among other things. The aim of the Section 50 process, and the Flood Risk
Assessment which is recommended would be to mitigate any increased risk of flooding and the
consequences of same, as arising from the proposed development.

Perhaps Engineering Services might issue a reply to Catherine Johnson, McCarthy Keville O’Sullivan
Ltd. (T/A MKO) at cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie to inform her of our comments.

Please use the reference number indicated above in any further correspondence with the office on
this matter.

Yours sincerely,

Brian O’Connell

Engineer Grade 1l

Western Drainage Maintenance
Headford

Co. Galway



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

You don't often get email from environmental_co-ordination@agriculture.gov.ie. Learn why this is
important

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

To: OBrien, Neill <Neill.OBrien@agriculture.gov.ie>

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
would be much appreciated. If you require any further information, pledase do not hesitate
to contact me.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

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
much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do notihesitate to contact
me.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

ol
Offices in Galway and Dublin M I< o )
v

mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

Email Disclaimer: https://www.gov.ie/en/organisation-information/439daf-email-
disclaimer/
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An Roinn Talmhaiochta,
Bia agus Mara
Department of Agriculture,
Food and the Marine

MKO

Tuam Road
Galway
H91VW84

23R December2024

Re: The proposed Gannow Wind Farm Near Attymon, Co. Galway and approximately 10km NE
of Athenry, Co. Galway

Dear Sir/Madam,
The following are the comments from this Division in relation to the proposed development:

If the proposed development will involve the felling or removal of any trees, the developer must obtain
a Felling License from this Department before trees are felled or removed. A Felling Licence
application form can be obtained from the Department’s website link here: gov.ie - Tree Felling
Licences (www.gov.ie)

A Felling Licence granted by the Minister for Agriculture, Food and the Marine provides authority
under the Forestry Act 2014 to fell or otherwise remove a tree or trees and/or to thin a forest for
silvicultural reasons. The Act prescribes the functions of the Minister and details the requirements,
rights and obligations in relation to felling licences. The principal set of regulations giving further effect
to the Forestry Act 2014 are the Forestry Regulations 2017 (S.I. No. 191 of 2017).

The developer should take note of the contents of Felling and Reforestation Policy document which
provide a consolidated source of information on the legal and regulatory framework relating to tree
felling; gov.ie - Tree Felling Licences (www.gov.ie) As this development is within forest lands, particular
attention should be paid to deforestation, turbulence felling and the requirement to afforest
alternative lands.

In order to ensure regulated forestry operations in Ireland accord with the principles of sustainable
forest management (SFM), as well fulfilling the requirements of other relevant environmental
protection laws, the Department (acting through its Forest Service division) must undertake particular
consultations, and give certain matters full consideration during the assessment of individual Felling
Licence applications. This includes consultation with relevant bodies, the application of various
protocols and procedures (e.g. Forest Service Appropriate Assessment Procedure), and the
requirement for applicants on occasion to provide further information (e.g. a Natura Impact
Statement).

Consequently, when the Forest Service is considering an application to fell trees, the following applies:

1. The interaction of these proposed works with the environment locally and more widely,
in addition to potential direct and indirect impacts on designated sites and water, is
assessed. Consultation with relevant environmental and planning authorities may be
required where specific sensitivities arise (e.g. local authorities, National Parks & Wildlife
Service, Inland Fisheries Ireland, and the National Monuments Service);

Eastat Chaislean Sheonach, Contae Loch Garman, Y35 PN52
Johnstown Castle Estate, Co. Wexford, Y35 PN52

T +353 53 9163400 Lo Call 0761 06 4415 | forestryinfo@agriculture.gov.ie
www.agriculture.gov.ie
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Where a tree Felling Licence application is received, the Departmeit will publish a notice
of the application before making a decision on the matter. The notice §hall state that any
person may make a submission to the Department within 30 days from ihe date of the
notice. The notices are published online at: gov.ie - Felling Licence “Applications

(www.gov.ie)

Third parties that make a submission or observation will be informed of the decisioq’to
grant or refuse the licence, and on request, details of the conditions attached to the
licence, the main reasons and considerations on which the decision to grant or refuse the
licence was based, and where conditions are attached to any licence, the reasons for the
conditions. Both third parties and applicants will be also informed of their right to appeal
any decision within 14 days to the Forestry Appeals Committee. Felling Licence decision
are published on the Departments Forestry Licence Viewer 9FLV) link here:

Forestry Licence Viewer (agriculture.gov.ie)

It is important to note that when applying to a Local Authority, or An Bord Pleanala, for planning
permission where developments are:

a)

b)

and

subject to an EIA procedure (including screening in the case of a sub-threshold development) and
any resulting requirement to produce an EIAR; and/or

subject to an Appropriate Assessment procedure (including screening) and any resulting
requirement to a Natura Impact Statement (NIS); and

the proposed development in its construction or operational phases, or any works ancillary
thereto, would directly or indirectly involve the felling and replanting of trees, deforestation for
the purposes of conversion to another type of land use, or replacement of broadleaf high forest
by conifer species,

that there is a requirement inter alia under the EIA Directive for an overall assessment of the
effects of the project or the alteration thereof on the environment to be undertaken, including
the direct and indirect environmental impact of the project;

pursuant to Article 2(3) of the EIA Directive, the Department of Agriculture, Food and the
Marine strongly recommends that, notwithstanding the fact that a parallel consent in the form
of felling licence may also have to be applied for, any EIAR and/or NIS produced in connection
with the application for planning permission to the Local Planning Authority or An Bord
Pleanala, should include an assessment of the impact of and measures, as appropriate, to
prevent, mitigate or compensate for any significant adverse effects direct or indirect identified
on the environment arising from such felling and replanting of trees, deforestation for the
purposes of conversion to another type of land use, or replacement of broadleaf high forest
by conifer species.

Please note that there must be absolute spatial consistency between the felling licence areas

submitted to DAFM (second authority) and all related planning documents submitted to the
first authority in respect of the felling area(s)

Page 2 of 3
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From: Drainage Admin

Sent: Thursday 24 October 2024 15:17

To: Catherine Johnson

Cc: Edel Mulholland; Brandon Taylor; Ellen Costello

Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Décument -
Ref 429 - 2024

Attachments: Response Letter Gannow Renewable Energy Development.ggf

Some people who received this message don't often get email from drainage.admin@opw.ie. Learn why this is
important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good Afternoon,
Please find response attached from OPW West Regional Engineers. ref 429-2024

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

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM. 6\
Environmental Scientist /P

MKO 6\0

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

N
Offices in Galway and Dublin M '( 0 > /09
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



From: DECC Planning Advisory

Sent: Tuesday 22 October 2024 14:54

To: Catherine Johnson

Subject: FW: EIS 24/371 - EIA Scoping for Proposed RE Deveigpment,
Gannow, Co Galway

Attachments: 24 371 RE Dev Gannow Co Galway.pdf

You don't often get email from planningadvisory@decc.gov.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Dear Ms. Johnson,

Please see attached a submission on behalf of Geological Survey Ireland (a division of
the Department of the Environment, Climate and Communications) with regard to the EIA
Scoping for Proposed RE Development, Gannow, Co Galway.

Please send an acknowledgement of receipt to PlanningNotifications@decc.gov.ie at your
earliest convenience.

Yours sincerely,
Planning Advisory Division

Planning Advisory Division

An Roinn Comhshaoil, Aeraide agus Cumarsaide
Department of the Environment, Climate and Communications

Teach Tom Johnson, Béthar Haddington, Baile Atha Cliath, D04 K7X4
Tom Johnson House, Haddington Road, Dublin, D04 K7X4

T+353 (0)1 678 2000
PlanningAdvisory@decc.gov.ie www.decc.gov.ie

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2024 3:01 PM

To: Patricia Smullen (DECC) <Trish.Smullen@gsi.ie>; DECC GSI Planning <GSIPlanning@GSl.ie>
Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mbkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable
Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - GSI

cAuTION: This eMail originated from outside your organisation and the BTS Managed Desktop service. Do not
click on any links or open any attachments unless you recognise the sender or are expecting the email and
know that the content is safe. If you are in any doubt, please contact the OGCIO IT Service Desk.

Dear Ms Smullen,

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
we would welcome any comments that you might have in relation to thénroposed project,
including baseline data, survey techniques or potential impacts that should:be considered
as part of the assessment process and in the preparation of the EIAR.

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it would be
much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to ¢ontact
me

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611
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Catherine Johnson

MKO

Tuam Road

Galway, H91 VW84 22 Octaber 2024

Re: Proposed Renewable Energy Development at Gannow and Adjacent Townlands, Co. Galway
Your Ref: 240323
Our Ref: 24/371

Dear Catherine,
Geological Survey Ireland is the national earth science agency and is a division of the Department of the Environment,

Climate and Communications. We provide independent geological information and interpretation and gather various data for
that purpose. Please see our website for data availability.

With reference to your email received on the 15 October 2024, concerning the Proposed Renewable Energy Development at
Gannow and Adjacent Townlands, Co. Galway, we recommend using our various data sets when conducting the EIAR, SEA,
planning and scoping processes for developments, plans and policies. For more detailed information on how to access this
data please access ‘Data and Maps’ Data & Maps (gsi.ie) on our ‘Geoscience for planning’ webpage. Use of our data or maps
should be attributed correctly (please refer to each individual dataset’s metadata for correct attribution).

For specific data available for Environmental Assessment and Planning topics please follow this link [Data by Environmental
Assessment and Planning Topic (gsi.ie)], where you will find our data arranged by environmental assessment topic as
illustrated below:

Land and soils  Climate Change

Soil Groundwater Carbon accounting / Carbon balance

e Subsoils (Quaternary e Aquifers GW vulnerability, e Geothermal

Geology) GWPSs (GWPPs) e Carbon capture and storage

e Tellus Geochemistry Surface water Climate change trends

e Geotechnical e Tellus Geochemistry e National coastal change
Geology Estuarine & marine waters assessment

e Bedrock e  Marine and coastal

e  Geophysics Flooding

e Bedrock & Quaternary 3D e GWClimate

e Karst

Archaeology Built Services Landscape Appearance & Character

e Cherish e Natural resources (Minerals & e  Physiographic units
Underwater Archaeology Aggregates) Historical landscapes

e  Shipwrecks e Active quarries e  Historic mines
Natural (Geo) hazards Natural heritage

e Landslide Susceptibility Mapping| e Geoheritage (County Geological

e  Groundwater flooding Sites)

e Coastal vulnerability e Dimension Stone/Stone Built

e Subsidence Ireland

e Radon

Geological Survey Ireland, Block 1, Booterstown Hall, Booterstown, Blackrock, Co Dublin, A94 N2R6
Bloc 1, Halla Bhaile an Bhéthair, Baile an Bhéthair, An Charraig Dhubh, Baile Atha Cliath, A94 N2R6
T 4353 (0)1 6782000  www.gsi.ie Fdiltitear roimh comhfhreagras i nGaeilge
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https://www.gsi.ie/en-ie/programmes-and-projects/geoscience-for-planning/data-&-maps/Pages/Data-and-Maps.aspx
https://www.gsi.ie/en-ie/programmes-and-projects/geoscience-for-planning/data-&-maps/data-by-environmental-assessment-and-planning-topic/Pages/Data-by-Environmental-Impact-Assessment-and-Planning-Topic-.aspx
https://www.gsi.ie/en-ie/programmes-and-projects/geoscience-for-planning/data-&-maps/data-by-environmental-assessment-and-planning-topic/Pages/Data-by-Environmental-Impact-Assessment-and-Planning-Topic-.aspx

Other Comments

Should development go ahead, all other factors considered, Geological Survey Ireland would much apjreciate a copy of
reports detailing any site investigations carried out. The data would be redacted for confidentiality and*added to Geological
Survey Ireland’s national database of site investigation boreholes, implemented to provide a better service ¥o the civil
engineering sector. Data can be sent to the Geological Mapping Unit, at mailto:GeologicalMappingInfo@gsi.ié-

If we can be of any further help, please do not hesitate to contact me Clare Glanville, or my colleague Trish Smullerrat
GSIPlanning@gsi.ie.

Yours sincerely,

Dr. Clare Glanville Trish Smullen

Senior Geologist Geologist

Geoheritage and Planning Programme Geoheritage and Planning Programme
Geological Survey Ireland Geological Survey Ireland

The publicly available data referenced/presented here, should in no way be construed as Geological Survey Ireland support
for or objection to the proposed development or plan. The data are made freely available to all and can be used as
independent scientific data in assessments, plans or policies. It should be noted that in many cases these data are a baseline
or starting point for further site specific assessments.
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Bloc 1, Halla Bhaile an Bhéthair, Baile an Bhéthair, An Charraig Dhubh, Baile Atha Cliath, A94 N2R6
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From: planning applications

Sent: Friday 25 October 2024 12:47

To: Catherine Johnson

Cc: Edel Mulholland; Brandon Taylor; Ellen Costello

Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Do¢ument for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Failte Iréland
Attachments: Failte Ireland EIAR Guidelines 2023.pdf

Some people who received this message don't often get email from planning.applications@failteireland.ie. Learn
why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hello Catherine,

Thank you for your email, letter and scoping document for the proposed renewable energy
development at Gannow and adjacent townlands, Co. Galway.

Please see attached a copy of Failte Ireland’s Guidelines for the Treatment of Tourism in an EIA,
which you may find informative for the preparation of the Environmental Impact Assessment for
the proposed project. The purpose of this report is to provide guidance for those conducting
Environmental Impact Assessment and compiling an Environmental Impact Assessment Reports
(EIAR), or those assessing EIARs, where the project involves tourism or may have an impact upon
tourism. These guidelines are non-statutory and act as supplementary advice to the EPA EIAR
Guidelines outlined in section 2.

Regards,
Yvonne

Yvonne Jackson
Product Development-Environment & Planning Support | Failte Ireland

88-95 Amiens Street, Dublin 1, D01 WR86
M +353 (0)86 0357590

Failte
Ireland

LinkedIn | Twitter | YouTube | Facebook
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From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:01

To: planning applications <planning.applications@failteireland.ie>; Yvonne Jackson
<yvonne.jackson@failteireland.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mbkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoirgiand.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mbkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewizble
Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway -
Failte Ireland

[ATTENTION] This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Ms Jackson,

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

Note: To protect against computer viruses, e-mail programs may prevent sending
or receiving certain types of file attachments. Check your e-mail security settings
to determine how attachments are handled. Privileged, confidential andor
copyright information may be contained in this E-Mail. This E-Mail is for the use of
the intended addressee. If you are not the intended addressee, or the person
responsible for delivering it to the intended addressee, you may not copy, forward,
disclose or otherwise use it or any part of it in any way whatsoever. To do so is
prohibited and may be unlawful. If you receive this E-Mail by mistake, please


http://www.mkoireland.ie/

advise the sender immediately by using the REPLY facility in your E-Mail software
and delete all associated material immediately.
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1. Introduction

Tourism is a growing sector and substantial part of the Irish Economy. It contributes to both urban
and rural economies in every part of the country. The impact and interaction of tourisim with the
environment is complex and the assessment of environmental impacts is of utmost impgitance to
creating a sustainable tourism economy and protecting the natural resources that are so 6iten a
tourism attraction.

The purpose of this report is to provide guidance for those conducting Environmental Impact
Assessment and compiling an Environmental Impact Assessment Reports (EIAR), or those
assessing EIARs, where the project involves tourism or may have an impact upon tourism. These
guidelines are non-statutory and act as supplementary advice to the EPA EIAR Guidelines
outlined in section 2.

This guidance document has been prepared by Failte Ireland to update their EIA guidelines in
line with changes in legislative and guidance requirements.

2. Background to this Document

Tourism is one of the largest and most important sectors of the economy, providing
employment for approximately 260,000 people, an economic contribution of €9.5 billion, and
exchequer revenue of €1.8 billion in 2019, which helps fund other key public services.

In 2019 Ireland welcomed 9.7 million overseas visitors.

Failte Ireland is the National Tourism Development Authority established by the Irish
Government in May 2003. Failte Irelands role is to support the tourism industry and work to
sustain Ireland as a high-quality and competitive tourism destination. They provide a range of
practical business supports to help tourism businesses better manage and market their
products and services.

Failte Ireland also work with other state agencies and representative bodies, at local and
national levels, to implement and champion positive and practical strategies that will benefit
Irish tourism and the Irish economy.

Failte Ireland promotes Ireland as a holiday destination through a domestic marketing
campaign (Discoverlreland.ie) and manage a network of nationwide tourist information centres
that provide help and advice for visitors to Ireland.

Tourism related projects cover a broad range of plans, programmes and developments, from
the Wild Atlantic Way to a single hotel conversion. These guidelines apply to projects involving
or impacting upon tourism. A tourism plan, strategy or programme where it is part of the
statutory plan making process under the Planning and Development Acts (as amended), may
be more appropriately assessed by a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) as
discussed in the next section.

It should be borne in mind that EIA is required where there is anticipated to be a significant
impact on the environment, where tourism projects are of a prescribed type or meet thresholds
identified below.
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Where Natura 2000 Designated Sites are potentially affected by teurism development
Appropriate Assessment must be carried out by the appropriate authority’in accordance with
Article 6(3) of the EU Habitats Directive.

3. Legislation and Statutory Guidance

Environmental Impact Assessment is a procedure that ensures that the environmenta!
implications of decisions are taken into account before planning based decisions are made.
The assessment results in a report, called an Environmental Impact Assessment Report
(EIAR).

Legislation

These guidelines are produced under current EIAR legislative requirements, having regard to
Directive 2011/92/EU (known as 'Environmental Impact Assessment' — EIA Directive), as
amended by Directive EU 2014/52 which came into effect in May of 2017. These requirements
were transposed into Irish Law on 1 September 2018 as most of the provisions of the
European Union (Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2018 (S.l. No. 296 of 2018) came into effect. The principle of both Directives is to
ensure that plans, programmes and projects likely to have significant effects on the
environment are made subject to an environmental assessment, prior to their approval or
authorisation.

Statutory Guidance

In response to the changes to the EIAR requirements under Directive EU 2014/52, the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) developed Guidelines on the information to be
contained in Environmental Impact Assessment Reports in May 2022. The Guidelines are a
statutory document to be regarded by those preparing EIARs and the decision makers
considering the EIARs.

Some of the key changes to the EIA Directive introduced by Directive 2014/52/EU are as
follows:

e Additional information to be provided in the project description to describe the location
of the project, the technologies and substances used, the construction of the project
and required demolition;

e The requirement for consideration of alternatives has changed from a requirement to
provide ‘An outline of the main alternatives studied by the developer and an indication
of the main reasons for this choice, taking into account the environmental effects’ to ‘a
description of the reasonable alternatives studied by the developer, which are relevant
to the project and its specific characteristics, and an indication of the main reasons for
the option chosen, taking into account the effects of the project on the environment’;

¢ A refinement of the environmental factors to be considered in the assessment with an
increased focus on resource efficiency, climate change, biodiversity and disaster
prevention;

e Changes to Prescribed Environmental Factors with ‘Land’ being added, ‘Human
Beings’ replaced by ‘Population & Human Health’ and ‘Flora & Fauna’ replaced by
‘Biodiversity’;
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e The developer is required to have competent experts to prepare the EIAR and the
Board is required to have access to sufficient expertise to assessthe EIAR;

¢ Requirement for the incorporation of mitigation and monitoring measures in consents
and ensuring that developers deliver these measures;

e The requirements for the assessment of cumulative effects with existingzand/or
approved projects, taking into account existing environmental issues to be consiceéred,;
and

e Reasoned decisions made with regard to the EIA outcomes must be provided.

In addition to the EPA statutory guidance, the Department of Housing has produced
Guidelines for Planning Authorities and An Bord Pleanala on carrying out Environmental
Impact Assessment in August 2018.

The process of EIA is set out in the EPA EIAR Guidelines, this document should be read in
conjunction with and used as supplementary guidance to the EPA EIAR Guidelines. The
process for ascertaining whether an EIAR is required is known as ‘screening’ and the process
to determine the breath and scope of an EIAR is known as ‘scoping’. Guidance on this can be
found in Section 3.2 of the EPA Guidelines.

Screening

Through EIA Screening, developments are either considered as requiring an EIAR due to the
project type or because they exceed a threshold level. The screening process begins by
establishing whether the proposal is a ‘project’ as understood by the Directive (as amended).

The prescribed development types and thresholds are set out in Annex | and |l of the EIA Directive
as transposed into Schedule 5 of the Planning and Development Regulations 2010-2018 (as
amended). Development which does not exceed these thresholds but may require an EIAR are
called sub threshold. Sub-Threshold considerations are outlined in Schedule 7 of European Union
(Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2018 (S.I. No. 296
of 2018) as transposed from Annex Il of the Directive. The Guidelines on Environmental Impact
Assessment Reports note that projects at first glance may not appear to come under the Schedule
but on closer examination when the process is further examined, they may do so because of the
sensitivity or significance of the receiving environment etc. Sub threshold developments require
an EIAR if they are likely to have significant environmental impacts and must undergo assessment
for likely significant impacts through an EIAR screening report. The contents of a screening report
for subthreshold development are contained in Annex lll of the EIA Directive.
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Figure 1: EIAR Screening Process
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(Taken from Fig 3.2 of the EPA Guidelines)

Tourism locations should be identified as sensitive receptors in screening assessments for
particular impacts, depending on scale and sensitivity, as they would in a full EIAR. Section 6
below can act as guidance for Screening Reports as well as for full EIAR.

The screening process for considering where an EIAR is necessary, is summarised above in
Figure 1 (excerpted from Figure 3.2 of the EPA Guidelines).

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) is a more strategic level of environmental
assessment that examines plans, policies, objectives and programmes specifically rather than
projects. For some tourism developments it may be more appropriate that they be examined
through SEA, while individual projects or specific proposals are likely to be more assessed
through EIAR. If a project is part of a plan, programme or policy/objective assessed by SEA
there may still be a requirement for an EIAR for that development (subject to EIA Screening
assessment).

4|Page



EIAR Scoping

Scoping an EIAR is an opportunity to look at the breadth of issues and ensure that any areas
of possible significant impact are assessed. Identifying sensitivities and stakehalders should
take account of tourism facilities and consider Failte Ireland in scoping regdasts where
necessary.

4. Assessing Tourism

There is no legal definition of ‘tourism’ in Irish legislation. The UNWTO definition of sustainable
tourism is “Tourism that takes full account of its current and future economic, social and
environmental impacts, addressing the needs of visitors, the industry, the environment and
host communities”. This is widely accepted as a key definition of tourism as we move to a
more sustainable future.

Tourism assessments are frequently carried out by economic consultants and by specific
tourism consultants. It is always advisable, particular for tourism projects, that suitably
gualified and experienced personnel are used to determine the impact of tourism related
projects or to assess the impact of more general proposals on a tourism asset identified in a
particular location. There is a requirement for EIAR under current legislation to contain a
statement of competency within all EIAR documents, including screening and scoping reports.

Projects which involve a tourism element

Tourism projects are wide ranging and diverse. While there are some projects which cater to
tourism and are easily identified as such - Hotels, Museums, etc. there are other projects
where tourism is a key service or element, but which may not be immediately obvious —
walking/cycling/forest trails, greenways, blueways, community facilities and others. EIAR
conducted for developments containing tourist elements should be completed in accordance
with the current guidance from the EPA.

Projects which include a tourism element can have potential for particular environmental
effects which differ from a non-tourism development. These impacts can be intermittent, event
related, inconsistent, dependent on weather, temporal, temporary or seasonal. This is
considered within the prescribed environmental topics for EIAR outlined in Section 7 below.

Projects which may have an impact upon tourism

While tourism projects may be diverse, the projects which can impact tourism are considerably
more wide ranging, from large infrastructural developments to local energy developments.
Disruption to or suppression of a tourist resource or amenity can have very local or more
strategic impacts, directly or indirectly- for example energy projects in a rural area can have
both a negative and positive impact in different regards. There can be temporary, periodic or
even seasonal impacts occurring during construction or operational periods.

According to the Failte Ireland Tourism Facts 2019 Report, the most important factors in
determining the attractiveness of tourism destinations for visitors to Ireland are;

e Beautiful Scenery and Unspoiled Environment
o Hospitality

o Safety

e Nature, Wildlife and Natural Attractions

e History and Culture
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e Pace of Life

These factors used for the promotion of tourism in Ireland are also barometers of sensitivity to
change in tourism sensitive or dominant locations where development may have an impact
upon the tourism asset. The potential for development to impact these sensitivifies, and the
environmental criteria under which they can be considered, are identified in secticiio/ of the
guidelines.

5. Guiding Principles of EIAR

As outlined in the EPA EIAR Guidelines, the fundamental principles to be followed when
preparing an EIAR, including screening and scoping, are:

e Anticipating, avoiding and reducing significant effects
e Assessing and mitigating effects

¢ Maintaining objectivity

e Ensuring clarity and quality

e Providing relevant information to decision makers

e Facilitating better consultation.

Environmental assessment should be undertaken in accordance with the European Union
(Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2018.

6. Consideration of Competency and Qualifications

As per Section 2.5 of the EPA Guidelines, EIAR is required to be completed by ‘competent
experts’.

Contributors to the preparation of environmental impact assessment reports, including
screening and scoping assessments, should be qualified and competent. Sufficient expertise,
in the relevant field of the project concerned, is required for the purpose of its examination by
the competent authorities in order to ensure that the information provided by the developer is
complete and of a high level of quality so that a full and proper assessment can be undertaken.

For tourism related projects, or projects likely to affect tourism assets, competent experts in
the area of tourism should be utilised in the environmental assessment.

The competency of all involved in the production of an EIAR or any related report (e.g.
Screening and scoping) is required to be stated at the beginning of the EIAR report with further
details as necessary in each following chapter.

Where tourism projects involve for example heritage or cultural components, input from
heritage consultants, conservation architects, or historians may be required.

7. EIAR Requirements

The following are the key requirements for an EIAR under the current guidance. This is not a
definitive list and should be read in conjunction with regulations.
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e project description;

e assessment of alternatives considered,;
e baseline assessment;

e assessment of effects;

e cumulative impact;

e interaction of impacts;

e mitigation & monitoring; and

e residual impacts

Project Description

Project descriptions are required to describe the whole project including site, scale, design
and key factors. It is important that the EIAR and design team have a consistent understanding
of the development description in full. The key requirements are outlined in section 3.5 of the
EPA Guidelines however they identify the following;

¢ the location of the project

e the physical characteristics of the whole project

¢ the main characteristics of the operational phase of the project

e an estimate, by type and quantity, of the expected residues and emissions

The location of the project should include identifying key sensitive receptors (including tourism
receptors). In the operational phase of the project any tourism based, or potentially tourism
related activity, should be identified.

Assessment of Alternatives

The assessment of the various reasonable alternatives is an important requirement of the EIA
process.

Where tourism projects are location dependent the assessment of reasonable alternatives
should consider alternative methods, layouts, technologies and mitigations, detail the key
considerations culminating in the selection of the option/design, the reasoning for these and
the environmental effect of these decisions. This is particularly important for tourism projects
which are often location tied. The EPA EIAR Guidelines indicate that it is generally sufficient
to provide a broad description of each main alternatives and the key issues associated with
each, showing how environmental considerations were taken into account in deciding on the
selected option.

Baseline Assessment

Baseline descriptions are evidence based, current descriptions of environmental
characteristics with consideration of likely changes to the baseline environment evidenced in
planning histories, unimplemented permissions, and applications pending determination.
Baseline assessments should identify any tourism sensitivities in the zone of influence of a
development. This zone of influence of a development is highly dependent on its Context,
Character, Significance, and Sensitivity, as outlined in the EPA EIAR Guidelines. These
characteristics apply to both the development and the environment.

For example, in a tourism context;

The location of sensitive tourism resources that are likely to be directly affected should be
highlighted, and other premises which although located elsewhere, may be the subject of in
combination impacts such as alteration of traffic flows or increased urban development.
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The character of an area from a tourism perspective should be descriked and the principal
types of tourism in the area. Where relevant, the specific environmental resources or attributes
in the existing environment which each group uses or values should be siated and where
relevant, indicate the time, duration or seasonality of any of those activities.

The significance of the tourism assets or activities likely to be affected should be highlighted.
Reference to any existing formal or published designation or recognition of such significance
should be included. Where possible the value of the contribution of such tourism assets:and
activities to the local economy should also be provided.

If there are any significant concerns or opposition to the development known to exist among
tourism stakeholders and interest groups, this should be highlighted. Identify, where possible,
the particular aspect of the development which is of concern, together with the part of the
existing tourism resource which may be threatened or impacted.

In addition, the baseline should include any methodologies employed in the study to obtain
information, if particular databases are used to locate sensitive receptors they should be
acknowledged. In relation to tourism information, the suggested information sources at the
end of this document are a non-exhaustive list which may be of assistance in identifying
tourism receptors.

Impact Assessment

The topics for consideration of impact are prescribed in the EIA Directive and transcribed into
Irish law by the European Union (Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2018 (S.l. No. 296 of 2018). Impact assessment should contain the
likely significant effects of a development arising from both construction and operation of a
development. Advice on describing the effects is contained within the EPA EIAR Guidelines
and includes the quality, significance, extent, probability, type and duration of the effect,
with particular descriptors for each. In describing effects upon tourism receptors these
descriptors should take account of the particular aspects and sensitivities of tourism, for
example a temporary annual effect from a development may have different impacts upon
tourism if it falls at peak season rather than off-peak.

Impact assessment should be carried out as per EPA guidelines and the best practice for that
prescribed topic. It may be considered appropriate to consider impact on tourism under the
‘Population and Human Health’ and / or ‘Landscape’ topics as suggested below.

Population and Human Health

The consideration of tourism projects within the Population and Human Health is extensive,
with impacts ranging from rural employment population impacts of seasonal tourism, to the
health impact of air pollution from increased traffic in urban areas.

The impact upon tourism can be considered within this section through the sensitivities of
Hospitality, Safety and Pace of Life. Changes in population can impact the perception of pace
of life or safety in a particular location. Impacts upon these issues in areas which rely heavily
on tourism or have a particular sensitive tourism generator should be considered in this
section. The EPA guidelines makes reference to amenity “.which may be relevant under
‘Population and Human Health’ and ‘Landscape”.

Biodiversity

Particular tourist activities can have a significant impact upon biodiversity. Landscapes which
are ‘unspoiled’ can be attractors of tourism. However, the disturbance to ecology must be
managed to minimise impacts.
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Biodiversity is also a tourism asset and should be protected as such from other development
and should be provided for in proposals where possible.

The assessment should also consider current Government policy on nature censervation as
outlined in the National Biodiversity Action Plan 2017-2021 (NBAP) (and subsequént iterations
(Including draft NBAP recently open for public consultation, to cover 2023 to 2027) which also
includes Ireland’s vision for biodiversity below.

‘That biodiversity and ecosystems in Ireland are conserved and restored, delivering benetits
essential for all sectors of society and that Ireland contributes to efforts to halt the loss of
biodiversity and the degradation of ecosystems in the EU and globally.’

Land, Soils and Geology

A link between tourism and this prescribed environmental factor, beyond the normal
development impacts, is rare, however particular activities or facilities which use geological
features may have an impact upon soils and geology, such as mountain biking trails,
recreational uses of old quarries etc.

The impact upon Geotourism related to geoheritage within the natural environment, e.g., any
impacts on UNESCO Global Geoparks, of which we currently have three on the island of
Ireland; Copper Coast in Co. Waterford, Burren and Cliffs of Moher in Co. Clare, and Cuilcagh
Lakelands in Cavan and Fermanagh should be considered (where applicable) in this section.

Indirect impacts such as material use for extensive landscaping and public realm should also
be considered.

Water

Tourism uses can be water intense, depending on development type. Recreational use of a
surface water feature, water-based leisure centres etc have different impacts to standard
development.

Air Quality and Climate

Tourism impact upon air quality is dependent on the activity proposed and sensitivity of the
location. If the tourism project includes a large increase in transportation services, collection
of baseline air emission data is advised. Transportation emissions affect not only air quality,
but also greenhouse gases. Changing climatic patterns due to climate change should be
factored into this analysis.

Noise and Vibration

A link between tourism and this prescribed environmental factor, beyond the normal
development impacts, is rare, however the impact upon tourism of issues of noise and
vibration can be significant. Construction adjoining hotels for example should consider the
sensitivity of the development and ensure mitigation is in place.

Material Assets; Traffic and Transport

The different transport patterns associated with tourism activities is a key impact of tourism
and should be considered especially for tourism projects. These produce temporal and
seasonal changes on the norm and specialist consideration and interpretation should be given.
Tourism proposals should, where possible, be well served by public transport and should be
accessible by modes other than the car. The impact of traffic on tourism assets can be
substantial and can vary in severity according to season, the weather, etc. The impact of
construction traffic can be a particular concern in tourism sensitive areas in terms of noise
pollution and visual impact. The construction programme of developments should work to

9|Page



avoid peak tourism periods in tourism areas and should consider planned or anticipated
tourism events and festivals.

Cultural Heritage

Cultural heritage can be a key component of tourism projects and the impact of tcurism on the
maintenance of cultural heritage should be given the utmost consideration, whetherpositive
or negative. As a tourism attraction, cultural heritage should be strongly considered %wnon-
tourism developments and the impact upon tourism considered as a potential impact.

Archaeology

Archaeology can be of tourism interest and can be an attractive or key component of tourism
projects. Archaeology can be a tourism attractor and given that national policy emphasis on
the non-renewable nature of the archaeology and archaeological heritage, focus should be a
presumption in favour of its preservation in-situ or where preservation in-situ is not the option
chosen, there must be preservation by record (i.e. archaeological excavation and recording
must take place) in line with statutory requirements.

Material Assets; Waste Management

Tourism is a resource heavy activity and can impact waste streams and waste segregation.
Impacts here should be considered strongly and with knowledge of the variation that arises
from the particular tourist activity. Waste and Waste disposal issues can also impact the
perception of an unspoiled environment, effecting tourism, which should be considered.

Material Assets

Material assets outside of the material assets already referenced that should be considered
are built services (utilities) and infrastructure. Tourism development should include impact
assessment on built services (utilities) and infrastructure while non tourism related
development should consider the effect on tourism, which should be considered.

Landscape

The visual impact of a tourism development, especially in locations which are visually sensitive
or renowned for their scenic or landscape beauty, should be considered carefully. A
development intended to utilise or enjoy a particular vista or environment should minimise
impact upon that environment.

Major Accident and Natural Disaster

There is a requirement for tourist developments to describe expected significant effects on the
environment of the proposed development’s vulnerability to major accidents and/or natural
disasters relevant to it. Where appropriate measures should be identified to prevent or mitigate
the significant adverse effects of such accidents or disasters, including resulting from climate
change, on the environment and detail the preparedness for the proposed response.

Interaction of Impacts

Where two or more environmental impacts combine or interact they should be considered
under the prescribed topics. It is best practice to provide a table of interactions within an EIAR
or EIA Screening Report.

Cumulative Impact

The cumulative impact is that of the project combined with any known likely project which will
interact or compound an environmental impact.
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Transboundary Impact

Transboundary impacts should be included in EIAR. In the case of toufrism, especially
international travel, the transboundary impacts may not be proximate to the EIAR site.

Mitigation & Monitoring

Mitigation should follow the hierarchy of minimisation in descending order of preference-
Avoid, Reduce, Remedy.

Avoid sensitive tourism resources- such as views, access and amenity areas including
habitats as well as historical or cultural sites and structures.

Reduce the exposure of sensitive resources to excessive environmental impact.

Reduce the adverse effects to tourism land uses and patterns of activities, especially through
interactions arising from significant changes in the intensity of use or contrasts of character or
appearance.

Remedy any unavoidable significant residual adverse effects on tourism resources or
activities.

Mitigation measures must be measurable and achievable within the bounds of the project.
With regard to Monitoring, Article 8a of the EIA Directive requires that:

1. ‘The decision to grant development consent shall incorporate at least the following
information ...
(b) any environmental conditions attached to the decision, a description of any features of the
project and/or measures envisaged to avoid, prevent or reduce and, if possible, offset
significant adverse effects on the environment as well as, where appropriate, monitoring
measures. ... 4 Member States shall ensure that the features of the project and/or measures
envisaged to avoid, prevent or reduce and, if possible, offset significant adverse effects on the
environment are implemented by the developer, and shall determine the procedures regarding
the monitoring of significant adverse effects on the environment. The type of parameters to be
monitored and the duration of the monitoring shall be proportionate to the nature, location and
size of the project and the significance of its effects on the environment. Existing monitoring
arrangements resulting from Union legislation other than this Directive and from national
legislation may be used if appropriate, with a view to avoiding duplication of monitoring.’

Residual Impacts

The residual impacts are the final predicted or intended impacts which occur after the
proposed mitigation measures have been implemented.
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8. Sources of information on Tourism

Information available online

Failte Ireland

Failte Ireland offers detailed research analysis and insights into the Irish Tourism Industry.
The National Tourism Development Authority has a portfolio of research across a number 67
areas including facts and figures, Environmental Surveying and Monitoring, briefing papers
and reports and visitor feedback. The Failte Ireland website has a dedicated research library
which can be accessed here

Failte Ireland also manages an environmental surveying and monitoring database as part of
the Wild Atlantic Way Operational Programme which can be accessed here. The purpose of
this is to work with and demonstrate to our stakeholders and partners that we are committed
to the sustainable development of the Wild Atlantic Way, and to be able to pre-empt and avoid
environmental effects in the future should they occur.

Discover Ireland:

Operated by Failte Ireland, the Discover Ireland website includes comprehensive information
on tourist attractions in destinations all around Ireland, including listings for activities,
accommodation, events and experiences for every county, major town and region in Ireland.
The website features elements from the four destination brands — Wild Atlantic Way, Ireland’s
Ancient East, Ireland’s Hidden Heartlands and Visit Dublin and can be accessed here.

Tourism Ireland

Tourism Ireland is responsible for marketing the island of Ireland overseas as a holiday and
business tourism destination. Tourism Ireland publishes a range of research documents
including; visitor facts and figures, seasonal updates and industry insights which are
accessible here

Local Authorities

Local Authorities are an invaluable source of information. They produce tourism strategies and
audits of tourism assets within their jurisdiction. Local authorities will also produce landscape
and seascape studies. Protected views and prospects as well as the record of protected
structures and other designated protected buildings are contained within the Statutory
Development Plans.

Regional Assemblies

Regional Assemblies can also be consulted on high level strategic tourism and potential
Regional Spatial and Economic Strategies (RSESs) should be consulted.

Central Statistics Office

The Central Statistics Office (CSO) is Ireland's national statistical office and their purpose is
to impartially collect, analyse and make available statistics about Ireland’s people, society and
economy. The Tourism and Travel Section of the Central Statistics Office is the major source
for tourism statistics in Ireland and is updated regularly.
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From: Roads

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:41

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
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - GCC Roads
Department

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Thank you for your correspondence. | have forwarded to the relevant Director of Services and
Senior Engineer.

Kind regards

Noreen Rabbitte

Roads & Transportation
Galway County Council
091 509195

This e-mail and any attachment contains information which is private and confidential and
is intended for the addressee only. If you are not an addressee, you are not authorised to read,
copy or use the e-mail or any attachment. If you have received this e-mail in error, please
notify the sender by return e-mail and then destroy it.

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2024 2:58 PM

To: Roads <roads@GalwayCoCo.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mbkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mbkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable
Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - GCC
Roads Department

You don't often get email from cjohnson@mkoireland.ie. Learn why this is important

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

Is & Microsoft , Arna Ostail do Comhairle Contae na Gaillimhe, a rinne an
teachtaireacht riomhphoist seo a scanadh agus a ghlanadh 6 thaobh abhair de.
Ta mile failte roimh chomhfhreagras i nGaeilge né i mBéarla. Ta eolas ata
priobhaideach agus runda sa riomhphost seo agus in aon iatan a ghabhann leis
agus is don seolai amhain €. Mura seolai thu,nil tu udaraithe an riomhphost né
aon iatan a ghabhann leis a Iéamh, a chdéipeail na a usaid. Ma ta an riomhphost
seo faighte agat tri dhearmad, cuir an seoltéir ar an eolas tri riomhphost a
sheoladh ar ais agus scrios ansin é le do thoil. Ma ta an riomhphost seo ag
teastail uait i bhformaid eile téigh i dteagmhail leis an duine a sheol chugat é. This
e-mail message has been scanned for content and cleared by Microsoft Hosted
for Galway County Council. Correspondence is welcome in Irish or in English. This
e-mail and any attachment contains information which is private and confidential
and is intended for the addressee only. If you are not an addressee, you are not
authorised to read, copy or use the e-mail or any attachment. If you have received
this e-mail in error, please notify the sender by return e-mail and then destroy it. If
you need this email in an alternative format please contact the sender.
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From: Niamh Kelly

Sent: Thursday 7 November 2024 14:24

To: Catherine Johnson

Cc: MKO-Admin; Eve Smith

Subject: EIA Scoping Application for the Proposed Renewable Enargy
Development Gannow Co. Galway

Attachments: NEHS Submission EIA Scoping Application for the Proposed

Renewable Energy Development Gannow Co. Galway EHIS 430Z-gdf

Some people who received this message don't often get email from niamh.kelly@hse.ie. Learn why this is
important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

A Chara

Please find attached a submission from the National Environmental Health Service on the
EIA Scoping Application for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development at Gannow,
Co. Galway.

Best regards

Niamh Kelly

Oifigeach Slainte Comhshaoil Sinsearach/Senior Environmental Health Officer

FSS Seirbhis Naisiunta Slainte Comhshaoil, Pairc Ghné na Gaillimhe, An Daingean, Gaillimh.
HSE National Environmental Health Service, Galway Business Park, Dangan, Galway.
091-737350
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"Ta an fhaisnéis sa riomhphost seo (ceangaltain san aireamh) faoi rin. Baineann sé leis an té ar seoladh chuige amhain agus ta sé
ar intinn go bhfaighfidh siadsan amhain é agus gurb iadsan amhain a dhéanfaidh breithniu air. Mas rud é nach tusa an duine ar leis
é, ta cosc iomlan ar aon fhaisnéis ata ann, a Usaid, a chraobhscaoileadh, a scaipeadh, a nochtadh, a fhoilsit, na a choipeail .
Seains gurb iad tuairimi pearsanta an Gdar ata san riomhphost agus nach tuairimi FSS iad.

Ma fuair tu an riomhphost seo tri dhearmad, bheadh muid buioch da gcuirfea in itil don Deasc Seirbhisi ECT ar an nguthan ag
+353 818 300300 no6 ar an riomhphost chuig service.desk@hse.ie agus ansin glan an riomhphost seo ded' chéras."

"Information in this email (including attachments) is confidential. It is intended for receipt and consideration only by the intended
recipient. If you are not an addressee or intended recipient, any use, dissemination, distribution, disclosure, publication or copying of
information contained in this email is strictly prohibited. Opinions expressed in this email may be personal to the author and are not
necessarily the opinions of the HSE.

If this email has been received by you in error we would be grateful if you could immediately notify the ICT Service Desk by
telephone at +353 818 300300 or by email to service.desk@hse.ie and thereafter delete this e-mail from your system"
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Seirbhis Slainte Comhshaoil Environmental Health Service www.hse.ie

. . @hselive
Ospidéal Pobail Dhin na nGall Donegal Community Hospital
: . Drumlonagher, Donegal Town t 087 6297930
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FSS Seirbhis Naigitinta Slainte Comhshaoil
Péirc Ghno na Gaillimke,An Daingean, Gaillimh.
H91 EW40

T: (091) 737350

R: PEHCG galway@hse.ie

HSE National Environmental Healih Service
Galway Business Park, Dangan; Galway
Email: PEHO.galway@hse.ie

HSE EIA Scoping

Environmental Health Service Submission Report

Date: 07/11/2024
Our reference: EHIS 4302

Report to: MKO Consultants,email:info@mkoireland.ie /cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>
Website: www.mkoireland.ie Planning and Environmental Consultants MKO

Type of Consultation: EIA Scoping Application for the Proposed Renewable
Energy Development, Gannow, Co. Galway

Proposed development:

The proposed area measures approximately 882 hectares and the nearest
proposed turbines is located approximately 910m SW of Attymon, Co. Galway and
approximately 10km NE of Athenry, Co. Galway. It is envisaged that the proposed
renewable energy development will comprise up to 8 no. wind turbines, access
roads and entrance(s), spoil/peat management areas, onsite 38kV electricity
substation, underground electrical 38kV cabling for grid connection, temporary
construction compound(s) and a permanent meteorological mast. All wind farm
site cabling, including connection to the onsite substation, will be laid underground.
It is proposed to connect the proposed renewable energy development to the
national grid via underground electricity cabling to the existing Cashla 220kV
substation, located approximately 22km west of the site.

Details of the application were circulated to the following HSE stakeholders
on the 22/10/2024:

HSE South Emergency Management
Estates

Director of National Health Protection
CHO
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General Introduction

The following documents should be taken into consideration when preparing the
Environmental Impact Assessment Report:

* Guidelines for Planning Authorities and An Bord Pleanala on carrying out
Environmental Impact Assessment

https://www.housing.gov.ie/sites/default/files/publications/files/guidelines_for_plan
ning_authoriti es_and_an_bord_pleanala_on_carrying_out_eia_-
_august_2018.pdf

EU publication: Environmental Impact Assessment of Projects Guidance on the
preparation of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report, EU, 2017
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/pdf/EIA _guidance EIA report final.pdf

Adoption of the Directive (2014/52/EU) in April 2014 initiated a review of the
National Guidance for EIA and the EIAR accompanying a planning application.

New guidelines can be seen at:

https://www.epa.ie/publications/monitoring--assessment/assessment/guidelines-
on-theinformation-to-be-contained-in-environmental-impact-assessment.php

The introduction of the new Guidance is supported by a Webinar produced by the
EPA and can be found at:
https://www.youtube.com/embed/e|KVEUztxBY

The applicant should also consider the findings of the High Court judgement
issued in the judicial review of the Derryadd Wind Farm. (2021 IEHC 390 [20202
No. 557 JR] P. Sweetman v An Bord Pleanala)

Generally the Environmental Impact Assessment should examine all likely
significant impacts and provide the following information for each:

a) Description of the receiving environment; b) The nature and scale of the
impact; ¢) An assessment of the significance of the impact; d) Proposed mitigation
measures; e) Residual impacts.

Directive 2014/52/EU has an enhanced requirement to assess likely significant
impacts on Population and Human Health.

It is the experience of the Environmental Health Service (EHS) that impacts on
human health are often inadequately assessed in EIAs in Ireland. It is
recommended that the wider determinants of health and wellbeing are considered
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in a proportionate manner when considering the EIA. Guidance on wider
determinants of health can be found at www.publichealth.ie

In addition to any likely significant negative impacts from the proposed
development, any positive likely significant impacts should also be assessed.

The HSE will consider the final EIAR accompanying the planning application and
will make comments to the Planning Authority on the methodology used for
assessing the likely significant impacts and the evaluation criteria used in
assessing the significance of the impact.

The Environmental Health Service (EHS) recommends that the following matters
are included and assessed in the EIAR.

* Public Consultation « Decommissioning phase of the proposed wind farm ¢ Siting
and location of turbines * Noise & Vibration « Shadow Flicker ¢ Air Quality « Surface
and Groundwater Quality « Geological Impacts * Ancillary facilities « Cumulative
impacts

Public Consultation

It is recommend that early and meaningful public consultation with the local
community is undertaken to ensure all potentially significant impacts of the
proposed windfarm development have been adequately addressed. All parties
affected by the proposed development, including those who may benefit financially
from the project, must be fully informed of what the proposal entails especially with
regard to potential impacts on surrounding areas.

Sensitive receptors and other stakeholders should be identified to ensure all
necessary and appropriate mitigation measures are put in place to reduce the
likelihood of any complaints about the proposed wind farm development in the
future.

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) should clearly demonstrate
the link between public consultations and how those consultations have influenced
the decision-making process in the EIA. To assist with the consultation and
planning process it is recommended that the applicant develops a dedicated
website for the proposed windfarm development.

All correspondence, maps, project updates and documentation including the EIAR
should be uploaded to the website The EIAR should state the period of planning
permission sought, the length of time construction is estimated to take and if it is
anticipated that the windfarm development will be decommissioned and removed
or will continue to operate (following any further planning consent) at the end of
this period of planning permission (should permission be granted)
Decommissioning The EIAR should detail the eventual fate of the wind turbines
and associated material i.e. will the material be recycled or how will it be disposed
of. Information should also be provided regarding the proposed methodology to be
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used for the disposal of the materials forming the foundations of the wind turbines.
The EIAR should indicate the proposed future use of the development site at'the
end of the planning permission period.

Siting, Location and details of Turbines

The EIAR should include a map and a description of the proposed location of each
of the proposed wind turbines.

The Environmental Health Service expects that details (height and model) of the
turbines to be installed will be available at the time planning permission is sought
and will be included in the EIAR. Details of the foundations for the wind turbine
including depth, quantity and material to be used should be included in the EIAR.

Assessment of Consideration of Alternatives

The EIAR should consider an assessment of alternatives. The EHS recommends
that alternative renewable energy options to on- shore wind farms should be
assessed as part of the EIAR. Noise & Vibration The potential impacts for noise
and vibration from the proposed development on all noise sensitive locations must
be clearly identified in the EIAR. The EIAR must also consider the appropriateness
and effectiveness of all proposed mitigation measures to minimise noise and
vibration. A baseline noise monitoring survey should be undertaken to establish
the existing background noise levels. Noise from any existing turbines in the area
should not be included as part of the back ground levels. In addition, an
assessment of the predicted noise impacts during the construction phase and the
operational phase of the proposed windfarm development must be undertaken
which details the change in the noise environment resulting from the proposed
development.

The Draft Revised Wind Energy Development Guidelines were published in
December 2019. Whilst these have yet to be adopted, any proposed wind farm
development should have consideration of the draft Guidelines.
https://www.housing.gov.ie/sites/default/files/publicconsultation/files/draft revised
wind_energy development_guidelines_december 2019.pdf

Shadow Flicker

It is recommended that a shadow flicker assessment is undertaken to identify any
dwellings and sensitive receptors which may be impacted by shadow flicker. The
assessment must include all proposed mitigation measures. Dwellings should
include all occupied properties and any existing or proposed properties for which
planning consent has been granted for construction or refurbishment. It is
recommended that turbine selection will be based on the most advanced available
technology that permits shut down during times when residents are exposed to
shadow flicker. As a result no dwelling should be exposed to shadow flicker. Air
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quality due to the nature of the proposed construction works generation of airborne
dust has the potential to have significant impacts on sensitive receptors.

A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) should be included
in the EIAR which details dust control and mitigation measures.

Measures should include: « Sweeping of hard road surfaces ¢ Provision of a water
bowser on site, regular spraying of haul roads « Wheel washing facilities at site exit
* Restrict speed on site * Provide covers to all delivery trucks to minimise dust
generation ¢ Inspect and clean public roads in the vicinity if necessary « Material
stockpiling provided with adequate protection from the wind « Dust monitoring at
the site boundary * Truck inspection and maintenance plan ¢ Details of a road
maintenance agreement between the wind farm operator and the local roads
authority to clarify responsibility for the upkeep and repair of access roads during
the construction phase of the project.

Surface and Ground Water Quality

The proposed development has the potential to have a significant impact on the
quality of both surface and ground water. All drinking water sources, both surface
and ground water, must be identified. Public and Group Water Scheme sources
and supplies should be identified in addition to any private wells supplying potable
water to houses in the vicinity of the proposed development. Measures to ensure
that all sources and supplies are protected should be described.

The Environmental Health Service recommends that a walk over survey of the site
is undertaken in addition to a desktop analysis of Geological Survey of Ireland
data in order to identify the location of private wells used for drinking water
purposes. Any potential significant impacts to drinking water sources should be
assessed. Details of bedrock, overburden, vulnerability, groundwater flows,
aquifers and catchment areas should be considered when assessing potential
impacts and any proposed mitigation measures.

Any impacts on surface water as a result of the construction of the underground
cables should be identified and addressed in the EIAR.

Geotechnical and Peat Stability Assessment.

A detailed assessment of the current ground stability of the site for the proposed
windfarm development and all proposed mitigation measures should be detailed in
the EIAR. The assessment should include the impact construction work may have
on the future stability of ground conditions, taking into consideration extreme
weather events, site drainage and the potential for soil erosion. Information should
be provided on the make and model of the turbines and on construction details for
the turbine foundations, including the depth and volume of concrete required. An



accurate assessment of the potential impacts of the foundations on water guality
and peat stability cannot be undertaken without this information. Reference is
made to a peat slide which occurred near Ballybofey in Co. Donegal on 13th
November 2020 which may have been linked to construction activity at Meenbog
Wind Farm.

Potential impacts on water supply associated with contamination following a peat
slide include sedimentation and alteration of pH levels. The Environmental Health
Service recommends that a detailed Peat Stability/Geotechnical Assessment
should be undertaken to assess the suitability of the soil for the proposed
development.

The EIAR should include provision for a peat stability monitoring programme to
identify early signs of potential bog slides (‘pre-failure indicators’ see the Scottish
Government’s ‘Peat Landslide Hazard and Risk Assessments: Best Practice
Guide for Proposed Electricity Developments 2017)
https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/advice-
andguidance/2017/04/peat-landslide-hazard-risk-assessments-best-practice-
guide-proposedelectricity/documents/00517176-pdf/00517176-
pdf/govscot%3Adocument/00517176.pdf

Ancillary Facilities

The EIAR should include details of the location of all site office, construction
compound, fuel storage depot, sanitary accommodation and canteen, First Aid
facilities, disposal of wastewater and the provision of a potable water supply to the
site canteen.

Cumulative Impacts

All existing or proposed wind farm developments in the vicinity should be clearly
identified in the EIAR. The impact on sensitive receptors of the proposed
development combined with any other wind farm/renewable energy developments
in the vicinity should be considered. The EIAR should include a detailed
assessment of any likely significant cumulative impacts of the proposed windfarm
development.
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Maria Horkan
Priomhoifigeach Slainte Comhshaoil / Principal Environmental Health Officer

FSS Seirbhis Naisitinta Slainte Comhshaoil Gaillimh| HSE National Environmental
Health Service Galway
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Eﬂ.}_ﬂ;m v

Eve Smith
Oifigeach Slainte Comhshaoil/Environmental Health Officer
Environment/Climate Change, Network Support Unit (NSU)

* All correspondence or any queries with regard to this report including
acknowledgement of this report should be forwarded to:

Maria Horkan, Priomhoifigeach Slainte Comhshaoil / Principal Environmental
Health Officer

FSS Seirbhis Naisiunta Slainte Comhshaoil /HSE National Environmental Health
Service

Pairc Ghno na Gaillimhe, An Daingean, Gaillimh H91 EW40/ Galway Business
Park, Dangan, Galway H91 EW4

PEHO.Galway@hse.ie



From: Christophe O'BRIEN on behalf of Planning

Sent: Monday 21 October 2024 16:49

To: Catherine Johnson

Cc: Planning; Edel Mulholland; Brandon Taylor; Ellen Costello
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Do¢ument for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - I1AA

Some people who received this message don't often get email from planning@iaa.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good evening Catherine,

Thank you for your email and forwarding the scoping letter for the proposed Gannow WF in Co.
Galway.

Based on the information provided at this stage, the Authority has no specific requirements for
incorporation into the EIAR Scoping Report.

Should a formal planning application be submitted, the Irish Aviation Authority will likely offer the
following general observations:

“In the event of planning consent being granted, the applicant should be conditioned to contact
the Irish Aviation Authority to:

(1) agree an aeronautical obstacle warning light scheme for the wind turbine
development,

(2) provide as-constructed coordinates in WGS84 format together with ground and tip
height elevations at each wind turbine location and

(3) notify the Authority of intention to commence crane operations with at least 30 days
prior notification of their erection."

Yours sincerely,

Christophe

Z(/A P z 5 0? .
Aerodromes Inspector
The Times Building, 11-12 D'Olier Street, Dublin 2, D02 T449

CEAARES LTI  ned R TR Ak
oErSh AVEREION ALFIHMOREY

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>
Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:02
To: Planning <planning@iaa.ie>
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Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor
<btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>; Ellen Costello <ecostello@mbkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for thie Proposed
Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent¢ownlands in
County Galway - IAA

* This message originated from outside the Irish Aviation Authority. Please treat hyperlinks, attachniénts
and instructions in this email with caution. *

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

—o———-o———-—-o——o-oo—o-o———oo——o———-—o—o————o———=———=—=—=—=—=—======= P| EASE
consider the environment; PRINT ONLY when necessary! DISCLAIMER: This
message contains information that is confidential, may be privileged and is the
property of The Irish Aviation Authority (IAA). If you are not the intended recipient,
you may not use this email or the information it contains. If you are not the
intended recipient please notify the sender immediately and delete all copies of
this message. Thank you. This email message has been swept for the presence of
computer viruses. Internet Emails are not necessarily secure. The IAA accepts no
responsibility for malicious content such as viruses or for changes made to this
message after it was sent.
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_ Registered Office: The Times Building, 11-12 D'Olier Street, Dublin 2. D02 T449
Registered Number: 211082 Place of Registration: Ireland A limited liability
company



From: David Harrington

Sent: Wednesday 30 October 2024 11:58
To: Catherine Johnson
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewabie Energy Development in the

townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - IFI

You don't often get email from david.harrington@fisheriesireland.ie. Learn why, this is important

I Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachrients.

Good morning Catherine,

IFI reviewed a Section 14 Licence application made in July 2024 by Triturus Environmental Ltd to undertake an electrofishing survey for:
this proposed windfarm at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in County Galway. The application was subsequently authorised by
the Department of the Environment, Climate and Communications.

Triturus proposed to survey n=15 sites located in the Raford_SC_010 and Clarinbridge_SC_010 river sub-catchments. It is noted that
Section 6.2.4.6 Biodiversity of the Scoping Document confirms that the results of the electrofishing/fisheries assessment and fisheries
habitat assessment will be compiled into a baseline report suitable to inform the biodiversity section of the EIAR.

Future correspondence on this proposal can be forwarded directly to IFI's Galway Office.
Kind Regards,
David

David Harrington
Senior Fisheries Environmental Officer

David.Harrington@fisheriesireland.ie «+  +353 (0)91 563118 «  www.fisheriesireland.ie = H91 E2A2

www.fisheriesireland.ie

From: info <info@fisheriesireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:52

To: Galway Info <Galway@fisheriesireland.ie>; David Harrington <David.Harrington@fisheriesireland.ie>

Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow
and adjacent townlands in County Galway - IFI

Good afternoon All

Below email received to Citywest Info
Kind regards

Yvonne

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:02

To: info <info@fisheriesireland.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>; Ellen Costello <ecostello@mkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and
adjacent townlands in County Galway - IFI

Dear Sir/Madam,

Gannow Ltd is investigating the potential for a proposed renewable energy development at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in
County Galway. McCarthy Keville O'Sullivan Ltd. (MKO) has been appointed as Environmental Consultants on this project and will be
preparing an Environmental Impact Assessment Report Statement (EIAR) for the proposed renewable energy development. Please see
attached a Cover Letter and Scoping Document providing details of the proposed project. As part of the EIA process, we would welcome
any comments that you might have in relation to the proposed project, including baseline data, survey techniques or potential impacts that
should be considered as part of the assessment process and in the preparation of the EIAR.

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it would be much appreciated. If you require any further
information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611
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McCarthy Keville O'Sullivan Ltd. T/A MKO. Registered in Ireland No. 462657. VAT No. IE9693052R

This email and any attached files or emails transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual(s) or entity to whom it is addressed. If the reader is not a representative of
the intended recipient(s), any review, dissemination or copying of this message or the information it contains is prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender of the email and
delete the email. MKO does not represent or warrant that any attachment hereto is free from computer viruses or other defects. The opinions expressed in thigssmail and any attachments may be those
of the author and are not necessarily those of MKO ’?




From: IWT Info

Se

To:

Su

nt: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:11
Catherine Johnson
bject: Re: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping\Document for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Irish- Wildlife
trust

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Dear Catherine,

Thank you for contacting us. We do not have the staff capacity to respond to this consultation at
the moment but we will endeavour to respond if possible.

Kind regards,
Fabiola Vieira

On Tue, 15 Oct 2024 at 15:03, Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>
wrote:

Dear Sir/Madam,

Gannow Ltd is investigating the potential for a proposed renewable energy
development at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in County Galway.
McCarthy Keville O'Sullivan Ltd. (MKO) has been appointed as Environmental
Consultants on this project and will be preparing an Environmental Impact
Assessment Report Statement (EIAR) for the proposed renewable energy
development. Please see attached a Cover Letter and Scoping Document
providing details of the proposed project. As part of the EIA process, we would
welcome any comments that you might have in relation to the proposed project,
including baseline data, survey techniques or potential impacts that should be
considered as part of the assessment process and in the preparation of the
EIAR.

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it
would be much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611
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Thank you for your email. Please note that this email inbox is
not monitored outside normal working hours.

HELP SUPPORT OUR WORK - Join the IWT Today - https://iwt.ie/support-us/become-a-member/
Irish Wildlife Trust, 8 Cabra Road, Dublin 7, DO7T1W2

Registered Charity (CRA) Number: 20010966

Facebook: IrishWildlifeTrust

Twitter: @irishwildlife

Phone: 01 445 7259 (landline available Wednesday-Thursday 9:30 to 5pm)
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From: Sabine Browne

Sent: Thursday 17 October 2024 12:22

To: Catherine Johnson; Cormac McCarthy

Cc: Edel Mulholland; Brandon Taylor; Ellen Costello

Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Do¢ument for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Waterways
Ireland

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good afternoon Catherine,
This is not within any Zone of Influence of our waterways so we will not be commenting.
Kind regards,

Sabine Browne

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

Sent: 15 October 2024 15:04

To: Sabine Browne <Sabine.Browne@waterwaysireland.org>; Cormac McCarthy
<cormac.mccarthy@waterwaysireland.org>

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
Waterways Ireland

Dear Ms Browne and Mr McCarthy,

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
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This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
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From: INFO

Sent: Tuesday 29 October 2024 12:44
To: Catherine Johnson
Subject: Tl Ref: TI124-129128 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping

Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Develo®ment in the
townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Gahway

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Dear Ms. Johnson,

Thank you for your correspondence of 15 October 2024 regarding the above. Transport
Infrastructure Ireland’s (TII’s) position in relation to your enquiry is as follows.

TIl will endeavour to consider and respond to planning applications referred to it, given its status
and duties as a statutory consultee under the Planning Acts. The approach to be adopted by Tll in
making such submissions or comments will seek to uphold official policy and guidelines, as
outlined in the Section 28 Ministerial Guidelines ‘Spatial Planning and National Roads Guidelines
for Planning Authorities’ (DoECLG, 2012). Regard should also be had to other relevant guidance
available at www.Tll.ie.

The issuing of this correspondence is provided as best practice guidance only and does not
prejudice TII’s statutory right to make any observations, requests for further information,
objections or appeals, following the examination of any valid planning application referred.

National Strategic Outcome 2 of the National Planning Framework includes the objective to
maintain the strategic capacity and safety of the national road network. In addition, Chapter 7
‘Enhanced Regional Accessibility’ of the National Development Plan, 2021 — 2030, sets out the key
sectoral priority of maintaining Ireland’s existing national road network to a robust and safe
standard for users. This requirement is further reflected in the publication of the National
Investment Framework for Transport in Ireland and also the existing Statutory Section 28 ‘Spatial
Planning and National Roads Guidelines for Planning Authorities’.

With respect to EIAR Scoping issues, the recommendations indicated below provide only general
guidance for the preparation of an EIAR, which may affect the national road network.

The developer should have regard, inter alia, to the following:

. Consultations should be had with the relevant Local Authority/National Roads Design
Office, with regard to the locations of existing and future national road schemes in the
area.

. TIl would be specifically concerned as to potential significant impacts the development

would have on the national road network (and junctions with national roads) in the
proximity of the proposed development, including the potential haul route.

. The developer should assess visual impacts from existing national roads.
. The developer should have regard to any EIAR/EIS and all conditions and/or

modifications imposed by An Bord Pleandla regarding road schemes in the area. The
developer should, in particular, have regard to any potential cumulative impacts.
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The developer, in preparing EIAR, should have regard to TIl Publications (formerly DMRB
and the Manual of Contract Documents for Road Works).

. The EIAR should have regard to Tll's Environmental Assessment and Corgiruction
Guidelines, including the Good Practice Guidance for the Treatment of Noiseduring the
Planning of National Road Schemes (National Road Authority (NRA), 2014).

. The EIAR should consider the ‘European Communities (Environmental Noise)
Regulations, 2018, (S.I. no. 549 of 2018)’, and, in particular, how the development will
affect future action plans by the relevant competent authority. The developer may need
to consider the incorporation of noise barriers to reduce noise impacts (see ‘Good
Practice Guidance for the Treatment of Noise during the Planning of National Road
Schemes (NRA, 2014)’).

o It would be important that, where appropriate, subject to meeting the appropriate
thresholds and criteria and having regard to best practice, a Traffic and Transport
Assessment (TTA) be carried out in accordance with relevant guidelines, noting traffic
volumes attending the site and traffic routes to/from the site, with reference to impacts
on the national road network and junctions of lower category roads with national roads.

In relation to national roads, TlI’s ‘Traffic and Transport Assessment Guidelines’ (2014)
should be referred to in relation to proposed development with potential impacts on the
national road network. The scheme promoter is also advised to have regard to Section 2.2
of TlI’'s TTA Guidelines, which addresses requirements for sub-threshold TTA.

Any improvements required to facilitate development should be identified. It will be the
responsibility of the developer to pay for the costs of any improvements to national roads
to facilitate the private development proposed, as Tl will not be responsible for such
costs.

o The designers are asked to consult Tl Publications to determine whether a Road Safety
Audit is required.

o In the interests of maintaining the safety and standard of the national road network, the
EIAR should identify the methods/techniques proposed for any works traversing/in
proximity to the national road network.

. Tl recommends that the applicant/developer should clearly identify haul routes
proposed and fully assess the network to be traversed. Where abnormal ‘weight’ loads
are a feature of the development, e.g., turbine or substation components, separate
structure approvals/permits and other licences may be required in connection with the
proposed haul route. All national road structures on the haul route through all the
relevant County Council administrative areas should be checked by the
applicant/developer to confirm their capacity to accommodate any abnormal ‘weight’
load proposed.

In addition, the haul route should be assessed to confirm capacity to accommodate
abnormal ‘length’ loads and any temporary works required are identified.

The national road network is managed by a combination of PPP Concessions, Motorway
Maintenance and Renewal Contractors (MMaRC) and local road authorities, in association
with TII.



The applicant/developer should also consult with all PPP Companies, MMaRC Contractors
and road authorities over which the haul route traverses, to ascertain any operational
requirements, including delivery timetabling, etc., to ensure that the strategic function of
the national road network is safeguarded.

Where temporary works within any MMaRC Boundary are required to facilitatethe
transport of turbine components to site, the applicant/developer shall contact
thirdpartyworks@tii.ie in advance, as a works specific Deed of Indemnity will be needed
by Tl before the works can take place.

Additionally, any damage caused to the pavement on the existing national road arising
from any temporary works due to the turning movement of abnormal loads (e.g., tearing
of the surface course, etc.) shall be rectified in accordance with Tll Pavement Standards
and details in this regard shall be agreed with the road authority prior to the
commencement of any development on site.

Any Road Safety Audit requirements should be addressed.

Any grid connection and cable routing proposals should be developed to safeguard
proposed road schemes, as Tll will not be responsible for costs associated with future
relocation of cable routing where proposals are catered for in an area of a proposed
national road scheme. In that regard, consideration should be given to routing options,
use of existing crossings, depth of cable laying, etc.

It is noted that grid connection routing identified in the EIAR Scoping Report indicates a
grid connection routing along the R-339 that crosses the M17 at the Caherateemore South
Overbridge (TII Structure ID DC-M17-008.00). Section 5.5 of Tl Publications DN-STR-03012
(Design for Durability) requires that electricity cables 10kV or greater shall not be located
on or over road structures, including buried structures. Where electricity cables 10kV or
greater are required to cross a road structure they shall pass below the structure, at a
sufficient depth so as to remove the potential for any impacts on the structure during
operation.

Therefore, cable routing proposed will need to address this matter. To assist, Tl
recommends consideration of a HDD crossing under the motorway.

In that regard, consents or licences may be required from the road authority for any
trenching or cable crossing the national road. Tll requests referral of all proposals agreed
and licensed between the road authority and the applicant which affect the national road
network.

Where trenching or cable proposals involve proposals to cross a motorway, Works
Specific Deeds of Indemnities, arrangements for third party access or consent from Tll in
accordance with Section 53 of the Roads Act, 1993, is required. Arrangements for third
party access are also likely to be required. Contact should be made to
thirdpartyworks@tii.ie to progress this element when proposals for the crossings have
been developed.

General requirements for directional drilling under a motorway include:
e The launch and reception pits for the crossing are located outside the Motorway
boundary.
e The cabling/pipeline will be installed at such depth so as not to conflict with the
drainage for the Motorway.
¢ Neither the Works nor the cable crossing will damage or interfere with the
Motorway.
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¢ Any maintenance and/or future planned upgrades of the cabling/pipeline at the
crossing location can be carried out without access to the motorway boundary.

e There are no bolted joints in that part of the crossing within th& motorway fence-
line.

e A pre and post construction survey shall be required along the length,of the
crossing over the extents of the motorway boundary.

e Specific requirements may also arise for these proposed works.

Any cable routing should avoid all impacts to existing Tll infrastructure such as traffic
counters, weather stations, etc. and works required to such infrastructure shall only be
undertaken in consultation with and subject to the agreement of Tll, any costs
attributable shall be borne by the applicant/developer. The developer should also be
aware that separate approvals may be required for works traversing the national road
network.

Notwithstanding, any of the above, the developer should be aware that this list is non-
exhaustive, thus site and development specific issues should be addressed in accordance
with best practise.

Where grid connection proposals impact the existing national road network, please note,
in accordance with the National Planning Framework National Strategic Outcome No. 2
‘Enhanced Regional Accessibility’, there is a requirement to maintain the strategic capacity
and safety of the network. This requirement is further reflected in the National
Development Plan, the National Investment Framework for Transport in Ireland and also
the existing Statutory Section 28 ‘Spatial Planning and National Roads Guidelines for
Planning Authorities’.

There is around 99,000km of roads in Ireland. The national road network, which caters for
strategic inter-urban travel, consists of only approx. 5.4% of this. There is a critical
requirement to ensure the strategic capacity and safety of this national road network is
maintained and significant Government investment already made in the national road
network is safeguarded.

The provision of cabling along the national road network represents a number of
significant implications for Tll and road authorities in the management and maintenance
of the strategic national road network and Tll is of the opinion that grid connection cable
routing should reflect the foregoing provisions of official policy.

Section 12.4.1.1 ‘Accelerate Renewable Electricity Generation’ of the Climate Action Plan
2024 (CAP24) outlines the objective of reaching 80% of electricity demand from
renewable sources by 2030 through a range of measures, including:
"All relevant public bodies will carry out their functions in a manner which
supports the achievement of the renewable electricity targets, including, but
not limited to, the use of road and rail infrastructure to provide a route for grid
infrastructure where this is the optimal solution”, (Climate Action Plan 2024,
p.163)

Consistent with CAP24, for all renewable energy developments requiring grid connection
to the national grid, Tl recommends that a full assessment of all route alternatives for
grid connection takes place, including alternatives to public road, where appropriate. In
TIl’s experience, grid connection accommodated on national roads has the potential, inter
alia, to result in technical road safety issues such as differential settlement due to
backfilling trenches and can impact on ability and cost of general maintenance, upgrades
and safety works to existing national roads.



Having regard to the foregoing, in Tll’s opinion, the grid connection routing, where it is
proposed to utilise the road network, must demonstrate that the route proposed
represents the ‘optimal solution’. In addition, there is a finite road spdge available to
accommodate all utilities in the road network and TIl recommends that'a ¢o-ordinated
approach to grid connection routing in this area is achieved to avoid risk to the effective
delivery of renewable energy projects.

Other consents or licences may be required from the road authority for any trenchirigior
cabling proposals crossing the national road. Tll requests referral of all proposals agreed
and licensed between the road authority and the applicant, which affect the national road
network.

Cable routing should avoid all impacts to existing Tll infrastructure such as traffic counters,
weather stations, etc. and works required to such infrastructure shall only be undertaken
in consultation with and subject to the agreement of TIl. Any costs attributable shall be
borne by the applicant/developer. The developer should also be aware that separate
approvals may be required for works traversing the national road network. All crossings in
the vicinity of the national road should be by HDD and avoid all national road structures,
including bridges, culverts, etc.

Notwithstanding any of the above, the developer should be aware that this list is non-exhaustive,
thus site and development specific issues should be addressed in accordance with best practice.

| hope that this information is of assistance to you.

Yours sincerely,

Suzanne Cahill
Regulatory & Administration Executive

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 15 October 2024 15:04

To: INFO <Information @tii.ie>

Cc: Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>;
Ellen Costello <ecostello@mkoireland.ie>

Subject: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable
Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Tl

You don't often get email from cjohnson@mkoireland.ie. Learn why this is important

Dear Mr Mills,

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

In accordance with TllI's Right to Disconnect policy, if you are receiving this email
outside of normal working hours, | do not expect a response or action outside of
your own working hours unless it is clearly noted as requiring urgent attention.

De réir pholasai BIE An Ceart gan a bheith Ceangailte, ma ta an riomhphost seo &
fhail agat lasmuigh de na gnathuaireanta oibre, nilim ag suil le freagra na le
gniomh uait lasmuigh de do ghnathuaireanta oibre féin mura bhfuil sé raite go
soiléir go bhfuil ga gniomhu go prainneach.

TIl processes personal data provided to it in accordance with its Data Protection
Notice available at https://www.tii.ie/about/about-tii/Data-Protection/

Préisealann BIE sonrai pearsanta a sholathraitear dé i gcomhréir lena Fhégra ar
Chosaint Sonrai ata ar fail ag https://www.tii.ie/about/about-tii/Data-Protection/?
set-lang=ga

TII E-mail system: This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed.
If you have received this email in error then please notify postmaster@tii.ie and
delete the original including attachments.

Coras r-phoist BIE: Ta an riomhphost seo agus aon chomhaid a tharchuirtear leis
faoi run agus beartaithe lena n-usaid ag an duine aonair n6é ag an eintiteas a bhfuil
siad dirithe chuige/chuici amhain. Mas rud € go bhfuair ta an riomhphost seo tri
bhotun, cuir sin in idil do postmaster@tii.ie, le do thoil, agus scrios an riomhphost
bunaidh agus aon cheangaltain.
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lasmuigh de na gnathuaireanta oibre, nilim ag suil le freagra na le gniomh uait lasmuigh dedo
ghnathuaireanta oibre féin mura bhfuil sé raite go soiléir go bhfuil gd gniomhu go prainneach

TIl processes personal data provided to it in accordance with its Data Protection Notice available
at https://www.tii.ie/about/about-tii/Data-Protection/

Préisealann BIE sonrai pearsanta a sholdthraitear dé i gcomhréir lena Fhégra ar Chosaint Sonrai
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amhain. Mas rud é go bhfuair td an riomhphost seo tri bhotun, cuir sin in idil do
postmaster@tii.ie, le do thoil, agus scrios an riomhphost bunaidh agus aon cheangaltain.

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
siad dirithe chuige/chuici amhain. Mas rud € go bhfuair tu an riomhphost seo tri
bhotun, cuir sin in idil do postmaster@tii.ie, le do thoil, agus scrios an riomhphost
bunaidh agus aon cheangaltain.
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From: Brandon Taylor

Sent: Thursday 8 May 2025 17:36

To: Matthew Craig

Cc: 'windfarms'; Johnny Evans; Catherine Johnson
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Hi Matthew,

Thank you for the quick reply.

Please see table below detailing proposed turbine coordinates, which would have a
maximum tip height of 185m.

Turbine ITM X ITMY

1 560006 729599
2 560288 729308
3 560737 729992
4 561808 729771
5 562167 729573
6 562645 729614
7 563080 729518
8 562403 729094

Kind regards,
Brandon.

Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

From: Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>

Sent: Thursday 8 May 2025 17:30

To: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>

Cc: 'windfarms' <windfarms@rte.ie>; Johnny Evans <johnny.evans@2rn.ie>; Catherine Johnson
<cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,
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| have attached a copy of the protocol, have the details of the turbines and their locations
been determined?

Regards

Matthew Craig

Project Engineer

Projects and Coverage Planning

2RN

Block B, Cookstown Court, Old Belgard Road, Tallaght, Dublin 24, Ireland

D24 WK28
Mobile: + 353 (0) 87 7509955

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Thursday 8 May 2025 15:33

To: Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>

Cc: 'windfarms' <windfarms@rte.ie>; Johnny Evans <johnny.evans@2rn.ie>; Catherine
Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

[CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click
links or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content
is safe]

Hi Matthew,

| hope you are doing well.

I’'m following up in regards to the potential wind farm in Gannow as per the thread below.
Could | please request a copy of the 2rn protocol agreement to be signed by the
developer?

Many thanks.

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

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 14:38

To: Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>

Cc: windfarms <windfarms@rte.ie>; Johnny Evans <johnny.evans@2rn.ie>
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Hi Matthew,
Thank you for the information.

Kind regards,
Brandon.

Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Graduate Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

From: Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 12:54 PM

To: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>

Cc: windfarms <windfarms@rte.ie>; Johnny Evans <johnny.evans@2rn.ie>
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from matthew.craig@2rn.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links
or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,

2rn have no fixed linking in the area.

There is however a risk of interference to broadcast services posed by the proposed site and we
would request that a protocol be signed between the developer and 2rn should it go ahead.

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
Phone: + 353 (0) 1 2082261
Mobile: + 353 (0) 87 7509955

From: windfarms <windfarms@rte.ie>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 10:53 AM

To: Johnny Evans <Johnny.Evans@rte.ie>; Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>
Subject: FW: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 10:50:58 AM (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London
To: windfarms <windfarms@rte.ie>

Subject: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from btaylor@mkoireland.ie. Learn why this is important

Good morning,

We are undertaking constraints mapping for the viability of a wind farm development at Gannow,
Co. Galway. There are no turbine layouts at this early stage yet.

The centre coordinates for the Gannow site are 561285 (X, ITM), 729520 (Y, ITM). Please also see
the attached 5km buffer shapefile and KML for your convenience.

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all RTE/Saorview links within 5km of the
site, if any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine blade
tip and the link.

If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your time and
consideration to this matter.

Kind regards,
Brandon.

Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Graduate Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611
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RTE Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is
intended solely for the addressee. Access to this e-mail by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are
not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution, or any action taken or omitted to
be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful. Please note that emails to, from and
within RTE may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014 and may be liableito
disclosure. T4 an t-eolas sa riomhphost seo faoi rin agus d'fhéadfadh sé a bheith faoi phribhléid
dhlithidil. Is ar an seolai amhain ata sé dirithe. Nil cead ag aon duine eile rochtain a fhail aran
riomhphost seo. Mura tu an faighteoir beartaithe, ta cosc ar aon nochtadh, céipéail, ddileadivino
aon ghniomh a dhéanamh né a fhagail ar lar i dtaca leis an riomhphost agus d'fhéadfadh sin a
bheith midhleathach. Tabhair ar aird le do thoil, d'fhéadfadh riomhphost chuig, 6 agus laistigh de
RTE a bheith faoi réir an Achta um Shaorail Faisnéise 2014, agus d'fhéadfadh go ndéanfai é a
nochtadh.

2rn Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is
intended solely for the addressee. Access to this e-mail by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are
not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution, or any action taken or omitted to
be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful. Please note that emails to, from and
within 2rn may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014 and may be liable to disclosure
2rn Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and may be legally
privileged. It is intended solely for the addressee. Access to this e-mail by anyone
else is unauthorised. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is
prohibited and may be unlawful. Please note that emails to, from and within 2rn
may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014 and may be liable to
disclosure



From: Matthew Craig

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 12:54

To: Brandon Taylor

Cc: windfarms; Johnny Evans

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
within RTE may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014 and may be liable to
disclosure. Ta an t-eolas sa riomhphost seo faoi run agus d'fhéadfadh sé a bheith faoi phribhléid
dhlithidil. Is ar an seolai amhain ata sé dirithe. Nil cead ag aon duine eile rochtain a fhail ar an
riomhphost seo. Mura tu an faighteoir beartaithe, ta cosc ar aon nochtadh, céipéail, ddileadh, né
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
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From: Roger Woods

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:08
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from rwoods@cnam.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon

Coimisiin na Mean does not perform an in-depth analysis of the effect of wind turbines on FM
networks. However, we are not aware of any issues from existing windfarms into existing FM
networks. Also, the proposed windfarms are not located close to any existing or planned FM
transmission sites.

Regards

Roger

Senior Executive Engineer

My email address has now changed to rwoods@cnam.ie, please update your address book
accordingly.

Td mo sheoladh riomhphoist athraithe anois go rwoods@cnam.ie, dd réir sin déan do leabhar
seoltai a uasddtu, le do thoil.

Coimisitin na Mean | 2-5 Plas Warrington, Baile Atha Cliath D02 XP29, Eire
Coimisiun na Mean | 2-5 Warrington Place, Dublin D02 XP29, Ireland
T: + 353 (0)1 644 1200 | rwoods@cnam.ie

@ X

Ta an riomhphost seo agus aon iatan a ghabhann leis rinda agus is leis an duine sin amhain a bhfuil siad seolta
chuige/chuici a bhaineann siad. Muna duitse an riomhphost seo, ni ceart é a léamh na a scaoileadh chuig aon triu pairti.
larrtar ort teachtaireacht a sheoladh chuig an seoltéir n6é chuig info@cnam.ie, agus an riomhphost seo a scrios.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended only for the use of the addressee. if you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender or info@cnam.ie immediately and delete this email. If you are not the
intended recipient, any distribution or copying of this email is strictly prohibited.

Please consider the environment before printing this email

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 10:53 AM

To: Roger Woods <rwoods@cnam.ie>

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

The centre coordinates for the Gannow site are 561285 (X, ITM), 729520 (Y, ITM}..flease also see
the attached 5km buffer shapefile and KML for your convenience.

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Broadcast Authority of Irelandlinks
within 5km of the site, if any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any
potential turbine blade tip and the link.

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

From: Qisin O'Neill

Sent: Friday 25 August 2023 16:16

To: Brandon Taylor

Cc: Margaret O'Sullivan; David Pelissier

Subject: RE: [Restricted] Potential Wind Farm Site at Gannow
Attachments: Contacts.xlsx

You don't often get email from oisin.oneill@comreg.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,

Thank you for your email, the attached list of organisations and contacts may be relevant to your
query.

Please note that electronic services network/service (“ECN/S”) providers may also use licence-
exempt spectrum for which ComReg does not hold any information. All ECN/S providers are
required to submit a notification of General Authorisation to ComReg, and the full list of all
providers (including area of operation) can be found at
https://serviceregister.comreg.ie/Services/Search.

ComReg’s Siteviewer tool (https://www.comreg.ie/industry/radio-spectrum/site-
viewer/siteviewer/) may also be helpful in identifying mobile operators within the relevant area.

Kind Regards,
Oisin O’Neill

Innealtdir Speictrim Raidio (Ceadunu)
Radio Spectrum Engineer (Lic)

An Coimisiin um Rialdil Cumarsaide
Commission for Communications Regulation

1 Larcheantar na nDugai, Srdid na nGildeanna, BAC 1, Eire, DO1 E4XO.
One Dockland Central, Guild Street, Dublin 1, Ireland, D01 E4XO0.

Teil | Tel +353 1 804 9785

Rphost | Email gisin.oneill@comreg.ie

Suiomh | Website www.comreg.ie

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>
Sent: Friday 25 August 2023 14:43

To: Licensing <licensing@comreg.ie>

Subject: Potential Wind Farm Site at Gannow

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and believe the content is safe.

Good afternoon,
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We are undertaking constraints mapping for the viability of a wind farm development at Gannow,
Co. Galway. There are no turbine layouts at this early stage yet.

Centre coordinates for the Gannow site is:

ITM: 561285, 729520

Irish Grid: 161331, 229495

Lat/Long: 53.3145349970504, -8.580992449606217
Approximate Radius: 2.5km

Could you please provide a list of telecommunications operators currently operating in these
areas?

Kind regards,
Brandon.

Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Graduate Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

GDPR information: we have updated our Privacy Notice, which explains what
personal information we collect and use about individuals, what we do with it and
why. Here is a link to our updated Privacy Notice: https://www.comreg.ie/privacy/

This email and any attachments are confidential and may be privileged or
otherwise protected from disclosure. It is intended only for the addressee(s) stated
above. Access to this email by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are not the
intended recipient, please do not print, read, copy, disclose to any other person or
otherwise use the information in this email. If you have received this email in error,
please contact the sender immediately and destroy the material in its entirety,
whether electronic or hard copy.

Faisnéis GDPR: ta nuashonru déanta againn ar ar bhFogra Priobhaideachta, a
mhinionn an fhaisnéis phearsanta a bhailimid agus a usaideannimid faoi dhaoine
aonair, an méid a dhéanaimid leis agus cén fath. Seo nasc chuig ar bhFégra
Priobhaideachta nuashonraithe: https://www.comreg.ie/privacy/

Ta an riomhphost seo, chomh maith le haon iatain a bhaineann leis faoi run agus
d’fhéadfadh leis a bheith faoi phribhléid né cosanta 6 aon nochtadh. Is don
seolai(aithe) ainmnithe thuas amhain é. Nil sé ceadaithe go mbeidh rochtain ag
éinne eile ar an riomhphost seo. Mas rud é nach tusa an faighteoir ainmnithe, na
clé amach, léigh, céipeail, nocht d’éinne n6 bain Usaid as an eolas sa riomhphost


http://www.mkoireland.ie/

seo in aon tsli eile, le do thoil. Mas rud é go bhfuair tu an riomhphost seo tri
earraid, dean teagmhail leis an seoltoir laithreach agus scrios an t-abhar ina
iomlan, biodh sé i gcoip leictreonach né chrua.



From: John Bagnall

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 12:19
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: Re: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from john.bagnall@eir.ie. Learn why this is important

I Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,

We have four transmission links within the proposed area that would be at risk, the end points of the transmission link are
below, if you could keep a buffer of 100meters radius away from this transmission path when placing your turbines and send
them on for further analysis.

# Band A-end Height B-end Height
Link1 11Ghz |GY_3221 53°20'12.79"N [8°36'57.39"W 21] <---> |GY_3005 [53°12'8.26"N 8°33'15.40"W 30
Link2 15Ghz |GY_4932 53°20'34.63"N [8°28'15.86"W 17| <---> |GY_3005 |53°12'8.26"N [8°33'15.40"W 27
Link3 11Ghz |CPG 53°16'38.54"N [8°24'39.81"W 20 <---> |G3A 53°22'12.39"N [8°32'50.31"W 18
Link4 13Ghz |CPG 53°16'38.54"N [8°24'39.81"W 22| <> [KTA 53°16'44.21"N [8°37'59.16"W 6

Regards,
John Bagnall

Transmission
Design &
Engineering

m: +353 85
1053746
E:

john bagnall@eirie
Address:

EirCode - D24
HX03

On Mon, 28 Aug 2023 at 11:02, Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie> wrote:

Good morning,
We are undertaking constraints mapping for the viability of a wind farm development at Gannow, Co. Galway. There are no
turbine layouts at this early stage yet.
The centre coordinates for the Gannow site are 561285 (X, ITM), 729520 (Y, ITM). Please also see the attached 5km buffer
shapefile and KML for your convenience.
Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Eircom links within 5km of the site, if any? Please also confirm
your required setback distance from any potential turbine blade tip and the link.
If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your time and consideration to this matter.
Kind regards,
Brandon.
Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Graduate Environmental Scientist
MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

The information contained in this e-mail and any files transmitted with it is confidential and may be subject to legal professional privilege. It is intended solely for the use of the addressee(s). If you are not
the intended recipient of this e-mail, please note that any review, dissemination, disclosure, alteration, printing, copying or transmission of this e-mail and/or any file transmitted with it, is prohibited and
may be unlawful. If you have received this e-mail by mistake, please promptly inform the sender by reply e-mail and delete the material. Whilst this e-mail message has been swept for the presence of
computer viruses, eir does not, except as required by law, represent, warrant and/or guarantee that the integrity of this communication has been maintained nor that the communication is free of errors,
viruses, interception or interference.

eircom Limited, Registered as a Branch in Ireland Number 907674. Incorporated in Jersey Number 116389. Branch Address: 2022 Bianconi Avenue, Citywest Business Park, Dublin 24, D24 HX03,
Ireland.
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From: Peter O Brien

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 14:22
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from peter.obrien@enet.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,
This potential site won’t affect our current network,

Regards,
Peter

Peter O Brien |

A:Enet House, National Technology Park, Castletroy, Co Limerick,V946P52
M: +353867744313 | W: www.enet.ie

net

Access Metworks

Registered in Ireland, Registration No. 332982
Registered Offices: Enet House, National Technology Park, Castletroy, Co Limerick, V94 6P52
enet is a registered business name of e-nasc éireann teoranta

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:06 AM

To: Peter O'Brien <peter.obrien@enet.ie>
Subject: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

CAUTION: This E-mail has originated from OUTSIDE the Speed Fibre Group | DO NOT CLICK links or
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe..

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

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Enet links within 5kixof the site, if
any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine &iade tip and
the link.

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
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From: Ross D'Arcy,

Sent: Monday 11 September 2023 15:48
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: Re: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from ross@hiberniantowers.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

At this stage we don’t envisage that we would have an objection to this project however if it
moves to planning stage, we would have to do a thorough analysis and decide then whether we
would object or not.

Kind Regards
Ross

Ross D'Arcy
Hibernian Towers

4 Argyle Square,
Morehampton Road,
Donnybrook,

Dublin 4.

D04 HW97

Head Office: 0818 300 221

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>

Date: Monday 11 September 2023 at 11:19

To: "'info@hiberniantowers.ie' <info@hiberniantowers.ie>
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Good morning,

| am following up with the request for the start and end point (ITM) of all Hibernian links within
5km of the Gannow wind farm site, if any. Please also confirm your required setback distance from
any potential turbine blade tip and the link.

If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you again.

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

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:11 AM
To: info@hiberniantowers.ie

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

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Hibernian links within 5km of the
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

Sent: Friday 14 February 2025 13:02

To: Paul Brunel

Cc: Ronnie O'Neill; Catherine Johnson
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow
Hi Paul,

Thank you for providing updated detail on the below. We have amended this data on our
side now and have taken into consideration.

Kind regards,
Brandon.

Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

From: Paul Brunel <Paul.Brunel@imaginegroup.ie>
Sent: Friday 14 February 2025 10:18

To: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>

Cc: Ronnie O'Neill <Ronnie.ONeill@imaginegroup.ie>
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from paul.brunel@imaginegroup.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,

Please be advised that Imagine no longer have a MW link from Cellnex Athenry East to ESB
Loughrea.

Our link to Vantage Greeruaun is still in place.

Kind Regards,

Paul Brunel
Transmission Planner,
Network Deployment.
www.imagine.ie

Broauban
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086 388 1962

Sandyford Business Centre |
Blackthorn Road |Sandyford |
D18AWS89

Disclaimer: www.imagine.ie/email-disclaimer/
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From: Thomas Quigley

Sent: Tuesday 29 August 2023 08:35
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi,

IE have Analogue Train Radio (TX: 456.175-456.450 MHz, RX: 461.675-461.95 MHz) and GSM-R
Train Radio (TX: 876-880 MHz, RX: 921-925 MHz ) in service along the operational railway line that
transverses the proposed area.

Additionally, in the future may have FRMCS (1900-1910 MHZz) in service along the operational
railway line that transverses the proposed area.

Regards,

Thomas Quigley,
National Telecoms Manager,
SET Department

Al

ALWAYS \\v/
SAFE

b% please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:33

To: Thomas Quigley <Thomas.Quigley@irishrail.ie>

Subject: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or

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
the attached 5km buffer KML for your convenience.
Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Irish Rail links within 5km of the site,
if any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine blade tip
and the link.
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
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McCarthy Keville O’Sullivan Ltd. T/A MKO. Registered in Ireland No. 462657. VAT No. IE9693052R

This email and any attached files or emails transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for th'%e of the individual(s) or
entity to whom it is addressed. If the reader is not a representative of the intended recipient(s), any reviewy gRsemination or copying
of this message or the information it contains is prohibited. If you have received this email in error please no e sender of the
email and delete the email. MKO does not represent or warrant that any attachment hereto is free from compu iluses or other
defects. The opinions expressed in this e-mail and any attachments may be those of the author and are not nece%v those of
MKO .
%
%



From: Fiona Kelly

Sent: Thursday 21 November 2024 16:28

To: Catherine Johnson

Cc: Brandon Taylor; Ellen Costello

Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Do¢ument for

the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of
Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - larnréd
Eireann

Attachments: CCE-TMS-310 v 1.2 Guidance on Third Party Works Version 1.2
Issued Feb 2018.pdf; CCE-TMS-313 V 1.0 Requirements for Third
Party Utility Services.pdf; CCE-TMS-344 v1.1 Requirements for
Undertrack Crossings and Pressure Pipelines.pdf; I-DEP-121 v 1.0
Third Party Works Additional Details of Railway Safety
Requirements.pdf

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Catherine,

Thank you for forwarding the scoping report so promptly. We will review same and revert
back with any queries.

As advised, a subsequent Teams meeting to discuss proposals should be coordinated in
advance of the design to ensure that the proposals in the vicinity or over/under the railway
are acceptable and compliant with IE and CIE requirements.

In the meantime, please see attached some relevant IE Standards and Guidance
documents to further assist you in advancing your proposals in the vicinity of the railway.

If you have any additional queries, please feel free to contact me.

Kind Regards,

Fiona Kelly
MEngSc CEng MIEI

larnréd Eireann/Irish Rail, Old Railway Station,
Grace Road, Athlone, Co. Westmeath.

Office: +353 906487770 Mobile: +353 879225884
E-mail: fiona.kelly@irishrail.ie

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Thursday 21 November 2024 15:30

To: Fiona Kelly <Fiona.Kelly@irishrail.ie>

Cc: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Ellen Costello <ecostello@mbkoireland.ie>
Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed
Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County
Galway - larnréd Eireann

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or

open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.
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Hi Fiona,

As per our call this afternoon please see attached the scoping document.and cover letter
that was send to Irish Rail on 15/10/2024 for Gannow Wind Farm in County Galway.

Apologies but | don’t have Nick’s email, if you could forward it on to him as weil’it would be
greatly appreciated.

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it woli@ be
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

From: Thomas Quigley <Thomas.Quigley@irishrail.ie>

Sent: Thursday 17 October 2024 07:54

To: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

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

You don't often get email from thomas.quigley@irishrail.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi,
Please forward this and all future queries to property@cie.ie.

Additionally, please include a .kmz file for upload to Google Earth to support review of
proposed installation
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
larnréd Eireann

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or

open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.
Dear Mr. Quigley,

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

This email and any attached files or emails transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for th of the individual(s) o
entity to whom it is addressed. If the reader is not a representative of the intended recipient(s), any review, mlnatlon or copylng
of this message or the information it contains is prohibited. If you have received this email in error please not sender of the
email and delete the email. MKO does not represent or warrant that any attachment hereto is free from comput: ses or other
defects. The opinions expressed in this e-mail and any attachments may be those of the author and are not nece those of
MKO / <3
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CCE-TMS-310 - Guidance on Third Party Works

Reference No. CCE-TMS<310
Version 1.2

Operative Date 26/02/2018
Status LIVE

Prepared by Robert Kelly
Checked by Cathal Mangan
Approved by Eamonn Ballance

CCE DEPARTMENT

TECHNICAL GUIDANCE DOCUMENT

CCE-TMS-310
Guidance on Third Party Works

Purpose

This standard provides information and guidance for third parties intending to
carry out works over, under, adjacent to, or otherwise affecting the railway.

The principles in this Technical Document are approved by the Head of
Department and therefore constitute standard practices, which apply throughout
the CCE Department.

Signed: Chief Civil Engineer

These guidance notes, along with all CCE Department Technical Documents, are
available on the CCE Website. Electronic copies of the documents are controlled
and live. Holders of printed copies of the document are responsible themselves
for ensuring that they have the most up to date version as appropriate.

This is a Controlled Document, as presented on-line.

It is Uncontrolled if printed, unless endorsed
on this page with the approved and completed
“Controlled Copy” label/stamp.
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Iarnréd Eireann Guidance on Third Party Works

1 POLICY AND PRINCIPLES

1.1 Policy

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.2
1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

The Railway Safety Act 2005 places an obligation on all “persons
carrying out any works on or near the railway to ensure that thereis no
increase in risk to the railway as a consequence of these works.

All work carried out adjacent to the railway property boundaries, under
or over the railway, or that may have a direct or indirect impact on the
railway must be carried out in a safe manner which safeguards the
interests of Iarnréd Eireann (IE). In order to minimise risk and general
impact on the railway, all third party works and their agents must
comply with IE Safety, Technical & Quality Management Systems and
Standards as appropriate.

In the interests of national development, IE aims to facilitate such work
by a Third Party (TP) in a timely manner while safeguarding the
railway’s interests.

Principles

A Third Party (TP) is defined; as an external party to IE who seeks to do
work that impacts the railway in any form, works that are adjacent to
the railway property boundaries, under, over the railway or have a
direct or indirect impact to the infrastructure, operations and safety to
the railway. A third party, as set out in this standard, may refer to the
third party itself, its agents, consultants, representatives or contractors
(including sub-contractors).

This standard does not cover works by first or second parties. As
defined in this standard, IE is the first party and contractors engaged
by IE are second parties.

This standard outlines the main processes for meeting IE's
requirements. An agreement is necessary in all cases.

IE may decide to change any of the requirements within this standard
at its own discretion at any time.

CCE-TMS-310 Page 4 of 33
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Iarnréd Eireann Guidance on Third Party Works

2 ABBREVIATIONS

2.1.1 The following abbreviations are used in this standard:
o IE Iarnréd Eireann
e CIE Céras Iompair Eireann

(Group holding company for IE)
e IM Infrastructure Manager

e OHLE Overhead Line Equipment
(DART overhead power lines)

e PES Principal Engineer Structures
e PSCS Project Supervisor Construction Stage

e PSDP Project Supervisor Design Process

e PTS Personal Track Safety

(Minimum training course required for access to track)
e RM Regional Manager
e CRR Commission for Railway Regulation

e STSE Senior Track & Structures Engineer
e TP Third Party
e TPC Third Party Coordinator

CCE-TMS-310 Page 5 of 33
Issue 1.2



Iarnréd Eireann Guidance on Third Party Works

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 Railway Operating Environment

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

IE has a statutory duty to operate a safe railway. It currently eperates
a railway network of approximately 2400 km of track, cariying
passengers and freight. The current timetable operates frequent
services at high speeds with varying types of modern rolling stock;
which operate more efficiently and at lower noise levels than older
stock within the current fleet. Trains can run at speeds up to 100 mph
(160 km/h).The network and timetable are continuously under
development in order to provide improvements and better services;
therefore the railway operating environment is fluid by nature and
subject to change. Service improvement and developments are part of
a continuing programme towards more frequent, faster and quieter
trains.

It is important for third parties to understand that the railway is a very
different environment from those such as roads or construction sites.
The concept of train operation is that a route is available for a train to
run with a dedicated right of way between signals. A train cannot
swerve, nor can it stop in the same distance as a road vehicle. For
example, a train travelling at 90 mph (145 km/h) requires 2 km to
stop. The operating rules required to safely operate a train have been
developed over many years. These operating rules are detailed, wide
ranging, and applied strictly and consistently. The operating rules are
different from those applicable in other sectors, including that of
construction.

Thus, third parties engaging with IE to plan or carry out work that
affects the railway are required:

e To conform to the relevant IE rules, Safety, Technical and
Quality Management procedures and standards as well as the
normal legal conditions such as wayleaves, licences or
commercial agreements.

e To conform to all current health, safety & welfare legislation
and construction regulations.

e To demonstrate that their proposed works and systems of
working will be planned, designed and constructed to minimise
impact and risk to the railway.

e To consult and be familiar with the relevant information that is
contained within the IE Network Statement (see link below).
The IE Network Statement is published in accordance with
Statutory Instrument No.55 of 2010 - European Communities
(Railway Infrastructure) Regulations 2010 and gives
characteristics of the IE infrastructure including (not limited to)
general rules, procedures, extents of network, limits,
connected railway networks, line speeds, traffic control and
communication systems.

http://www.irishrail.ie/media/ie 2016 network statement 2904.pdf

It is necessary for the third party to engage competent expertise (in all
aspects e.g. design, construction and supervision) with regard to the
railway interface.

CCE-TMS-310 Page 6 of 33

Issue 1.2


http://www.irishrail.ie/media/ie_2016_network_statement_2904.pdf

Iarnréd Eireann Guidance on Third Party Works

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

This standard provides preliminary outline guidance for third parties on:
e What to expect
e Who to contact
e How permission to carry out the works may be granted
e What activities will be charged for and payment schedule

e What supplementary information may be required, such as
method statements, risk assessments, design approvals and
movement monitoring.

It is necessary for the third party to conform to IE Infrastructure
Standard I-DEP-0121 Third Party Works: Railway Safety Requirements.

Note: that this standard is a guide only. IE will decide the exact
internal process and procedures for dealing with each project on an
individual basis.

It is necessary for the third party to conform to; IE Standard CCE-TRK-
SPN-0101, Specification for Movement Monitoring of Railway Track.

WARNING: The railway is private property. A third party (including
personnel or agents acting on its behalf) may only access IE property
including track for such purpose as surveys after the necessary
arrangements have been made, including insurance, and after having
obtained written permission from the relevant IE department.
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4 TYPE OF WORK

4.1 Work Covered

4.1.1 This standard covers both temporary and permanent third party- works
that may impact the railway. The variety of these projects is vastOThe
following is a non-exhaustive list of such example activities:

e Construction of, or alterations to existing, tunnels and
overbridges or underbridges (bridges are named in relation to
the railway, so an overbridge is over the railway).

e Insertion of pipes, ducts or services under or over the railway.
e Placing of cables or other services under or over the railway.

e Excavations adjacent to the railway and its property
boundaries.

e Any work over railway airspace.

e Cranes that are positioned adjacent to the railway and its
property boundaries which might impact the railway while in
lifting, slewing, or potential collapse mode. This includes tower
cranes, crawler rigs, piling rigs and other large plant.

e Any adjacent piling works.

e Work close to the OHLE (Overhead Line Equipment - DART
overhead power lines).

e Work on boundaries, e.g. fencing.

e Temporary use of IE land for access or alteration to boundary
fences or structures.

e Surveys or site investigations on or near the railway.

e Alterations to any drainage adjacent to the railway requires
prior consultation with IE. Alterations may increase the risk of
scour and washout of railway infrastructure (including
drainage). New developments may increase run-off where
previously there was adequate soakage. IE does not allow new
drainage connections to existing railway culverts and
watercourses.

e Increased traffic at level crossings (temporarily arising from
construction, or permanently arising from a full development
such as a new housing estate).

e Traffic arising from developments (permanent or temporary)
that results in increased traffic on railway bridges and
increased risks such as heavier loads on bridges, damage to
parapets and high loads striking limited headroom bridges.

e Third party developments that require change to IE
infrastructure (such as level crossings, rail diversions and
signalling).
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4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

e New stations, such as required by a develeper as part of
planning requirements and/or enhanceixient of the
development.

e Construction of buildings or structures (or temporary
structures during construction) that are adjacent to the railway
and have the potential to impact it, for example; signsZihat
may blow over onto the railway.

e Resurfacing of roads under railway underbridges or alterations
to overbridges.

e Access for maintenance and inspection of structures or
properties owned by third parties, for example; an overbridge
(road over rail) or painting or re-roofing of adjacent
properties.

Activities that may be some distance from the railway but that can have
a serious potential impact on it. Examples include work that may
change the water table of the railway formation. This could be caused
by alterations to drainage, or dewatering, or disruption of groundwater
flows.

Third parties who intend to carry out work on adjacent (non-railway)
property are required to contact the relevant Senior Track & Structures
Engineer (STSE) at their local IE Divisional Office at project pre-
planning stage in order to determine any potential to impact the
railway. Following contact by the third party the STSE will advise the
specific process to be followed. STSE regions and divisional office
contact details are given in appendix A.

Local authority planners are requested to contact the relevant STSE at
their local IE Divisional Office in respect of any planned developments
in order to determine any potential impact to the railway and its
operations.

The Railway Safety Act 2005 in Section 37(3) states it “shall be the
general duty of every person, in carrying out any activity on or near a
railway premises or railway land, to ensure in so far as reasonably
practicable that no person who is involved in the operation of a railway
or who is being carried on a railway is exposed to danger as a
consequence of any act or omission on the part of such person”.

In addition, Section 113 of the Act deals with roadworks in the vicinity
of railway infrastructure and obligations not to affect the safe working
of that infrastructure. It includes a requirement that a road authority, if
it intends to commence any works on a public road that may affect the
safe working of the infrastructure, must notify the railway of its
intentions and must fully consider any objections or representations by
the railway.
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4.2 Work Not Covered

4.2.1

This standard does not cover a situation where there is-a:major joint
venture by IE/CIE with a developer. An example could be a
station/retail/office/apartment development on, over or adjacernt to CIE
land. This type of work is covered under different arrangemants,
however the initial contact should be made with the regional STS&)in
order to provide guidance on those arrangements. It should be notéd
that the core safety requirements of this.
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5 CATEGORISATION OF WORK

5.1 General Impact

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

IE assesses projects primarily by assessing any potential to impact the
railway and its operations. The project itself may have a permahent
impact on the railway. Examples include:

e Affecting the viewing distances of approaching trains for IE
lineside staff.

e Impeding the future flexibility to realign the track for higher
speed or to include additional tracks.

e Impeding the future flexibility to carry larger loads.

In addition, a project may temporarily impact the railway by requiring
measures during the works such as:

e Protection for the safety of persons on the railway.

e In exceptional circumstances, special arrangements to control
the movement of trains.

The consequences to the railway arising from these projects can be
large in relation to safety, resources needed to mitigate the risks and
associated costs.

Every project is unique but can be broadly divided into three types:
(1) Minor Impact, (2) Major Impact and (3) Specialised Projects. It is
the impact on the railway that is the key issue - some small
construction works may result in a major impact on the railway. For
example; a small project might have the potential to affect the
overhead power lines (OHLE) to the DART; in this case the
consequences of damage or accident would greatly impact IE train
services.

Categorisation helps to identify how a project might be dealt with and
the appropriate process to be applied. Some projects may be difficult to
categorise or may span the categories. IE decides which category a
third party project falls within and the particular process to be applied.
All third parties planning either minor, major or specialised projects
must make contact and initiate the processes with the regional STSE
first. Following initial assessment IE will determine who within the
organisation will manage the process. For example; minor impact
projects are managed by the regional STSE, major impact projects are
managed by the internal IE Third Party Coordinator (TPC).

The categories are explained below with some examples for illustration.
Note: IE stakeholders in this instance are those departments or
sections potentially affected by the project. They may include, among
others, the Train Operations Department, the Infrastructure Manager,
Central Traffic Control, the Chief Civils Engineers Department and CIE
Group Property Management.
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5.2 Minor Impact Project

5.2.1 A minor impact project is one that affects fewer IE stakéholders and
has minor impact on the railway. Examples include:

e A small diameter pipe inserted under the railway.
e A cable erected over the railway.

e New boundary fencing or wall to be constructed.

5.3 Major Impact Project

5.3.1 A major impact project may affect several IE stakeholders, and could
have significant impact and consequences for the railway. The safety
implications of these projects require thorough assessment. Examples
of a major impact project include:

e Construction of a new overbridge or underbridge.

e Construction of a new structure, adjacent to the track and its
boundaries, with excavation and foundations works that could
impact the stability of the railway track.

e Construction of a new station that requires alteration to the
OHLE and/or new signalling.

5.4 Specialised Projects

5.4.1 A specialised project may affect several IE and external stakeholders
and could have significant impact and consequences for the railway.
The safety implications of these projects require thorough assessment.
Examples of a specialised project include:

e New station development.
e Joint ventures with CIE/IE and others.

e Other specialised projects.
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6 OTHER ELEMENTS TO CONSIDER

6.1
6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.1.5

6.2
6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

Who to Contact

The third party must contact the IE, STSE within the appropiiate IE
Divisional Region at the earliest known opportunity i.e. project
conceptual stage or pre-planning stage in order to initiate “he
assessment and design review processes required to obtain IE
acceptance of the various project phases. Details and timeframes of
these processes are outlined later in this standard.

IE track and structures are managed by the Chief Civil Engineer (CCE).
The CCE is based in The Engineering & New Works Building, CIE
General Works, Inchicore, and Dublin 8. The three regional line
divisions responsible for the maintenance of the rail network report
directly to the CCE. There are three principal regional divisional offices:
(1) Dublin, (2) Limerick Junction (3) Athlone. Third parties are required
to contact the STSE within the appropriate regional office in respect of
all planned third part works and projects.

IE have an internal Third Party Coordinator (TPC) who coordinates the
major impact projects following initial assessment by the regional STSE.

Specialised projects are handled by specific sections within IE, however
the initial assessment is carried out by the regional STSE.

CIE (the group holding company) deals with insurance, legal and
commercial aspects on behalf ofIIE. Within CIE, commercial aspects of
agreements are dealt with by CIE Group Property Management. The CIE
Solicitor prepares the legal agreements. In many instances, these are
complex documents and it is advisable for the third party to consult its
own legal advisor at an early stage.

Pre-Project Planning

Third parties and developers of projects that affect the railway will be
asked to demonstrate that their proposal has been designed to
minimise impact and risk to the railway.

The principle to be applied in the planning and design of the project by
the third party is to design out the risks and disruption to IE where
possible. As required it is necessary for the third party to conform to;
IE Standard CCE-STR-PSD-005, Technical Approval for Civil Engineering
Structures.

When projects are being developed, the third party, its agents,
planners and designers should be aware that possessions (special
arrangements to control movement of trains) are granted only in
exceptional circumstances. Costs are charged to the third party for
possessions. Cost for overrunning possessions and delaying trains are
additional and also charged to the third party, these additional
overrunning charges can be substantial.

Disruptive possessions are limited (i.e. those which affect IE train
services) and may not be considered.
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6.2.5 Designers of projects are advised to design for minimum site work and
to take account of the railway environment. With an'®©verbridge, for
example, the usual construction method is to use precast or ready-
made units - it is not usually possible to place shuttering dizderneath
for in-situ placing of a concrete bridge deck.

6.2.6 Surveys or site investigation work required for design of the woiks
must be arranged well in advance. Insurance and method statemenis
for this work must be submitted at least 12 weeks in advance to IE.

6.2.7 Third party personnel who undertake work in the vicinity of the railway
line are required to attend a Personal Track Safety (PTS) course
delivered by IE and to be in possession of the appropriate PTS
certificate. The third party is advised to arrange for this with the IE
Training Centre well in advance of the time the personnel are due to go
on or near the railway line, and to factor this into its project timescale.
For further information, see Infrastructure Standard I-DEP-0121 Third
Party Works: Railway Safety Requirements. Contact details for the IE
Training Centre are given in Appendix 3, Section A.3

6.2.8 Third party personnel who undertake work in the vicinity of the railway
are required to hold a valid Safe Pass Certificate.

6.3 Safety Management

6.3.1 Safety is primary for IE. This applies to the safe operation of trains,
passenger areas and safe systems of work for personnel on or near the
railway.

6.3.2 In addition to all other construction safety management responsibilities,
the third party must work within the constraints of the IE Railway
Safety Management Systems, arrangements and requirements when
working in the vicinity of the railway.

6.3.3 The Infrastructure Standard I-DEP-0121 Third Party Works: Railway
Safety Requirements gives detailed information on the safety
arrangements required by IE as relevant to third party projects.

6.3.4 Railway Safety Act 2005

6.3.5 Third parties are advised to consult this Act and ensure that they carry
out their responsibilities under the Act in relation to the works.

6.4 Maintenance

6.4.1 Completed work, particularly a structure, will require maintenance. This
is the responsibility of the third party. Works should be designed to
minimise the requirements for maintenance access from the trackside.

6.4.2 Maintenance considerations, including access requirements to facilitate
regular inspections, need to be addressed during the design phase and
also catered for in the legal agreement(s) for the project.

6.4.3 A third party requiring access for maintenance purposes or inspections
will be subject to IE costs and charges associated with facilitating
access.
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6.5 Documents

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

At each stage of the process, IE may issue documents that.may assist
the third party to plan and design the relevant works insofai as they
impact the railway. These may consist of relevant IE standards,
engineering requirements and other information appropriate &, the
work being carried out.

The third party is required to provide information to IE at the pre-
defined various stages of the acceptance process. This standard
outlines the general requirements. Specific requirements for each
project are given in advance of each stage. Documentation must be
submitted in hard & soft copy (3 hard copies & 1 digital copy unless
otherwise specified). Drawings should be folded.

Third parties are requested to make full and adequate submissions.
Inadequate submissions are returned with a request for more
information. This may delay the process.

6.6 Insurance

6.6.1

6.6.2

Insurance must be put in place by the third party and verified by CIE in
advance of the work proceeding. It should be noted that past projects
have experienced start-up delays due to third parties underestimating
this element of the process.

The types of insurance required depend on the circumstances and
nature of the proposed works. The third party will be notified of the
insurance requirements at an early stage of the process. Setting out of
the insurance requirements is subject to IE having received sufficient
information from the third party in order to determine the risk IE may
be exposed to as a result of the project. Example; forms of insurance
include some or all of the following, but not exclusively: public liability,
employer’s liability, professional indemnity, pollution liability, motor
third party property damage, non-negligence and contractors all risks
cover.

6.7 Cost and Timescale

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

The third parties procedures will at all times comply with the CIE Group
Procurement Policies & Procedures.

The third party pays the charges in full relating to the various activities
that IE/CIE has to carry out before, during and after the works as may
be necessitated by the project. Details of the principal chargeable
activities are given in Appendix B. Details of the proposed charges can
be made available to the third party at an early stage of each phase.

Timing of payments (advance/interim/arrears) should be considered on
a job by job basis and agreement reached with the third party
regarding same in advance of progressing the job.

Payment of charges is made in full prior to any work or phase
commencing. Where applicable, the third party is required to submit a
refundable bond in advance of the works. The level of the bond is
determined by IE. The bond is returned to the third party after
satisfactory completion of the works, receipt of outstanding charges
and receipt by IE of a copy of the safety file.
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6.7.5

6.7.6

6.7.7

For a small project with minor impact on the operating railway, IE
chargeable activities are likely to be minor and proportigrnal to the type
of work and scale of project.

For a project of major impact on the operating railway, the timg,for the
overall process is likely to be extensive. There are significant IE
chargeable activities involved in this type of project.

For any third party project that could impact the railway, the third party
should consult with the IE regional STSE at the earliest possible stage.
This could prevent or reduce the necessity to change plans and in turn
reduce the time and costs involved.
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7 COMMISSION FOR RAILWAY REGULATION (CRR)
ASSESSMENT

7.1 Requirements for Assessment

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.1.4

7.1.5

7.1.6

7.1.7

IE (and their agents) are obliged to comply with both Irishand
European legislation in regard to the implementation of changes %o
infrastructure, therefore the company is obliged to comply with the
requirements of the Railway Safety Act (2005), the Railway Safety
Directive (2004/49/EC) and the Interoperability Directive (2008/57/EC)
for all new railway infrastructure. In order to satisfy these legislative
requirements an application for Authorisation to Place in Service (APIS)
shall be made to the Commission For Railway Regulation (CRR) for each
stage of the project in accordance with the CRR Guidelines for the
approval of new infrastructure works, in particular RSC-G-009-E
‘Guidelines for the Process of Authorisation for Placing in Service of
Railway Sub Systems’. All third parties should familiarise themselves
with the specific requirements for each stage of the APIS process as set
out in RSC-G-009-E.

IE (and their agents) are also obliged to comply with the requirements
of Commission Regulation (EC) No. 352/2009, ‘Common Safety Method
on Risk Evaluation and Assessment’ for all new railway infrastructure.
In order to satisfy the requirements of the Common Safety Method,
Iarnréd Eireann developed and adheres to IE standard, IM-SMS-014
Safety Validation of Changes to Plant, Equipment, Infrastructure and
Operations (PEIO). An application for safety validation shall be prepared
for each stage of the project, to be submitted to the Iarnrdd Eireann
Safety Validation Panel (SVP), SVP approval will be required before an
application can be made to the Commission for Railway Regulation.

Guidelines in order to meet the requirements of the CRR are published
by the CRR which will set out the particulars to be adhered to. The
guidelines also state that further clarification can be sought from the
CRR. The CRR website is www.crr.ie. All third parties planning work
which will have an impact on the railway should familiarise themselves
with the requirements of the CRR.

IE requires the third party to prepare the information that may be
required by the CRR and/or IE Safety Validation Panel. This may be
needed at different stages of the acceptance process. IE will consider
the impact of the works on its Safety Case in accordance with the CRR
guidelines. Submissions are prepared by the third party and sent on to
the CRR by IE.

CRR acceptance is normally only given for the stage to which the
submission applies, i.e. it is a staged acceptance process with
preliminary design, detailed design and commissioning being the steps.

The CRR may include conditions to any submission. Site inspections of
the works may be carried out as deemed necessary by them. All
conditions will have to be adhered to by the third party.

While IE facilitates the third party in the interaction with the CRR it can
take no responsibility for errors, omissions, losses or delays arising
from this.
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8 OVERVIEW OF PROCESS FOR MINOR & MAJORIMPACT

PROJECTS

8.1 General

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

This section gives an overview of the process that is to take placg for
minor and major impact projects. Note that some of the activitigs
described below are designed to be sequential but may occur in parallél
depending on specific project circumstances; however any deviation will
be at the discretion of IE.

A minor impact project is likely to be simpler with fewer requirements.
For a flowchart illustration of this process, see 8.9.

A major impact project may consist of the following phases:

e Initial Assessment: initial letter of application and submission
for pre-project assessment, payment of IE charges.

e Preliminary Design Review.

e Detailed Design Review.

e Completion of Agreements.

e Pre-Construction Arrangements.
e Construction.

e Post-Construction.

For a flowchart illustration of this process, see 8.10.

8.2 Initial Assessment

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.4

The third party’s initial contact for all proposed works or projects will be
with the regional STSE. Third parties are advised to make contact at an
early stage of project development. In the case of roads (with
associated railway bridges), it is advisable to consult with IE during the
route selection process.

The third party begins the formal process by sending in an Initial
Application Form (see Appendix C) to the regional STSE. This form can
be printed from the online version.

On the basis of the initial written application, the regional STSE will
make the initial response.

This initial response provides information for the third party. The
information varies depending on the project, but is likely to contain
details of:

e The requirement for a pre-project assessment of the
application for third party work, and the cost of this payable in
advance.

« IE’s nominated single point of contact for communications and
submissions.
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8.2.5

8.2.6

8.2.7
8.2.8

8.2.9

8.2.10

8.2.11

8.2.12

8.3
8.3.1

8.3.2
8.3.3

e General arrangements and procedures to follow, relevant
standards and documents.

e IE's fees and payment requirements for the initial pfiase.

The initial response also includes a request for further information-from
the third party. The request is made so that IE will have suffigient
information to assess the impact on the railway and thus decife
whether Initial Acceptance may be granted. This information will also
allow IE to begin to establish the costs to be charged. The specific
information requested depends on the project, an example of what the
third party maybe asked for:

e A demonstration that the conceptual proposal has been
designed to minimise the risk and impact to IE operations.

e An indicative project timescale that should also take account of
the time required by IE to review the submitted
documentation.

e Location drawings.

e Conceptual plans and elevations for the project.

e An outline of the proposed construction method and materials.
e Outline future maintenance considerations.

In the case where novel technology or systems are proposed, an early
submission to the CRR may also be required at this stage.

IE will require a minimum of 8 weeks to review each formal submission.

The regional STSE distributes the information for comment to the
relevant IE Infrastructure Manager and other IE/CIE stakeholders. The
stakeholders review the submission and assess the implications in their
respective areas.

Depending on the complexity of the project, IE may decide to arrange a
meeting between the third party and the stakeholders.

The regional STSE decides whether to grant initial acceptance and
replies to the third party.

If the project receives Initial Acceptance from IE, the third party may
proceed to the next phase. Specific conditions and information on fees
covering IE’s activities for the next phase(s) are given at this stage.

IE assessments of the next phase cannot commence until the fees are
paid by the third party.

Preliminary Design Review

The third party instructs its legal advisors to engage with the CIE
Solicitors’ office to commence the process of preparing legal
agreements.

The third party submits the Preliminary Design for the project to the IE.

The third party now pays IE the relevant project charges for this phase.
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8.3.4 IE will require a minimum of 8 weeks to review each formal submission.

8.3.5 Sufficient information on the project must be submitted ¢.allow IE to
review. The third party will be expected to have fully“considered
minimising risk and impact to IE within the preliminary”) design
information submitted.

8.3.6 Six hard copies and one digital copy of the Preliminary Design
information and design statement must be provided and include:

e Location maps, preliminary elevations and plans of the project
showing all relevant horizontal and vertical clearances to the
track (e.g. Clearances to structures, access routes and
overhead electrified lines).

e Surveys of existing installations and station/trackside services,
if applicable, including any necessary diversions.

e Preliminary site investigation results.

e Identification of impact on the railway infrastructure and train
operations.

e Identification of the need for temporary enabling works
necessary for the safety of the railway infrastructure or train
operations.

e A design statement including a list of the standards to which
the works will be designed and constructed to.

e A risk assessment concerned with the impact of the works on
railway operations, personnel and infrastructure, and the
impact of the train operations on the works and personnel.
Details must also be given of how these risks will be
evaluated, mitigated and managed.

e Measures to prevent unauthorised access (including vehicular
containment) to railway property.

e The overall project timescale, including allocation for the IE
design review, CCR approval, and completion of legal
agreement activities.

e An outline programme for the construction phase.

8.3.7 Depending on the complexity of the works, IE may require the third
party to submit a separate set of information on the preliminary design
to the Commission of Railway Regulation (CRR) at this stage. If
required, the third party must forward the required amount of copies of
the preliminary design submission to IE for forwarding to the CRR and
any other information or documentation they require. The CRR may
issue acceptance for this stage provided it is satisfied with the
information submitted. If the Preliminary Design proposal is acceptable
to IE, the third party is given Acceptance of Preliminary Design by IE
together with any relevant conditions. If the proposal is not acceptable,
the third party may be requested to submit a revised proposal. The
applicant is advised not to commence Detailed Design prior to the
Acceptance of the Preliminary Design by IE.
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8.4 Detailed Design Review

8.4.1 The third party submits the completed detailed design fer<the project,
and the associated design and check certification as required.to IE for
review. Once the detailed design information is submitted”)IE will
confirm their costs and payment requirements for this phase. IE
assessments of this phase cannot commence until the fees are paid hy
the third party.

8.4.2 IE will require a minimum of 8 weeks to review each formal submission.

8.4.3 Three hard copies and one digital copy of the detailed design
information for IE must be provided. The information must consist of
drawings and calculations describing in detail the permanent works and
outlining the temporary works necessary for the construction works.
(Note: only 2 copies of reinforcement drawings and design calculations
are required; reinforcement schedules are not required.) The detailed
design submission must include:

e Location maps, elevations and plans of the project.

e Detailed horizontal and vertical clearances to the track (and
OHLE if applicable).

e Geotechnical investigation reports.

e Calculations, drawings.

e Original design and check certificates, as required by IE
Intended construction methodology.

e Design specifications for significant components.

e Declaration of the intended life cycle of the works and
identification of requirements to achieve this.

e Details of the safety management arrangements specific to the
railway-related works being undertaken (e.g. details of an
entire road project are not required). See I-DEP-0121 Third
Party Works: Safety Requirements for more details.

e Updated overall project timescale, including allocation for IE
design review, CCR approval, and completion of legal
agreement activities.

e Updated programme for the construction phase.

8.4.4 The third party sends the detailed design submission for the CRR to IE
for forwarding to the CRR. This submission must be presented as 3
hard copies and 1 digital copy and include:

e The information listed in 8.4.3, if this has not previously been
requested.

e Design specifications. This should be a high-level performance
specification for significant components. More detailed
specifications may be requested. This must be accompanied by
general arrangement drawings and a programme of works.
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8.4.5

A list of the standards to which the new infrastructure works
will be designed and constructed. Any non-campliance must
also be included with reasons for same.

e Details of the safety management systems governing the
design, construction, operation, maintenance and disposal of
the proposed infrastructure works - including a ““risk
assessment.

e A declaration of the intended life cycle of the project and
identification of safety requirements in order to achieve this
(e.g. OHLE replacement).

e Compliance with any relevant principles and guidelines
adopted by the CRR and relevant legislation, including a
description of the compliance. Specifically highlight any items
of non-compliance or partial compliance.

e Compatibility of the new infrastructure works with the existing
infrastructure, rolling stock and railway operations.

e Confirmation that the commissioning and bringing into
operation of the new infrastructure works is consistent with
the operation of the railway and the duty of the railway
undertaking under the legislation. This must include details of
the testing and commissioning regime and test results where
appropriate.

Note: IE will consider the impact of the works on its Safety Case in
accordance with the CRR guidelines.

If the detailed design review submission (as listed in 8.4.3) is
acceptable to IE, the third party is given Acceptance of Detailed Design
by IE together with any relevant conditions. If the proposal is not
acceptable, the third party may be requested to submit a revised
proposal. Note that Acceptance of Detailed Design does not signify that
the works may commence on site. Permission to proceed can only be
given via the IE Third Party Coordinator after project specific
arrangements are put in place including CRR acceptance.

8.5 Completion of Agreements

8.5.1

8.5.2

8.5.3

If the project is granted acceptance by the CRR, and Acceptance of
Detailed Design by IE, the third party may progress to completion of
the necessary legal agreements, wayleaves, licences, disposals or other
understandings between the third party and IE/CIE as required.

Where a legal agreement has to be executed between IE/CIE and the
third party, it must be submitted for CIE Board approval. Works cannot
proceed until CIE Board Approval is obtained.

The requirements for insurance must be put in place and all insurance
must be to the satisfaction of the CIE Group Secretarial Services
Manager prior to any works commencing.
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8.6 Pre-Construction Arrangements

8.6.1

8.6.2

8.6.3

8.6.4

8.6.5

8.6.6

8.6.7

8.6.8

The third party must submit to IE evidence of the compstence of its
selected contractor to carry out the works insofar as they’impact the
railway (this includes the competence of any sub-contractors wiho may
carry out significant parts of the works). This evidence must set cuf the
relevant experience and technical ability of personnel. It must ~aiso
include evidence of the contractor’s safety management system.

Once the competence of the third party contractors has been accepted
the third party can begin planning the construction arrangements by
submitting an early method statement and any associated temporary
works designs to IE, including design and check certificates. Note: the
required method statements only apply to the section of the works
which impacts railway operations, infrastructure and property.

The third party and its contractors may be required to attend meetings
with the relevant IE staff to discuss the IE railway safety requirements.
The content, type, timing and scope of these railway safety
requirements are entirely at the discretion of IE.

The third party then submits 6 hard copies and 1 digital copy of the
detailed method statement for the initial work to IE for review.

Permission to Proceed is not a blanket approval to carry out the works.
The relevant safety arrangements will need to be agreed, planned and
set up in specific agreement with the relevant IE staff.

Railway safety arrangements can take a minimum of 11 weeks in the
planning schedule. Arrangements may include the provision of
protection staff, arrangements for possessions, or other measures as
necessary. Refer to I-DEP-0121 Third Party Works: Railway Safety
Requirements.

While every attempt is made to accommodate third party construction
schedules, the exigencies of railway maintenance work and other IE
projects mean that provision of such railway safety arrangements
cannot be guaranteed at the time required.

If a track monitoring system has been specified, IE must be satisfied
that a suitable system is in place, for guidelines, see: IE Standard CCE-
TRK-SPN-010, Specification for Movement Monitoring of Railway Track.

8.7 Construction

8.7.1

8.7.2

8.7.3

Construction must take place in accordance with the legal
agreement(s), the approved designs, method statements, the railway
safety requirements, current health safety & welfare legislation and
building regulations.

In many cases specific method statements must be issued for
acceptance by IE staff on a rolling basis for different phases of the
works.

For minor changes to method statements or designs the third party
must inform the nominated IE contact person in advance. For major
changes the third party must re-submit the affected documents and
drawings to IE for evaluation and formal acceptance.
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8.7.4

8.7.5

IE may carry out safety and technical audits on the construction
process in order to establish that the work is being<carried out in
accordance with the approved documents. The third party-is-required to
facilitate the auditing process and to abide by the audit report
recommendations.

Should circumstances arise during the construction works which cieate
a risk to the railway in IE’s opinion, IE will serve notice to the third
party and take such steps as are necessary to safeguard the railway
operation and its infrastructure.

8.8 Post-Construction

8.8.1

8.8.2

8.8.3

Upon certification of completion (refer to I-DEP-0121 Third Party
Works: Railway Safety Requirements for forms), the maintenance
arrangements, as set out in the legal agreement(s) will be
implemented.

At this stage IE informs the CRR that the works have been completed.
A CRR Inspector may wish to undertake an inspection. If the CRR is
satisfied it issues the final acceptance, i.e. commissioning acceptance.

Third parties are advised that the CRR must have given its acceptance
for the commissioning of the project before it can be opened and/or
used.
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8.9 Minor Impact Project: Activities Flowchart

8.9.1 This chart is given for guidance only. Some activities ‘siich as legal
agreements may commence earlier and run in parailel. Actual
circumstances may change.

8.9.2 TP refers to the Third Party.

MINOR IMPACT PROJECT:
EXAMPLE ACTIVITY FLOWCHART
PHASE TPUT
Initial application made by Third Party (TP) to IE Regional Senior Track & h
Structures Engineer (STSE)

. STSE reply including TP submission detail requirements and confirmation
of |E costs & charges

. TP submits required information for pre-project assessment and pays
INITIAL specified IE charges 5
ASSESSMENY . STSE reviews TP submission and consults with |E Infrastructure Manager
and other IE/CIE stakeholders

. STSE confirms decision i.e. whether to grant/reject Initial Acceptance or
request further information.

Following all negotiations and CIE Board approval, the TP completes with
IE/CIE all relevant agreements, including acceptance of IE charges for the
following construction and post construction phases

. TP submits insurance to IE >

o\

Initial
Acceptance

COMPLETION OF
AGREEMENT

Agreements &
Insurances

) v
(e TP makes full payment of the IE charges for the construction and post- h
construction phases
e TP submits draft method statement to STSE for review
. STSE reviews draft method statement from a technical perspective (i.e.
track & structures safety) and replies to TP
PRE- e TPrevises method statement and re-submits to STSE, once satisfied the Safe Plan of
NSTRUCTION : 5
co method statement is sent to the IE Infrastructure Manager Work
ARRANGEMENT . IE Infrastructure Manager reviews method statement for railway safety
arrangements and replies to the TP
. IE Infrastructure Manager grants permission to proceed confirming the
railway safety management arrangements
) v
(o Specific work method statements, railway safety arrangements
implemented and supervised for the duration of the works
] TP carries out construction works
. TP required to attend meeting with IE to discuss various elements of the
works
. Method statements updated by TP as required and issued to STSE/ Completed
CONSTRUCTION Infrastructure Manager > Works
. IE infrastructure to update railway safety management arrangements as
the work proceeds
. STSE to provided technical support as the work proceeds
\ l J
C TP to arrange and submit to |E certification/handover/maintenance N

arrangements for the completed works
. If applicable; CRR advised on completion of the works, if required the CRR
must give final acceptance of the project before use. >

Operation &
Maintenance
Procedures

POST-
CONSTRUCTION
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8.10 Major Impact Project: Activities Flowchart

8.10.1  This chart is given for guidance only. Actual circumstances may vary.
The chart is presented for a situation where CRR appraoval is not
necessary.

8.10.2 TP refers to the Third Party.

PHASES OUTPUTS

(o Initial application made by Third Party (TP) to IE Regional Senior Track & )
Structures Engineer (STSE)

. IE reply including TP submission detail requirements and confirmation of IE
costs & charges
e TP submits required information for pre-project assessment and pays N Initial

Acceptance

INITIAL
ASSESSMENT

specified |IE charges

|E Third Party Co-ordinator reviews TP submission

IE Third Party Co-ordinator confirms decision i.e. whether to grant/reject
Initial Acceptance or request further information

¥

TP pays IE charges for this phase
TP commences legal engagement with CIE Solicitors
TP submits preliminary design to IE Third Party Co-ordinator for review

If required IE Third Party Co-ordinator submits the information to the
PRELIMINARY Commission for Railway Regulation (CRR)
SN
DESIGN REVIEW e |E Third Party Co-ordinator reviews TP submission

IE Third Party Co-ordinator confirms decision i.e. whether to grant/reject
Acceptance of Preliminary Design or request further information

'

TP pays IE charges for this phase
TP submits detailed design to IE Third Party Co-ordinator for review
If required IE Third Party Co-ordinator submits the design information to
the CRR
DETAILED DESIGN e |EThird Party Co-ordinator reviews TP submission >
REVIEW e |EThird Party Co-ordinator confirms decision i.e. whether to grant/reject

Acceptance of Detailed Design or request further information

e o 0o o\ [

Acceptance of
Preliminary
Design

e o o) e

Acceptance of
Detailed Design

_/

)

Following all negotiations and CIE Board approval, the TP completes with N

IE/CIE all relevant agreements, including IE charges for the following
COMPLETION OF construction and post-construction phases. I 5
AGREEMENTS . TP submits insurance to |E Third Party Co-ordinator.

)

Agreements &
Insurances

. CIE verifies insurances

. ¢ J
(o TP pays IE charges for construction & post-construction phases R
. |IE & TP agree all pre-construction arrangements including safety

PRE-
CONSTRUCTION

arrangements, work specific risk assessments and method statements with

STSE (STSE consults with IE Infrastructure Manager) > Safe|Rlaniof

Work

ARRANGEMENTS, . IE Infrastructure Manager sets up railway safety arrangements
. Once satisfied the IE Infrastructure Manager grants permission to proceed.
- J, J
(o Specific work method statements, railway safety arrangements N
implemented and supervised for the duration of the works
e X A K Completed
CONSTRUCTION carries out construction works I

TP required to attend meeting with IE to discuss various elements of the Works

works
v

-
\

(o TP to arrange and submit to |E certification/handover/maintenance ) Gneration &
POST- information for the completed works Msinter:ance
CONSTRUCTION . CRR advised on completion of the works, if required the CRR must give
- ) Procedures
final acceptance of the project before use. )
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9 REVIEW

9.1 Review Procedure
9.1.1 This standard will need to be reviewed every five years or as reguired.

9.1.2 If changes arise from the review, this standard will be reissued. If o
changes arise from the review, the current version of this standard wiil
remain in force.
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APPENDIX A - WHO TO CONTACT IN IARNROD EIREANN

A.1 Summary

A.l.1 This is a guide on who to contact in the first instance in relatior o third
party (TP) works that may impact the railway. It includes detaiis on
where to send the initial application form. Note that Iarnrod Eireann
(IE) decides the classification of work and a third party might
subsequently be redirected to another section within IE depending on
the specific detail of the project.

Table A.1: Contacts for Project Types

Third Party

Major Impact
Projects

Third Party
Specialised

Projects

IE Regional Senior Track &
Structures Engineer (STSE)

Regions:
Dublin
Athlone
Limerick Junction

Specialised Projects

Major Impact

. New boundary wall/fencing .

Small diameter utility pipe/cable
under/over railway

Tower crane or structures adjacent
to railway

Some types of work which will
affect the overhead power lines
(OHLE) in the DART area

Minor works at level crossings
Resurfacing or road surfaces on
over or underbridges

Works some distance from the
railway, but with the potential to
affect it. E.g. resultant change to
ground water levels

Inspection of structures by TPs
Surveys and site inspection works
Other Minor works

Construction of a bridge over/ .

under or adjacent to the railway
Structures requiring significant
foundations/excavation works
adjacent to the railway boundary
Other major works

New station development
Joint ventures with CIE/IE
Other specialist project

CCE-TMS-310
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A.2 Relevant Division

A.2.1 IE Infrastructure is divided into three divisions responsiblé-for
maintenance of the rail network. Their main offices are in Duhln,
Limerick Junction, and Athlone. See the map in A.4 for the relevant
division.

A.3 Contact Addresses

Dublin

Divisional Office

Iarnrdd Eireann

Pearse Station 1
Westland Row, Dublin 2 :
Tel: 01 7033501

Fax: 01 7033591

Limerick Junction
Divisional Office
Iarnrdd Eireann
Limerick Junction
Co. Tipperary

Tel: 062 51083
Fax: 062 52219

Athlone

Divisional Office

Iarnrdd Eireann

Old Railway Station

Grace Road, Athlone

Co. Westmeath

Tel: 090 6487711

Fax: 090 6494333

Email: aone.info@irishrail.ie

Third Party Coordinator
Iarnrod Eireann Infrastructure
Engineering & New Works Building
CIE General Works

Inchicore

Dublin

D08 K6Y3

Tel: 01 7034451

IE Training Centre

larnréd Eireann

Inchicore,

Dublin 8

Email: contractor.pts@irishrail.ie
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APPENDIX B - COSTS

A.4 Chargeable Activities

A.4.1 All costs incurred by Iarnréd Eireann (IE) arising from the works are
charged to the third party.

A.4.2 All costs incurred by Iarnréd Eireann (IE) arising from the works are
payable in full to IE by the third party in advance the works and/or
each phases.

A.4.3 Charges by IE depend on several factors, including:

e The complexity of the works and the number of interfaces.
e The quality of submitted information at the various stages of
the process.

A.4.4 The following is a non-exhaustive list of activities, arising from the
works, for which the third party is charged by IE. The full range of
charges depends on the type of project and the resultant activities that
need to be carried out by IE/CIE. Payment must be made in advance of
the activities being executed.

A.4.5 The necessity to carry out any such activities is solely the decision of
IE.

Table B1: Charges

PHASE SAMPLE CHARGEABLE IE/CIE ACTIVITIES

Initial Assessment | Pre-project assessment of the project by IE.

Design Review IE review of the preliminary and detailed design of
the project.

Liaison with IE stakeholders and other bodies.
Cost of providing access for site surveys at all
stages (including protection arrangements).

Review, As may be deemed necessary by IE: any design

Investigation, work carried out by IE in connection with the works.

Design, Validation | ;¢ ;0 veface with CCR, as required.

Engagement by IE of external expertise to review,
investigate, design or validate in connection with
the works.

Agreements and Legal work to prepare wayleaves, agreements etc.

Insurance Work in respect of specification and validation of
insurance.

Pre-Construction Preliminary engineering planning.

Arrangements Assessment of method statements.
Planning/set-up of railway safety management
arrangements.

Construction Provision of IE personnel on protection duties.
Arrangements for possessions.
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PHASE SAMPLE CHARGEABLE IE/CIE ACTIVITIES

Provision of alternative services for passengers.

Supervision of excavation works in the vidinity of IE

cables.
Construction Slowing of trains (through setting up or cancellizig
(continued) temporary speed restrictions).

The carrying out by IE of works to facilitate the third
party development. This may include physical works
by IE (e.g. alterations to signals, widening of level
crossings, permanent way works).

Safety and/or engineering supervision and
coordination of the project by IE.

Engagement of external expertise to provide site
presence and/or condition recording and monitoring.

Displacement monitoring of railway infrastructure.

The taking of all precautionary measures for the
prevention of injury, loss or damage to persons or
property.

Any additional cost or expense incurred by IE arising
from the third party works.

Post-Construction Post-project handover and certification.

Any post-project rectification works.

Maintenance.

A.5 Other Charges

A.5.1 In the event of possession overrun by the third party with delay to train
services, there is a significant charge based on the time involved.

A.5.2 Where applicable, a refundable bond is submitted in advance of the
works. The level of the bond is determined by IE. The bond is returned
to the third party after satisfactory completion of the works, receipt of
all outstanding IE charges and receipt by IE of a copy of the safety
file/all O&M documentation. Satisfactory completion means completion
of the works in adherence to the accepted detailed design and method
statement(s) and no damage and/or disruption to IE property,
infrastructure or operations.

A.5.3 PTS training (necessary for third party personnel on or near the
railway) is provided by IE on a charge per person-day, as appropriate.

A.6 Basis and Management of Charges

A.6.1 Information on the charges and schedule of rates is made available to
the third party at an early stage of each phase.

A.6.2 As a general rule, IE costs incurred during minor impact projects will be
managed by the relevant IM within the applicable IE Division. For major
impact projects, the STSE or Third Party Coordinator may manage IE
costs incurred during each phase. This will be confirmed to the Third
Party at the initial assessment phase.
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A.7 Commercial Charges

A.7.1 A charge is made for wayleaves. There may also be charges for licences
or agreements, depending on the type of project. These are’determined
by CIE Group Property Management. The third party is ad¥ised on
these at the time of negotiating the agreement(s).
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APPENDIX C - INITIAL APPLICATION FORM

THIRD PARTY INITIAL APPLICATION FORM

Third parties planning to undertake works that may impact Iarnréd Eireann (IE) infrastructure must
complete this form. For guidance, please refer to CCE-TMS-310 Guidance for Third Parties. Completed
forms must be submitted to the relevant contact in IE.

For IE use
only

Project Name

File Ref No

CONTACT DETAILS

Third Party

Agent acting on behalf of Name:

the third party (if

applicable)

Relationship to
third party:

Contact Name

Contact Address

Tel

Fax

E-mail

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

General summary (e.g. development, construction)

Details of work that may impact the railway

Work location as it impacts the railway (include sketch map or other details if possible)

Between which IE stations:

Located in which townland:

Overall project timescale

Intended timescale for works
affecting the railway

Note: attach any additional information as you may wish.

Signed by:

Date:

Position:

CCE-TMS-310
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CCE DEPARTMENT

TECHNICAL MANAGEMENT STANDARD

CCE-TMS-313
Requirements for Third Party Utility Services

This CCE Department Technical Standard sets out the requirements for Third Parties intending to install new
utility services and/or the upgrade of existing utility services on or near larnréd Eireann property.

This CCE Department Technical Document is mandatory.

The principles in this Technical Standard are approved by the Head of Department and therefore constitute
mandatory standard practices, which apply throughout the CCE Department.

Signed Chief Civil Engineer

This standard, along with all CCE Department Standards, is available on the CCE Website. Electronic copies
of the standards are controlled and live. Holders of printed copies of the standard are responsible themselves
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
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1

1.1
111

1.1.2

1.2
121

1.3
131

1.3.2

133

134
135

1.3.6

Policy, Scope and Principles

Policy

The installation of Third Party utility services within larnréd Eireann (IE) infrastructure must avoid
any adverse impact on the railway infrastructure or operations. The positioning af any utility services
shall not prevent maintenance of the |IE infrastructure or inhibit the future upgrade ot 1E infrastructure.

This standard applies to electrified railways, non-electrified railways and railways pienned to be
electrified in the future.

Scope

This standard sets out the requirements for intended Third Party utility services i.e. new utilities
services and/or the upgrade of existing utilities services on or near larnréd Eireann infrastructure to
ensure quality and consistency across the IE rail network.

Principles

This standard is compulsory for all Departments within larnréd Eireann and for Third Parties
intending to install utility services/upgrade existing utility services on or near larnrod Eireann

property.
This standard should be read with reference to the following:

CCE-TMS-310 Guidance on Third Party Works (replaces I-DEP-0120 Guidance on Third Party
Works).

CCE-TMS-344 Requirements for Undertrack Crossings and Pressure Pipelines

I-DEP-0121 Third Party Works: Additional Details of Railway Safety Requirements Safety definitions
that apply to all standards are set out in CCE-SMS-001 CCE Safety Management System.

I-ETR-4010 Electrification Standard I-ETR-4010 Vertical Clearance of Overhead Services (draft
document).

Page 3 of 11



CCE-TMS-313, Version 1.0 — Requirements for Third Party Utility Services

2

2.1
211

2.1.2
2.13
214
2.15

Definitions

Standard-Specific Definitions

The established definitions of all permanent way terminology used in standargds and procedures are
set out in CCE-TMS-399 Glossary of Civil and Permanent Way Engineering Terns. The definitions
below are of particular relevance to this standard.

Cable Run - Sequence of overhead cables between a pair of poles or pylons.
Railway Overbridge - A bridge that passes over a railway.
Railway Underbridge - A bridge that supports a railway track over a road, river or other obstrtction.

Third Party Utility Services — For the purpose of this standard, it refers to a public or private entity
and includes any cables, pipes, ducts that carry telecommunications; ESB; gas; water; surface water
and wastewater or a combination of same being installed by a public or private entity.
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3

3.1
3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.13.1
3.1.3.2

3.1.3.3

3.14

3.2
3.2.1
3.2.2

3.2.3
3.23.1
3.2.3.2

3.3
3.3.1

3.3.2
3321

3.3.2.2

3.4
34.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3431

3.4.3.2

Accountabilities and Responsibilities

The full listing of CCE Management Accountabilities and Responsibilities’is shown in CCE-SMS-001
CCE Safety Management System. The following accountabilities and responsibilities are specific to
this CCE Standard.

Chief Civil Engineer (CCE)

The Chief Civil Engineer (CCE) has overall accountability for this Technical Staridard and its
implementation.

The CCE is accountable for setting Occupational Safety, Plant & Machinery Safety, Track 3afety
and Structures Safety objectives and for providing resources to all parts of the CCE Department to
achieve those objectives.

The CCE is accountable for:
Occupational Safety of all activities in the whole CCE Department, and for

Plant & Machinery Safety of all the activities in the CCE Department and on all the worksites
under the CCE Department’s control, and for

Track Safety, Structures Safety, the Safety of Buildings & Facilities and the Safety of all the CCE
assets under the CCE Department’s control.

The Chief Civil Engineer is accountable for owning this technical standard or assigning an owner for
the standard from his senior management team.

Technical Manager, CCE
The Technical Manager, CCE, is the owner of this standard.

The Technical Manager, CCE, is accountable for Track Safety and Structures Safety for the entire
larnrod Eireann railway network.

The Technical Manager, CCE, is accountable for ensuring that:
This standard is implemented through a programme of compliance verification and review
This standard is sufficient for its stated requirement with respect to the requirements for Third
Party utility services

Senior Track and Structures Engineer (STSE)

The Senior Track and Structures Engineer is accountable for Track Safety and Structures Safety for
those parts of the larnréd Eireann railway network within the CCE Locations that are his
accountability.

With regard to this standard, the STSE is accountable for ensuring that:
Compliance with this standard is measured and verified

Third Party Services are installed/upgraded in accordance with this standard.

Infrastructure Manager (IM) (or Nominated Regional Manager)

The Infrastructure Manager is responsible for all aspects of the management of production activities
within his Division.
The Infrastructure Manager, or Nominated Regional Manager, is accountable for all the aspects of

Track Safety, Structures Safety, Plant & Machinery Safety and Occupational Safety of all the
production operations and supplier operations associated with the CCE locations under his control.

With regard to this standard, the Infrastructure Manager, or Nominated Regional Manager, is
accountable for:

Ensuring that tasks are executed in a manner that is in accordance with this technical standard
and ensures the safe operation of the Track and Structures

Ensuring that production activities required as a result of this standard are planned, scheduled
and controlled such that only technically competent manpower and the correct resources are
used and that the activities are undertaken in a timely manner
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3.4.3.3 Following the instructions and technical advice of the Senior Track and Structures Engineer as
necessary
3434 Reviewing the progress of all the actions associated with this standard with the Senior Track

and Structures Engineer.

3.5 Further Accountabilities and Responsibilities

3.5.1 Section 4, Implementation, of this standard describes further the specific accounrtabilities,
responsibilities and duties required under this standard.

3.5.2 Staff must ensure that any difficulties with the implementation of this standard are brought to the
attention of the Technical Manager, CCE.
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4

4.1
41.1

41.1.1

41.1.2

41.2
4.2
42.1

42.1.1
42.1.2

42.1.3

4214

4215

4.2.2
4221

42.2.2

423

423.1

4.2.3.2

4.2.3.3
424
4241

Implementation

Third Party Utility Services

Applications from Third Parties for the installation/upgrade of utility services.that interface with the
IE Infrastructure shall be dealt with on a case by case basis through relevant Licence Agreements.
The overarching requirements are

Where new Third Party utility services are to be installed they shall be routed uridrground to
cross under the track; through the deck of overbridges and/or in the grouii@-beneath
underbridges. CCE-TMS-344 sets out the requirements for Undertrack Crossings and Riessure
Pipelines.

In cases with new Third Party utility services where there are extreme technical difficulties and
where all other technical options for an under track crossing (UTX) have been exhausted, an
overhead crossing may be considered, refer to 4.2.

Third party services shall not be placed under any circumstances in SET/B&F ducts, through ballast
or through hollow sleepers.

Overhead Utility Services crossing the railway
New Overhead Cables - suspended over the track
Cables to be suspended over track are strongly discouraged.

They may be permitted on particular lines in exceptional cases, where there are proven very
difficult technical circumstances and not at all on other stated lines, refer to Appendix A. Each
application will be dealt with on a case by case basis.

In circumstances where overhead cables are allowed then the Licence Agreement shall stipulate
that the overhead cables will be removed or diverted underground at the Company’s discretion
and at the cost of the Licensee following a term of notice normally six months.

Design, maintenance and documentation requirements for overhead cables crossing larnrod
Eireann railway infrastructure is contained in the Electrification Standard, I-ETR-4010 Vertical
Clearance of Overhead Services.

Lines where new overhead cables are not permitted under any circumstances are listed in
Appendix A.

Existing Overhead Cables - suspended over the track

Existing cables over track may be replaced for maintenance reasons but may not be
substantially upgraded (e.g. to a different voltage or replacing a copper cable with a fibre optic
cable).

Where existing overhead cable routes are required to be used for additional cable runs, this may
be considered with the proviso that any future upgrade of the railway infrastructure, such as
electrification, will require subsequent removal or diversion underground of these cables and
this will be at the expense of the Licensee. The requirement for this will be captured in the
relevant Licence Agreement.

ESB Overhead Cables - Suspended over the track

The existing agreement with ESB from 1964 only allows for underground cables. Where new
overhead cables are proposed for the ESB they shall have a separate Licence Agreement and
not a supplemental agreement to the 1964 agreement.

Existing cables over track may be replaced for maintenance reasons but may not be
substantially upgraded (e.g. to a different voltage or replacing a copper cable with a fibre optic
cable).

Additional cables may not be added to existing Cable Runs on poles/pylons.
Existing Cable Run on poles over a railway bridge structure

Additional cables maybe added to existing cable runs in instances where fallen cables would
not foul the railway line e.g. where an existing Cable Run goes diagonally over a bridge deck or
where there is a bend on the road or wide verge such that the Cable Run is well away from the
parapets.

Page 7 of 11



CCE-TMS-313, Version 1.0 — Requirements for Third Party Utility Services

4242

4.3
43.1

4.3.2

4.4
44.1

4.4.2

443

4.4.4

Where there is no existing Cable Run on poles then a proposed Cable Run must go underground
and/or in the bridge deck.

Third Party Utility Services Parallel to the Railway

Any new utility services parallel to the railway on railway property are to be stroidgly discouraged as
there is a greater risk to the services being damaged and/or a greater risk to the“railway.

Under exceptional circumstances, IE may consider such utility services where they'¢an be proven
to not interfere with the maintenance, renewal or potential development of any infrastruciure.

Third Party Utility Services at Railway Underbridges

Where utility services are proposed to go through an underbridge they shall be buried in the ground
beneath the bridge.

Where it is proposed and agreed to carry additional utility services on existing poles under a railway
bridge, any inspection, investigation, testing, maintenance and/or renewal works associated with the
bridge structures that may need to take place in the future and that therefore requires a removal,
either temporary or permanent, of the utility service, will be done so at the expense of the Licensee.
The requirement for this will be captured in the relevant Licence Agreement.

Where utility services are to be placed in the ground/road beneath an underbridge, the pipe/duct for
the utility service should be installed at a minimum horizontal distance from the bridge
abutments/pier of twice the depth below ground level of the pipe/duct (i.e. a slope of 1:2), refer to
figure 1(A).

Where 4.4.3 cannot be achieved, and where the depth of the foundations has been identified through
site investigations then the distance to the nearest abutment/pier must be twice the depth of the
maximum excavation below a level 1m higher than the level of the underside of the foundation, refer
to figure 1(B).

Figure 1 (A) and (B) — Shallow Trench Method at Underbridges, in the ground/road beneath
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4.5
45.1

45.2

45.3

454

4541

4542

4543

454.4

45.5

45.6
456.1

45.6.2

4.6
46.1

4.7
4.7.1

Third Party Utility Services at Railway Overbridges

Utility services may go underground through an overbridge subject to4here being adequate cover
below the surface. The definition of adequate is normally specified by the wutility company.

Where ducts are being installed in a footpath or verge over a bridge consideration must be given to
whether there will be an adverse effect on the height of the parapets.

Where the parapets are sub-standard then efforts must be made to reduce the levélnf the path or
verge to improve them, preferably to comply with standards. Refer to 4.5.4.

Where this is not possible then at the very least the height of the parapet must not be compremised
further. For the avoidance of doubt the required standards are:

There is an obligation under Section 50 of the Railway Clauses Consolidation Act 1845 to
maintain parapets at 4ft high and approach walls/fences at 3ft high

Certain concrete bridges renewed from around the 1980s were built with a 1.5m parapet and
this should be maintained where this has been done

Bridges over OHLE wires must have a parapet 1.8m high over the wires. The parapet must be
solid for at least the first 1.2m and may be mesh or perforated plate above that.

These dimensions must not be compromised by any works related to the installation of a service
or otherwise.

Where it is not possible, in the case of extreme technical difficulty, to maintain the existing parapet
height (e.g. a large sewage pipe where the railway is in a deep cutting and going under the railway
with a UTX would not be a practical solution) then a parapet extension may be considered but
consideration must be given to the protected or heritage status of the bridge.

Where this is not practical, consideration should be given to a separate structure to carry the pipe.

Utility services i.e. pipes, ducts or cables, must not be attached to the outside face or suspended
from the underside of any overbridge.

Pipes and ducts over track must have their own structure which would include a walkway to
allow inspection and maintenance.
Undertrack Pipe Lines and Ducts
In the case of undertrack pipe lines and ducts, reference shall be made to CCE-TMS-344
Requirements for Undertrack Crossings and Pressure Pipelines.
Level Crossings

Where Third Party utility services are to be installed at level crossings, they shall be routed
underground to cross under the track. Reference shall be made to CCE-TMS-344 Requirements for
Undertrack Crossings and Pressure Pipelines.

End of Standard
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Appendix A

Al
All

A.l.2

larnrod Eireann (IE) - Track Routes

Functional Location - Track Routes on the IE Network

Overhead cables may be permitted on particular lines in exceptional cases, wiere there are proven
very difficult technical circumstances and not at all on other stated lines. The 4ahle below outlines
where overhead cables are permitted or not permitted under any circumstances.

Lines on the IE network are described in terms of “Functional Location” which represents a spatial
area in this case a track route and/or section of track route. The functional location provided in the

table below is as defined in SAP and present on IAMS GIS.

Functional Location - Function Location - Track Route Are new overhead cables permitted

Track Route ID Description Permitted/Not Permitted? (Subject to
conditions)

IN-AW2WT Athenry to Tuam .
Permitted

IN-AW2WT Athlone to Westport )
Not permitted

IN-BI2NT . . . . .

Ballingrane Junction to Newcastle West Currently under Licence to Limerick Co. Co.

and soon to be sold to Limerick Co. Co.

IN-BY2KJ Ballybrophy to Killonan Junction .
Permitted

IN-BS2S0O . . . .

Broadstone to Sligo Not permitted - Liffey Jn to Sligo

Broadstone to Liffey Junction gone to Luas.

IN-CE2VW Carlow Branch Not permitted

IN-CM2FS Cement Factory Junction to Foynes Permitted

IN-CJ2EW Church Road Jct to East Wall Jct Not permitted (DART)

IN-CS2CC Claremorris to Collooney Permitted

IN-CL2PC Clonsilla to Pace Not permitted (DART)

IN-CY2BD Connolly to Border Not permitted (DART)

IN-CY2BJ Connolly to Suburban Jctn Not permitted (DART)

IN-CK2CH Cork to Cobh Not permitted

IN-DA2TM Drogheda to Tara Mines Not permitted - between Navan Station and
Tara Mines Junction

IN-EJ2AT Ennis Junction to Athenry Permitted

IN-GE2YL Glountaune to Youghal Not permitted - Glountaune to Midleton,
Permitted - Midleton to Youghal

IN-GS2WR GSWR Not permitted (DART)

IN-HN2CK Heuston to Cork Not permitted (DART)

IN-HI2HT Howth Junction to Howth Not permitted (DART)

IN-KK2WWwW Kilkenny to Waterford Not permitted

IN-KL2TL Killarney to Tralee Not permitted

IN-KM2WW Kilmacthomas to Waterford West Permitted

IN-LC2CF Limerick to Cement Factory Permitted

IN-LK2WW Limerick to Waterford Not permitted - Limerick to Limerick Junction,
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Functional Location - Function Location - Track Route Are new overhead cables permitted

Track Route ID Description Permitted/Net Permitted? (Subject to
conditions)
Permitted - Limeri<i<lunction to Waterford

IN-MW2KL Mallow to Killarney Not permitted

IN-MJ2BA Manulla Junction to Ballina Not permitted

IN-MG2WR MGW Not permitted (DART)
Permitted Mullingar to Athlone (under licence
to Westmeath Co Co).

IN-MR2GY Mullingar to Athlone Not permitted - from Athlone to Galway

IN-MR2GY Athlone to Galway Not permitted

IN-NR2AJ New Ross to Abbey Junction Permitted

IN-NT2TL Newcastle West to Tralee Sold to Kerry Co. Co. and under Licence to
Limerick Co. Co. and soon to be sold to
Limerick Co. Co.

IN-NJ2CY Newcomen Jct to Connolly Not permitted (DART)

IN-OR2NS Ossary Road Jct to North Strand Jct Not permitted (DART)

IN-PS2CY Pearse to Connolly Not permitted (DART)

IN-PS2SJ Pearse to Shanganagh Jct Not permitted (DART)

IN-PN2AE Portarlington to Athlone Not permitted

IN-RS2WX Rosslare Strand to Wexford Not permitted

IN-SJ2WX Shanganagh Junction to Wexford Not permitted (Note: DART section from
Shanganagh to 17 1/2 MP)

IN-SQ2SQ Sligo Quay Permitted

IN-TI2KT Tara Junction to Kingscourt Not permitted - between Tara Mines Junction
and the South end of the Tara Mines tailings
ponds otherwise permitted

IN-TS2TS Tegral Sidings (Athy) Abandoned and disposed of to Kildare Co Co

IN-TL2FT Tralee to Fenit Sold to Kerry Co. Co.

IN-TU2CS Tuam to Claremorris Permitted

IN-WW2RO Waterford to Rosslare Europort Not permitted - through Waterford to 77MP and
from Rosslare Strand to Rosslare Europort,
otherwise permitted

IN-WR2SD West Rd Jct to Docklands Not permitted (DART)
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CCE DEPARTMENT

TECHNICAL MANAGEMENT STANDARD

CCE-TMS-344

Requirements for Undertrack Crossings and Pressure
Pipelines

This CCE Department Technical Standard sets out the requirements for undertrack crossings
and pressure pipelines.

This CCE Department Technical Document is mandatory.

The principles in this Technical Standard are approved by the Head of Department and
therefore constitute mandatory standard practices, which apply throughout the CCE
Department.

Signed Chief Civil Engineer

This standard, along with all CCE Department Standards, is available from the CCE Website.
Electronic copies of the standards are controlled and live. Holders of printed copies of the
standard are responsible themselves for ensuring that they have the most up to date version
as appropriate.

This is a Controlled Document, as presented on-line.

It is Uncontrolled if printed, unless endorsed
on this page with the approved and completed
‘Controlled Copy label’/stamp.
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1.1

Policy, Scope and Principles

Policy

1.1.1 The design and installation of undertrack crossings and pressurelpipelines within

1.2

Iarnréd Eireann infrastructure must avoid, as far as possible, any adverse impact on
the railway infrastructure or operations.

Scope

1.2.1 This standard covers the requirements for the installation of undertrack crossings

1.3

and/or pressure pipelines in or near Iarnréd Eireann property by third parties or
others. It includes an outline of the approval process for third parties.

Principles

1.3.1 This standard is compulsory for all Departments within Iarnréd Eireann and for third

parties intending to install services in or near Iarnréd Eireann property.

1.3.2 This standard should be read with reference to the following:

1.3.2.1
1.3.2.2
1.3.2.3
1.3.2.4
1.3.3

1.3.3.1
1.3.3.2
1.3.3.3
1.3.3.4
1.3.3.5
1.3.4

1.3.5

1.3.6

1.3.7
1.3.8

1.3.9

1.3.10
1.3.11

I-DEP-0120 Guidance on Third Party Works

I-DEP-0121 Third Party Works: Additional Details of Railway Safety Requirements
CCE-TRK-SPN-008 Specification for Hollow Steel Sleepers for Use in Plain Track
CCE-TRK-SPN-010 Specification for Movement Monitoring of Railway Track

Before any works by or on behalf of a third party can commence, the requirements of
I-DEP-0120 and I-DEP-0121 must be satisfied including the following issues:

Engineering approval
Legal agreement(s)
Insurance

Safety requirements
Costs

The first 2000 mm under the top of rail is reserved for Iarnréd Eireann maintained
services. Third party services must be installed below this level to the depths
prescribed in this standard. Iarnréd Eireann reserves the right to be able to excavate
up to 2000 mm below top of rail level without notification to any third party.

In addition to the clearance requirements noted in 1.3.4 above, third parties must
install their services so that the clearances to them accord with their own standards
for the required distance between these services and an unsupervised and un-notified
excavation in the 2000 mm reserved depth.

Internal undertrack crossings in this standard refer to those being undertaken for
Iarnréd Eireann services only.

Internal undertrack crossings may be installed at a depth of 1500-2000 mm.

Hollow bearers may only be used for track crossings for SET Department cables and
must not be used for station and other services not maintained by the SET
Department.

The Senior Track and Structures Engineer (STSE) may appoint an larnréd Eireann
Designated Representative (IEDR) in accordance with I-DEP-0120 and I-DEP-0121 for
all stages or part of the works. References in this standard to STSE also include IEDR
where appointed.

This document replaces I-PWY-1139 which is now withdrawn.

Terms such as “his” or “manager” are not gender specific.
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2

2.1
2.1.1

2.1.2
2.1.3
2.1.4

2.1.5

2.1.6
2.1.7

2.1.8

2.1.9

Definitions

Standard-Specific Definitions

The established definitions of all permanent way terminology used.-in standards and
procedures are set out in CCE-TMS-399 Glossary of Civil and™~Permanent Way
Engineering Terms. The definitions below are of particular relevance to this standard.

Access Manhole - Structure provided to give access to the service.
Compaction - Deliberate densification of soil during the construction process.

Embedment - Arrangement and types of materials around a buried pipeline that
contribute to its structural performance.

Iarnréd léireann Designated Representative (IEDR) - The person appointed by
Iarnréd Eireann as the main engineering contact with a third party for a specific
project.

High Pressure Pipe - Means pressures above 7 bar.

Minimum Depth for Undertrack Crossings - Depth of the service measured from
the top of rail to the top of the highest part of the surround, pipe, sleeve or tunnel.
The minimum depth applies within the track support zone.

Open-Cut Method - Method used to construct an undertrack crossing in a trench
excavated by hand or by machine.

Pressure Pipeline - A pipeline containing a liquid or gas at a pressure greater than
1 bar above atmospheric pressure.

2.1.10 Rail Level - The level of the top of the lowest rail above the undertrack crossing.

2.1.11 Service - A cable, pipe or pipeline laid or constructed by any method.

2.1.12 Third Party - Any organisation other than Iarnréd Eireann or CIE, including public

utilities and statutory authorities, which requires to do work that impacts the railway.
This refers to the third party or its agents, consultants, representatives or contractors
(including sub-contractors).

2.1.13 Track Support Zone - The zone in which any excavation could undermine the

stability of the track.
Figure: Track Support Zone

Ballast

Track Support Zone
Seeper

Soil Profile

Typical cutting slope

Sope 12
\ Track Support Zone

No excavation permitted in thisarea
without the express permission of the
Company's Engineer.

i

Typical embankment slope
Sope 12

2.1.14 Undertrack Crossing - A service passing under the track below the level of the

underside of the sleepers or track slab.
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3

3.1
3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.3.1
3.1.3.2

3.1.3.3

3.1.4

3.2
3.2.1
3.2.2
3.2.2.1
3.2.2.2

3.3
3.3.1

3.3.2
3.3.3

3.4
3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.3.1

Accountabilities and Responsibilities

The full listing of CCE Management Accountabilities and Responsibilities is shown in
CCE-SMS-001 CCE Safety Management System. The following<accountabilities and
responsibilities are specific to this CCE Standard.

Chief Civil Engineer (CCE)

The Chief Civil Engineer (CCE) has overall accountability for this technical”standard
and its implementation.

The CCE is accountable for setting Occupational Safety, Plant & Machinery Safety,
Track Safety and Structures Safety objectives and for providing resources to all parts
of the CCE Department to achieve those objectives.

The CCE is accountable for:
Occupational Safety of all activities in the whole CCE Department, and for

Plant & Machinery Safety of all the activities in the CCE Department and on all the
work sites under the CCE Department’s control, and for

Track Safety, Structures Safety, the Safety of Buildings & Facilities and the Safety
of all the CCE assets under the CCE Department’s control.

The Chief Civil Engineer is accountable for owning this technical standard or assigning
an owner for the standard from his senior management team.
Technical Manager, CCE
The Technical Manager, CCE, is the owner of this standard.
The Technical Manager, CCE is accountable for ensuring that:
This standard is implemented through an appropriate review programme.
This standard is sufficient for its stated requirement with respect to the design and
installation of undertrack crossings and pipelines
Senior Track and Structures Engineer (STSE)

The Senior Track and Structures Engineer (STSE) is accountable for Track Safety and
Structures Safety for those parts of the Iarnrdéd Eireann railway network within the
CCE Locations that are his accountability.

The STSE must be familiar with the content of this technical standard.

The STSE is accountable for ensuring that undertrack crossings and pressure pipelines
are constructed in accordance with this standard.

Infrastructure Manager (or Nominated Regional Manager)

The Infrastructure Manager is responsible for all aspects of the management of
production activities within his Division.

The Infrastructure Manager, or Nominated Regional Manager, is accountable for all
the aspects of Track Safety, Structures Safety, Plant & Machinery Safety and
Occupational Safety of all the production operations and supplier operations
associated with the CCE locations under his control.

With regard to this standard, the Infrastructure Manager, or Nominated Regional
Manager, is accountable for:

Ensuring that tasks are executed in a manner that is in accordance with this
technical standard and ensures the safe operation of the Track and Structures
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3.4.3.2

3.4.3.3

Ensuring that production activities required as a result of this standard are
planned, scheduled and controlled such that only technically competent manpower
and the correct resources are used and that the activities are undertaken in a
timely manner

Following the instructions and technical advice of the Senior Track.and Structures
Engineer as necessary

3.4.3.4 Reviewing the progress of all the actions associated with this standard,with the

3.5
3.5.1

3.5.2

Senior Track and Structures Engineer

Further Accountabilities and Responsibilities

Section 4, Implementation, of this standard describes further the specific
accountabilities, responsibilities and duties required under this standard.

Staff ensure that any difficulties with the implementation of this standard are brought
to the attention of the Technical Manager, CCE.
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4 Implementation

4.1 Approval Process for Third Party Undertrack Crossings

4.1.1 Design and construction proposals (including temporary works) musthe submitted as
set out in I-DEP-0120 Guidance on Third Party Works in line with the requirements
there for major or minor impact projects.

4.1.2 Approval processes depend on the technical complexity and risks associatec-with the
project. A water pipe of 300 mm or less is likely to be treated as a minortimpact
project. Pressurised gas pipelines are more likely to be treated as major irripact
projects.

4.1.3 Submissions must include the following specific information relating to undertrack
crossings and pressure pipelines:

4.1.3.1 Type of service (e.g. sleeve, duct or carrier pipe)

4.1.3.2 Pipeline diameter, design pressure, material and applicable standards

4.1.3.3 Design shown to be in compliance with the requirements of this standard

4.1.3.4 Plan and cross-section at location showing depth below track

4.1.3.5 Proposed markers

4.1.3.6  Results of the site investigation

4.1.3.7  Settlement prediction and movement monitoring

4.1.3.8 Corrosion protection including monitoring arrangements

4.1.3.9 The location, size and depth of any manholes

4.1.3.10 Arrangements in the event of abandonment

4.1.4 All third party design submissions for undertrack crossings must be subject to an
independent check, and Design and Check Certificates must be provided.

4.2 General Engineering Considerations

4.2.1 A suitable site investigation must be undertaken to establish ground conditions. The
results must be provided as part of submissions during the approval process.
Additional site investigations must be arranged if required by the Senior Track and
Structured Engineer (STSE).

4.2.1.1  The design of the undertrack crossing must take account of:
4.2.1.2 Imposed loads

4.2.1.3 Ground conditions

4.2.1.4 Earthworks, structures and services likely to be affected

4.2.1.5 Monitoring and maintenance requirements for the projected lifetime
4.2.1.6 Future abandonment and/or decommissioning

4.2.2 As far as is reasonably practicable, an undertrack crossing with a pressure pipeline
must not be constructed in a location with adverse ground conditions, such as:

4.2.2.1 Areas subject to subsidence
4.2.2.2 Areas of mineral extraction
4.2.2.3 Peat deposits below the pipeline

4.2.3 In relation to pressure pipelines, consideration must be given in the design and
construction to the following risks:

4.2.3.1 Damage to the pipeline from derailment
4.2.3.2 Fire
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4.2.3.3 Pollution
4.2.3.4 Explosion

4.2.3.5 Use of increased pressures during testing

4.3
4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.3.1

Settlement Prediction and Movement Monitoring

The design of undertrack crossings must include a settlement prediction vhich should
cover the effect of the pipe installation and also the effect of the constkliction of
ancillary works, such as thrust and reception pits, where they impinge on the-track
support zone.

The STSE will undertake a review of the proposed design settlement prediction and
determine if the amber thresholds specified in CCE-TRK-SPN-010 Specification for
Movement Monitoring of Railway Track are breached when compared to the existing
track condition.

Where these thresholds are breached, the design of the undertrack crossing must be
revisited to bring the predicted levels back below these thresholds. This may involve
the following:

Changing the method of tunnelling,

4.3.3.2 Changing the location of the undertrack crossing, either vertically or horizontally,

4.3.3.3

to more suitable ground conditions,

Undertaking the entire construction of the undertrack crossing under possession,
or

4.3.3.4  Other changes as advised by the STSE.

4.3.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

4.4
4.4.1

4.4.2
4.4.3

4.4.4

4.4.5

Temporary Speed Restrictions should not be used as a mitigation for predicted amber
or red threshold breaches.

Whether the predicted settlement breaches a threshold or not, track monitoring must
take place in accordance with CCE-TRK-SPN-010. This requirement may be waived at
the discretion of the STSE if the undertrack crossing is very deep and well within a
rock layer.

Track monitoring should take place before the commencement of the tunnelling
process (or before/during the construction of any ancillary works within the track
support zone) as specified in CCE-TRK-SPN-010. Monitoring should continue during
tunnelling works and for at least one week after the work is complete unless
settlement is continuing in which case the monitoring should continue for at least one
week after such settlement ceases to be a concern.

For any breach of amber or red thresholds resulting from site works, the relevant
follow-up actions should be identified as part of the method statement for the works
and should include placing a speed restriction, ceasing work until any resultant track
defect is corrected and possible reviewing of designs and/or work methods.

Design Loading

All pipes, sleeves, ducts, and surrounds within the track support zone must be
designed to carry the imposed dead and live loads.

The design axle load must be taken as 250 kN with a dynamic factor of 2.0.

Where appropriate, the design of temporary works must afford adequate support to
the tracks.

The design adopted must be such that construction may be carried out safely and
ensure that the design assumptions will be satisfied regarding the influence of
construction procedures and soil characteristics.

The density of track ballast must be taken as 21 kN/m?.
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4.4.6

4.4.7

4.4.7.1

4.4.7.2

4.4.8

4.5
4.5.1

4.5.2

4.5.3

4.5.4

4.5.5

4.5.6
4.5.7

4.5.8

4.5.8.1

4.5.8.2

4.5.8.3

It may be assumed that only one half of an axle load, applied to the rails at a sleeper,
will be transmitted to the formation below that sleeper, and that the remaining half
will be transmitted to the formation equally through the sleepets on either side.

Each wheel load may be assumed to be uniformly distributed over; the ballast at the
underside of the sleeper:

Longitudinally - over a distance of 450 mm symmetrically about the-¢entre line of
each rail, or

Transversely — over twice the distance from the centre line of each rail to-the end
of the sleeper.

Dispersal of each wheel load through the ballast must be taken at a slope of 1:4 to
the vertical.

Position of Crossings, Manholes, Joints and Welds

As far as is practicable, all undertrack crossings must cross in a direction at right
angles to the rails. The Senior Track and Structures Engineer may, at his discretion,
allow crossings within 10 degrees of this standard.

The minimum horizontal clearance must be 3 m between an undertrack crossing and
the nearest electrified overhead line equipment mast, signal post, signal gantry,
CCTV, AHB barriers or other structure.

Clearance to bridge foundations for trenchless crossings should be considered. As a
guideline, clearances to bridge foundations for trenchless crossings should be 20 m,
but reference should be made to the potential effect subsidence may have on the
structure.

Third party open-cut crossings through underbridges may be allowed where the depth
of the bottom of the excavation for the crossing is at most half the distance from the
nearest abutment/pier (e.g. the distance to abutment is 2000 mm, the max depth
excavation is 1000 mm). Otherwise, extensive site investigations may be required to
determine the depth and efficacy of the bridge foundations.

Third party services are only allowed to pass through existing culverts with the
written permission of the Technical Manager, CCE.

Inspection chambers and manholes must be located outside the railway fences.

There must be no joints or welds under any track. The closest weld or joint must be
at least 2.3 m horizontally from the nearest rail.

Where two or more separate pipes are to be installed at the one location (but not
within the one duct):

The closest distance between the pipes should be a minimum of twice the
diameter of the larger/largest pipe.

Consideration should be given to axle spacing of the rolling stock on the line and
the possibility of one pipe causing settlement of one rail and another pipe causing
settlement of the other rail leading to twist at or close to the bogie spacings. (It is
recommended that twin pipes should be spaced at a minimum 5 m spacing as a
guidance unless it can be shown that the combined settlement effect of the two
pipes will not breach threshold values at the spacing of the bogies on a carriage,
or the axles of a two-axle wagon where the latter is still used.)

Consideration should be given to installing the first pipe and comparing the
settlement with predicted settlements before proceeding with any further pipes.
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4.6
4.6.1

Undertrack Crossings: Construction Techniques and Minimum Depths

Undertrack crossings must be installed so that they do nct -adversely affect the
bearing capacity and drainage of the formation.

4.6.2 The first 2000 mm below the top of rail is reserved for Iarnréd Eireafin services. Third

party undertrack crossings are not permitted in this reserved zone. Refer-also to 1.3.4

to 1.3.7 for further restrictions that apply.
4.6.3 Open-Cut Methods and Minimum Depths

4.6.3.1

4.6.3.2

4.6.3.3

4.6.3.4

4.6.3.5

4.6.3.6

4.6.3.7

Undertrack crossings constructed using open-cut methods are not norfally
permitted for third party services. A written application for a derogation in an
exceptional case may be submitted for consideration to the Technical Manager,
CCE.

Where undertrack crossings by open-cut are permitted, clauses 4.6.3.3 to 4.6.3.7
apply.

The minimum depth of crossings laid by open-cut methods below top of rail is
1500 mm with an absolute minimum depth of 1200 mm as shown in Figure 1
below.

Open-cut crossings installed at a depth less than 1500 mm may only take place
with the written permission of the STSE.

Open-cut crossings must not affect ballast cleaning and routine ballast excavation
must take place without interference with the crossing. (See Figure 1 which shows
the depth required for the ballast cleaning blade.)

Open-cut crossings must not be installed lower than 2000 mm below top of rail
level.

Open-cut crossings must be reinstated in 150 mm layers of suitably compacted
clause 804 material up to a level 350 mm below the underside of the sleepers. At
that level a suitable fines barrier (geotextile) should be applied, covered in 50 mm
of sand or equivalent separation layer. The ballast should then be added in
compacted 150 mm layers to the underside of the sleepers. Following restoration
of the sleepers to their appropriate position, the boxes must be re-filled with
ballast and compacted, and the ballast shoulder reinstated to full height.

4.6.4 Trenchless Techniques and Minimum Depths

4.6.4.1

4.6.4.2

4.6.4.3

4.6.4.4

Undertrack crossings constructed using trenchless techniques must have a
minimum depth of 4500 mm below top of rail level to crown of pipe to ensure that
appropriate clearances are maintained to Iarnrdd Eireann services and to minimise
settlement effects.

Any requirement for an undertrack trenchless crossing at a depth less than 4500
mm must be referred in writing to the Technical Manager, CCE.

The STSE may require third party or other services to be deeper in the following
circumstances:

a) If there are more favourable ground conditions at a lower depth,
b) If there is a risk of electromagnetic interference with Iarnréd Eireann services,

c) In the case of pipelines under pressure, if there is a risk of wash-away or
explosion in the case of a leak, or

d) For any other reason he determines to be appropriate.

Undertrack crossings using trenchless techniques should not be located through
made-up embankments due to the unknown nature of the fill material.
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Figure 1: Positions for Buried Cables
(required for ballast cleaner operation)
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4.7
4.7.1

4.7.2

4.7.3

4.7.4

4.8
4.8.1

4.8.2

4.8.3

4.8.4

4.9
4.9.1

4.9.2

4.9.3

Corrosion Protection

Pipelines must be designed and routed to take account of’the possible corrosive
effects of traction or track circuit current in the track, high-voitage overhead power
lines, stray earth currents etc.

External pipe coatings must have suitable mechanical and electrical properties in
relation to the pipe size, environment, and operating conditions.

Where corrosion protection is proposed, details of the protection schemé’must be
submitted to the STSE. These should prove the scheme’s integrity as welivas its
cathodic protection.

Monitoring procedures must be specified and put in place to ensure that the measures
adopted are satisfactory.

Pipe Bedding

Pipelines constructed using the open-cut method must be laid so that the barrel is
continuously supported and completely surrounded by concrete or granular fill as
determined by the design.

If the nature of the ground at the base of the trench is such that it will not itself
provide adequate support, the thickness of the lower bedding must be designed to
ensure adequate support along the length of the pipeline.

Where pipes are installed in soft ground, the thickness of the lower bedding may need
to be increased in order to prevent excessive settlement of the pipeline. The thickness
of the upper bedding must be sufficient to ensure that the bending moments in the
pipe are acceptable.

Where the trench contains rocks or stones, a 150 mm thickness of sand or other
suitable material must be placed beneath the pipe. Alternatively, a suitable coating
may protect the pipe.

Concrete Surround

Where applicable, a concrete surround should provide a minimum 150 mm cover
around the ducts, pipes or sleeve.

Concrete surrounds must extend for the full width of the trench within the track
support zone.

Except where it is otherwise agreed with the STSE, the concrete surround must
further extend as far as the inspection chambers.

4.10 Granular Fill Surround

4.10.1 Granular fill as a surround to ducts, sleeves, or pipes must be in accordance with

Table 1.

Table 1: Materials for Granular Surround and Backfilling
Nominal Duct Graded Aggregate Single Sized Aggregate
Diameter (mm) Ranges (mm) Sizes (mm)

<140 - 10
140 to 400 20to 5,0r14to 5 10, or 14, or 20
>400 40to 5,0r20to 5,0r14to 5 10, or 14, or 20, or 40

4.11 Backfilling

4.11.1 Backfilling above the concrete or granular fill surround, and up to the level of

formation, must also be in accordance with Table 1.

4.11.2 Backfilling must be placed in layers not exceeding 150 mm thickness and each layer

must be mechanically compacted as determined by design.
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4.12 Thrust Boring

4.12.1 The equipment and method for carrying out thrusting must previde a lined bore with
the sleeve or carrier pipe completely filling the void formed by the thrusting
equipment. Alternatively, any voids must be filled with an approved/cement grout.

4.12.2 Joints in pipes used as sleeves in thrust bores must have a capacity té.iesist axial and
bending stresses equal to that of a continuous pipe.

4.13 Thrust and Reception Pits

4.13.1 Where practicable, thrust and reception pits must be located outside the rallway
boundaries.

4.13.2 Thrust and reception pits must be located outside the track support zone (refer to
4.3.1).

4.13.3 The hole in the support wall of the thrust pit, to permit the pipe to be thrust, must
only be cut immediately prior to commencement of the thrusting operation.
Conversely, the hole in the support wall of the reception pit must not be cut until the
cutting shield, pipe or sleeve has arrived at the support wall to the reception pit.

4.14 Construction Using Moling Techniques

4.14.1 The line and level of the mole must be monitored to ensure that the minimum depth
and alignment limits are not infringed during the construction.

4.14.2 Where the results of the monitoring indicate that either of these limits may be
infringed, the mole must be withdrawn and construction recommenced with applicable
actions put in place, as agreed by the STSE, to ensure that no repetition of the
infringement occurs.

4.15 Monitoring of Excavated Material

4.15.1 During construction of an undertrack crossing constructed by any method other than
the open-cut method, the quantity of material excavated must be monitored to
ensure that the volume is compatible with the progress of the work.

4.15.2 Should the excavated volume appear not to be compatible with the progress of the
work, work must cease until actions have been taken to the satisfaction of the STSE
to ensure the stability of the fill around the undertrack crossing.

4.15.3 During the construction works, movement monitoring of the railway track will be
required. This must be carried out as per CCE-TRK-SPN-010 Specification for
Movement Monitoring of Railway Track.

4.16 Boundary Fences, Drains, Roads, Walkways and Ramps

4.16.1 There must be no interference with fences, drains, roads, walkways, access ramps or
other property except as agreed with the STSE.

4.16.2 Any loss or damage arising from the works must be made good and all rubble, litter
and debris must be promptly removed.

4.16.3 All road pavements which have been disturbed must be reinstated to the Department
of the Environment Specification for Road Works.
4.17 Explosives

4.17.1 Explosives must not be used without the written permission of the STSE.
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4.18 Abandonment

4.18.1 When a third party service is no longer in use, the service owner must advise Iarnréd
Eireann and arrange to disconnect and make the service safe, This includes, as
required:

4.18.1.1 Complete purging of the pipe and maintenance of cathodic protection, or

4.18.1.2 Filling of the void with inert material to prevent future collapse.

4.18.2 The third party must remove the abandoned pipe where this is required by-JTarnrod
Eireann on safety grounds.

4.19 Marker Plates

4.19.1 Permanent marker plates must be provided at both ends of an undertrack crossing on
precast concrete marker posts or attached to an adjacent structure or building. The
design of the marker plates must be agreed with the STSE. Information to be
provided on the marker plate must include:

4.19.1.1 Position of the undertrack crossing in relation to the marker

4.19.1.2 Depth of the undertrack crossing measured from rail level to the top of the duct,
sleeve, pipe or surround and, where applicable, advice that no warning tape has
been installed

4.19.1.3 Number of ducts, where applicable

4.19.1.4 Details of the services installed in the undertrack crossing including, where
applicable, cable designations and location of cables in the ducts

4.19.1.5 Emergency contact point and telephone number

4.19.1.6 When the service in the undertrack crossing is owned by a third party, the name
and address of the company owning the service

4.20 Records/Information

4.20.1 On completion of the construction of a third party undertrack crossing or pipeline, a
copy of the Safety File must be provided as outlined in I-DEP-0120 Guidance on Third
Party Works. This must include records containing the following information:

4.20.1.1 Location of the undertrack crossing, including map references, engineer’'s line
reference (ELR) and mileage

4.20.1.2 Where applicable, a buried cable chart referenced to identifiable reference points

4.20.1.3 Depth of the undertrack crossing, measured from rail level to the top of the duct
or surround

4.20.1.4 Construction details including cross-sections of the undertrack crossing, the
number and type of ducts, pipes or sleeve, type of backfill and/or size of surround
and material of reinstatement

4.20.1.5 Where applicable, construction details and locations of access manholes

4.20.1.6 Maintenance procedures (including emergency contacts and procedures) as may
be appropriate for the undertrack crossing or pipeline
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5 Revision History

Version No and Date

Section No and Reason for Change

1.1, 04/02/2013

Briefing document for version 1.0 applies |
to version 1.1 along with amendment and
addition below

Amended clause: 4.6.3.1
Additional clause: 4.6.4.2

Vertical lines denote change from I-PWY-
1139 to version 1.1 of this technical
document

1.0, 01/02/2013

First issue. This standard replaces I-PWY-
1139 which has now been withdrawn.

End of Standard
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1 POLICY AND PRINCIPLES

1.1 Policy

1.1.1 All work carried out adjacent to, or under or over the railway, or which
may have a direct or indirect impact on the railway must be carried out
in a safe manner that safeguards the interests of Iarnrdd Eireann (IE).

This includes minimising the general impact on the railway, and

minimising the safety risk to the railway and personnel.

1.2 Principles

1.2.1 Iarnréd Eireann requires all third parties, their consultants, contractors
and agents acting on their behalf to identify, assess and control risks in
the design and construction of those works that are carried out on or
near the railway.

2 DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

2.1.1 The following definitions and abbreviations apply to the terms below as
used in this standard.

2.1.2 Persons connected with third party activity:

 Iarnréd Eireann Designated Representative (IEDR) - The
person appointed by Iarnréd Eireann (IE) to be the specific point of
contact with the third party at the particular stage(s) of the project.
The role of the IEDR may be carried out by a different person for
different stages of the work. The IEDR may also delegate his/her
responsibilities to other persons at particular phases of the work.

e OHLE Nominated Person - The person authorised by IE to issue
or cancel Permits to Work and perform switching, Isolation, and
earthing operations in relation to the OHLE.

¢ Project Supervisor Construction Stage (PSCS) - A person or
entity appointed in writing by the third party (as client) to be
Project Supervisor for the Construction Stage for each project. The
PSCS is responsible for managing and coordinating the safety and
health issues on site for the construction phase in accordance with
the Safety Health and Welfare at Work (Construction) Regulations
2006.

¢ Project Supervisor Design Process (PSDP) - A person or entity
appointed in writing by the third party (as client) to be Project
Supervisor for the Design Process. The PSDP is responsible for
coordination of the work of designers in relation to the safety and
health issues for the project in accordance with the Safety Health
and Welfare at Work (Construction) Regulations 2006.

* Railway Protection Representative (RPR) - The person
appointed by IE to issue instructions on railway protection to third
party personnel when they are on or near the line.

* Site Safety Monitor - A person who may be appointed by IE to
monitor IE’s safety interests in respect of third party works.
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e Third Party - An external party who requires to carry,out work that
impacts on the railway. A third party as set out in this standard may
refer to the third party itself or its agents, consultants,
representatives or contractors (including sub-contractors).

¢ Third Party Coordinator - Iarnrdd Eireann member of staff wiio
coordinates the major impact projects in the pre-construction
(approvals) phases, and may be the IEDR for those phases (see I-
DEP-0120 for a definition of a major impact project).

¢ Third Party Desighated Representative (TPDR) - A competent
person nominated in writing by the third party to be the specific
point of contact with the IEDR at the particular stage(s) of the
project. The identity of this person is given in the method statement
and may change depending on the role during the different phases
of the work. Appendix E Handover/Handback Arrangements sets out
specific competency requirements for the TPDR responsible for the
safe completion of site handover/handback arrangements.

2.1.3 Railway and equipment definitions:

e IE - Iarnrdd Eireann

e Isolation - This occurs when the OHLE is isolated (i.e. with power
switched off) and earthed in a particular section

e Lineside - Works that are within the space between the railway
boundary and 3 metres (10 feet) from the nearest rail

e OHLE - Overhead line equipment (DART overhead electric power
lines)

e Possession - Special arrangements to control the movement of
trains

e PPE - personal protective equipment

e PTS - personal track safety, as in Contractor PTS Certificate

3 INTRODUCTION

3.1 This Standard

3.1.1 This standard contains detailed safety information for third parties in
the planning, design and construction phases of a project that impacts
on the railway.

3.1.2 This standard complements the information provided in I-DEP-0120
Guidance on Third Party Works which should be read in conjunction
with this standard. I-DEP-0120 provides information on project types,
who to contact, the application procedure, the Railway Safety
Commission approval process, method statement guidelines and other
details.

3.1.3 In relation to safety considerations, this standard (I-DEP-0121)
contains:

e Guidance on the hazards, risks and control measures associated
with working in a railway environment
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¢ What to focus on during the design phase
¢ Necessary steps during the construction phase
e Post-construction requirements
3.1.4 The appendices give information on:
e Risks associated with works on or near railway lines
e Specific site safety requirements
e Key aspects of railway protection arrangements
¢ Safety requirements when working in the OHLE area
e Handover/handback arrangements
e Contractor Personal Track Safety (PTS) training arrangements
e Completion certificates
e The required contents of a Safety File
¢ The requirements for a Safety Management System
3.1.5 Please note:

1. Iarnréd Eireann (IE) is concerned with the risks arising directly from
works insofar as they affect the railway. In addition to those risks
which arise from work on or near the line, risks to the railway can
also arise from works some distance away (e.g. deep excavation,
basements, drainage, works affecting water table, tower cranes).

2. IE requires all the activities that pose risk to the railway to be
included in the safety information presented in the various
submissions made to it.

3. IE does not require information on construction activities off its
property that clearly pose no risk to the railway. The relevant
Iarnréd Eireann Designated Representative (IEDR) should be
contacted for clarification if there is any doubt.

4. This standard sets out guidelines to cover a range of foreseen
activities. Each third party project will have particular requirements
that may not be specifically covered here. IE will determine the
exact internal process and procedures for dealing with each project
on an individual basis. IE reserves the right to change any of the
requirements within this standard at its own discretion at any time.

5. Third parties are responsible for ensuring that their activities are
carried out in a safe manner and that they address all risks.

I-DEP-0121 Page 6 of 50
Issue 1.0



Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of

Railway Safety Requirements

4.1
4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2
4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

HAZARDS AND RISKS OF THE RAILWAY
ENVIRONMENT AND CONTROL MEASURES

The Railway Environment is Different

This standard concerns third party works that occur on or near railway
lines. It should be assumed that all lines have trains operating
throughout the day and night. The dangers of working on or near the
railway are in addition to those encountered elsewhere in a construction
environment.

The concept of train operation is that a route is available for a train to
run with a dedicated right of way between signals. A train cannot stop
in the same distance as a road vehicle for a given speed. For example,
a train travelling at 145 km/h (90 mph) requires 2 km to stop. The
operating rules required to operate a train safely are detailed, wide
ranging, and applied strictly and consistently. The operating rules are
different from those applicable in other sectors, including that of
construction. In particular, it should be noted that trains could be
passing through or near the site at speeds up to 160 km/h (100 mph).

This means that:

e All works must be carried out in a manner that ensures the
operation of the railway is safe at all times

¢ Appropriate arrangements must be in place for the safety of all
persons while they are working on or near railway property

Risks Associated with the Railway Environment

In addition to the normal risks arising from the construction activity,
works in the vicinity of the railway can introduce safety risk as follows:

e Risks to third parties arising from train movements

e Risks to railway personnel, operations and others due to third party
construction activity

¢ Risks to third parties arising from general hazards that may be
found on railway land

To assist the planners of third party works in eliminating these risks,
Appendix A sets out a non-exhaustive list of the risks and hazards that
may arise.

Risk to IE business is another issue that third party planners and
designers must consider and eliminate. This is where there is a risk of
IE train services being disrupted by the third party works. If there is
residual risk, the third party must take measures to control the risk to a
level acceptable to IE.
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4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

5.1
5.1.1

5.1.2

Control Measures to Deal with Risks Arising from
Construction Works in the Railway Environment

Normal construction safety procedures apply, particularly the Saiety
Health and Welfare at Work (Construction) Regulations 2006 (and zny
subsequent revisions or amendments) - henceforth referred to in this
document as the SHWW Construction Regulations 2006. Under these
regulations, the third party is required to prepare a Safety and Health
Plan in which it has identified railway-specific risks (among others) and
to address these risks using appropriate control measures when
designing a safe system of work.

The control measures that IE requires for third party works on or near
the railway have the objective of eliminating the risks indicated in
Section 4.2 above or of reducing these to a level acceptable to IE.
These control measures include setting up a site-specific Safety
Management System as outlined in Appendix I. A description of this
system must be submitted to IE as a high-level document (i.e. setting
out the overall processes but not all the details as these will be included
in the individual method statements). As part of the Safety
Management System, a safe system of work (set out in method
statements) must be established for the various stages of the works.
The Safety Management System will include elements of the following:

e Site safety requirements (see Appendix B)

e Railway protection arrangements (see Appendix C)

e Safety requirements in the OHLE area (see Appendix D)
e Handover/handback arrangements (see Appendix E)

In the method statement(s) it submits to IE for particular stages of the
works, the third party will be required to set out a safe system of work
addressing safety issues. The method statement(s) must detail specific
control measures to eliminate risks in relation to the railway-specific
works or reduce these to a level acceptable to IE. Each method
statement must also identify measures for recovery in case of
unplanned events that may affect train services.

The Iarnréd Eireann Designated Representative (IEDR), acting in
consultation with the Divisional Engineer, will in advance determine the
railway protection arrangements to be applied and the third party must
work within these imposed constraints. The railway protection
arrangements must be included in the safe system of work as set out in
the method statement prepared by the third party.

DESIGN STAGE

Safety Considerations

As referred to in this section, third parties include the third party itself
(as client, developer or promoter) and its consultants, designers, the
Project Supervisor Design Process (PSDP), or other agents/contractors
engaged by the third party.

At the beginning of the design stage, the third party must inform IE of
the personnel or entities (as given in 5.1.1) who will be carrying out the
various activities on its behalf during this stage.
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5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

5.1.7

5.1.8

5.1.9

5.1.10

5.1.11

The approval process for third party work is set out in I-DEP-0120
Guidance on Third Party Works and the third party must foliow the
process described therein. The additional information given ir this
section is provided specifically to assist the third party during the
design stage, with regard to IE safety requirements.

The third party must comply with the requirements of the Railway
Safety Act 2005. It must also comply with the requirements of the
Railway Safety Commission (RSC) and the Draft Guidelines for Design
of Railway Infrastructure and Rolling Stock (issued by the RSC).

The SHWW Construction Regulations 2006 identify duties for those
involved in construction projects and provide guidance for the safety
management of construction-related tasks. The third party is
responsible for compliance with the SHWW Construction Regulations
2006 in meeting the duties of the client.

The planning and design process of the third party must take account of
working in a railway environment when:

e Preparing the preliminary Safety and Health Plan and designing a
safe system of work

¢ Developing the Safety File

The third party develops the preliminary Safety and Health Plan for the
project during the design phase. The plan must take account of the
railway activities and the appropriate control measures. The site-
specific Safety Management System required by IE is likely to include
extracts from the Safety and Health Plan.

The submission for the preliminary design review, referred to in I-DEP-
0120 Guidance on Third Party Works, must include a risk assessment
concerned with the impact of the works on railway operations,
personnel and infrastructure, and the impact on the (third party) works
and personnel arising from train operations and any general hazards
that may exist on railway land. The submission for the detailed design
review must include a description of the proposed Safety Management
System (see Appendix I for detailed requirements).

Developers of projects that affect the railway will be asked to
demonstrate that their proposal has been designed to minimise impact
and risk to the railway. They will be expected to apply the general
principles of prevention during the various stages of design.

One of the main principles to be applied in the planning and design of
the project by the third party is to design out the safety risks to IE
where possible. If there is residual risk, the third party must take
measures to control the risk to a level acceptable to IE.

Third party planners, designers and contractors must also plan to
eliminate risk of damage to IE's infrastructure in the course of the
construction works.
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5.1.12

5.1.13

5.1.14

5.1.15

5.1.16

5.1.17

5.1.18

5.1.19

5.1.20

When projects are being developed, the third party and/op.jts designers
should be aware that works which affect train operations rr@y require
Possessions or other restrictions to train movements before the works
can proceed. Possessions, Isolations of the OHLE, speed restrictions, or
other restrictions are granted only in exceptional circumstances. The
third party must plan to complete any works that take place during a
Possession (and/or Isolation) and have contingency plans in place for
unforeseen events. Costs charged for overrunning the agreed handback
time of Possessions or Isolations and delaying trains are substantial.

The works must be designed in accordance with IE standards and
procedures. Design review procedures must comply with I-DEP-0120 or
as otherwise required by IE.

Designers of projects are advised to design for minimum site work and
to take account of the railway environment. In the case of a bridge over
the railway for example, the use of precast or prefabricated units is
essential as IE will not permit the use of shuttering and in-situ placing
of concrete over the railway.

When planning the works on site, third party designers or contractors
should endeavour to ensure, where practicable, that work is carried out
under fenced Green Zone conditions (see Appendix C.7.2), i.e. the work
is fenced off from train operations in compliance with Appendix B.5.

Designers must design for safe maintenance, taking into account the
hazards arising from working in the railway environment. Designers are
also advised to design for minimum maintenance, i.e. to reduce the
need for maintenance personnel to come on or near the line. This would
obviate the need (a) to obtain permission for maintenance work, (b) to
set up safety arrangements including railway protection if appropriate,
and (c¢) to enter and work in railway property. An example of design for
reduced maintenance might be the design choice of a precast concrete
bridge rather than a steel bridge as this would eliminate the need for
periodic painting. For a trackside structure, an example might be where
the access for maintenance does not require personnel to approach
from trackside.

Proposed maintenance activities for the structure must be submitted for
approval during the initial approval process and agreed by IE. Of
relevance are maintenance activities that are to be carried out on or
near IE property and/or which have the potential to affect IE railway
operations. The procedures for this type of work must be laid out
clearly and approved, including the process for entering IE property to
carry out the work. The PSDP must include this information (with
evidence of these approvals) in the Safety File.

It should be noted that temporary or enabling works are subject to the
same requirements as permanent works on or near railway.

Surveys or site investigation work required as part of the design
process must be arranged well in advance. Insurance details and
method statements for this survey work must be submitted at least 8
weeks in advance to the IEDR for approval.

All third party personnel who have to work in the vicinity of the railway
line are required to:

¢ Understand safety instructions in English
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5.1.21

6.1
6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.1.5

¢ Attend railway safety awareness training delivered by IE, namely a
Contractor Personal Track Safety (PTS) Training Courséfand be in
possession of a Contractor PTS Certificate

¢ Attend any other safety-related training as required by IE
e Be in possession of appropriate personal protective equipment (PRE)

The third party is advised to arrange for the Contractor PTS training
well in advance of the time its personnel are due to go on or near the
railway line, and to factor this into the project timescale. (See Appendix
F for details of training arrangements.)

CONSTRUCTION STAGE

Safety Considerations

Third parties in this section include the third party itself, its contractors,
the Project Supervisor Construction Stage (PSCS), Project Supervisor
Design Process (PSDP) or other agents, consultants or personnel
engaged by the third party.

Clear lines of communication are essential. The various personnel
involved must be clearly identified. At the beginning of this stage, IE
will inform the third party who the IEDR will be for the construction
stage of the work. The third party must in turn inform IE of the identity
of the PSCS. The PSCS then gives IE the names of the different third
party personnel and their roles and responsibilities in respect of matters
which affect railway safety. This includes the name of a competent
Third Party Designated Representative (TPDR) for the construction
stage of the work. It is recognised that there may be different TPDRs
for different stages of the work, depending on the circumstances.
Details of the third party personnel, including the TPDR(s), must be set
out in the site-specific Safety Management System which is submitted
to IE at this stage.

The construction stage cannot commence until the provisions of the
pre-construction arrangements have been complied with as set out in I-
DEP-0120 Guidance on Third Party Works and the necessary approvals
and legal agreements are in place. If all is in place, the IEDR may now
give agreement for the initial work to proceed and issue a written
communication granting Permission to Proceed to the third party.

Permission to Proceed is not a blanket approval to enter the railway.
The third party can only carry out the works with the specific
agreement of the IEDR for specific phases of the works, where the
relevant safety arrangements have been planned and set up in line with
the approved method statement for each stage of the works.

The main sequences for planning and carrying out the work are outlined
in Figure 1. (TP refers to third party; NP refers to Nominated Person.)
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Figure 1: The Construction Sequence
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6.2 Arrangements for the Works

6.2.1 The third party is advised to seek an early meeting with the relevant
IEDR to discuss the proposed works and the IE railway protection
requirements. Topics are likely to include construction methodology,
temporary works arrangements and track movement monitoring. The
content, type, timing and range of these railway protection
arrangements are entirely the decision of IE (see Appendix C for
general information on railway protection). The railway protection
arrangements must fit within the third party’s safe system of work for
which the third party is responsible (including its contractors and sub-
contractors).

6.2.2 At this stage, the third party submits to the IEDR an updated draft of
the document describing the site-specific Safety Management System.
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6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

6.2.9

If railway protection arrangements are required, Iarnréd Eireann, at its
sole discretion and subject to available resources, can decide to appoint
a Railway Protection Representative (RPR) to be in charge of-these
arrangements. Depending on the circumstances, the RPR may bé-an
ES, PIC, PICOP or TSC (see Appendix C.2 for more on these roles),/The
RPR will establish railway protection arrangements for the protection cf
those working on or near the line. All personnel concerned (including
the third party, its contractors, agents and sub-contractors) must
comply with the directions given by the RPR. Note that a different RPR
may be in place at different times.

If movement monitoring of railway track is required by IE (as per
Appendix F of I-DEP-0120 Guidance on Third Party Works), then at
least two weeks of readings are required in advance of the construction
works. The monitoring must be in accordance with the requirements set
down in I-DEP-0123 Third Party Works: Specification for Movement
Monitoring of Railway Track.

The third party must now submit 4 hard copies of the detailed method
statement to the IEDR for review. This must be in line with the
schedule set out in the document describing the third party’s proposed
site-specific Safety Management System. The time for IE to review each
formal method statement submission is likely to be a minimum of 8
weeks.

The method statement sets out the safe system of work for the
particular phase of the works in question. It contains hazard
identification, risk assessment and control measures. Appendix E of I-
DEP-0120 includes guidelines on method statements. Note that the
method statement submitted to IE should only contain information on
the railway-related activities of the planned work. If a bridge over the
railway is planned, for example, IE will only want details of the bridge
works, not details of the associated road project. In all projects,
however, anything that affects the railway must be included. Many
activities outside the railway boundary have the potential to affect the
safety of the railway.

The method statement must have a cover sheet outlining the content
and should show a revision humber that is quoted on each page. It
should be signed to indicate approval by the PSCS for the project and
the TPDR; it must also be signed by the designer of the works, both
temporary and permanent, as being consistent with the accepted
design. No works may take place until the IEDR signs for acceptance.

If the third party work is in the OHLE area, appropriate safety
arrangements must be in place. See Appendix D for procedures that
apply where work takes place near the OHLE and a Permit to Work is
required (the permit will be issued by an OHLE Nominated Person).

If there are temporary works, the temporary works certificate(s) must
be in place. See Appendix D of I-DEP-0120 Guidance on Third Party
Works.
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6.2.10

6.3
6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.4
6.4.1

6.4.2

If temporary handover of the railway workspace is given tg, the third
party to carry out works, the process set out in Appendix L&
Handover/Handback Arrangements must be followed. Note: The third
party is expected to have in place contingency plans and resouices
including personnel, with out-of-hour contacts, to ensure that, déspite
any problems or unforeseen events, the site can be handed back safely
and without disruption to IE train services. Details of these plans shoulg
be contained within the method statement.

Pre-Works Site Meeting

A pre-works meeting is held on site before commencement of the
works. For complex works projects, a series of these meetings may be
needed.

At this meeting, the TPDR will brief the IEDR on the site-specific Safety
Management System and demonstrate how it is to be put in place.

The third party (including its contractor and PSCS as appropriate) will
re-confirm with the IEDR (or his/her designated representative) the
safe system of work in the method statement for the immediate work
stage that is being undertaken. This will include confirming:

e The boundaries of the works relevant to the railway.
e The duration of the works.

e The required railway protection arrangements including the identity
of the RPR.

e The procedures to be applied if the work is in the OHLE area and if a
Permit to Work is required (see Appendix D). These details will
include the identity of the OHLE Nominated Person.

e The procedures to be applied for temporary works approval, if there
are temporary works (see Appendix D of I-DEP-0120 Guidance on
Third Party Works). Arrangements must be clarified if there is a
handover/handback process as per Appendix E of the current
standard.

Note that the third party (including its TPDR, PSCS and any third party
contractor) can only subsequently deviate in its work activities from
those set out in the method statement regarding railway protection
after acceptance of a revised method statement submitted to the IEDR.

Construction

The site must have safety arrangements as set out in Appendix B. On
commencement of the works, the third party must put its site-specific
Safety Management System in place.

On the day that the works are scheduled to start, the RPR will meet and
brief the TPDR and third party personnel who will be working on or near
the line on the railway protection arrangements. The RPR also will
confirm to the TPDR that the railway protection arrangements are in
place. If work is in the vicinity of the OHLE, the IE Nominated Person
will brief the TPDR on OHLE safety issues and issue a Permit to Work
for OHLE-related works, as appropriate.
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6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

7.1
7.1.1
7.1.2

The third party then may commence its works in accordance with the
safe system of work set out in the method statement(s).

IE reserves the right to carry out periodic safety audits of the works
insofar as they affect IE’s safety interests. In some circumstances; IE
may appoint a Site Safety Monitor. The third party, including any of’its
agents, must cooperate with these arrangements. In particular, the
third party must have the following documents available on site:

e Safety Management System
e Method statements

¢ Any other relevant approvals (e.g. site handover/handback
certification)

When routine work ceases (e.g. on a daily basis), the third party must:
e Ensure personnel are clear of the line

e Ensure that all materials and equipment are clear of the line and
secured

¢ Ensure that the particular stage of work is complete and safe
e Inform the RPR accordingly

The third party must advise IE in advance of the key project milestones
so that IE may, in turn, inform the Railway Safety Commission (RSC).
This includes the date that construction is due to commence. The RSC
may decide to inspect the works at any stage. Where bridge works are
involved, the RSC requires timely notification of the following stages:

e The start of the works
e Two weeks in advance of the deck being placed

e When the safety barriers/parapets have been constructed/erected

POST-CONSTRUCTION STAGE

Completion of Works
The third party must inform the IEDR of the completion of the works.

The sequence for post-construction is outlined in Figure 2. (TP refers to
third party.)

Figure 2: Post-Construction Sequence

Post Construction

If RSC issues letter of

On completion of
Works TP submits

Completion
Certificate to IEDR

acceptance (if New Works
Assessment involved) and if |E
satisfied on completion, |E issues
letter authorising structure to be
used (e.g. open to traffic if a
bridge)

A4
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Safety File to IEDR
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7.2
7.2.1

7.2.2

7.3
7.3.1

7.3.2

7.3.3

7.3.4

7.3.5

7.4
7.4.1

7.5
7.5.1

7.5.2

Certification

On completion of the works, the third party must submit a Completion
Certificate (see Appendix G) and one copy of the as-built drawirigs to
the IEDR. These must include a drawing showing the as-built clearances
relative to the IE track, boundary line etc. A copy of any relevant test
results or certificates must also be attached.

The Completion Certificate must confirm that the works have been
constructed correctly, in accordance with the approved design.

Authorisation to Open or Use the Works

Authorisation to open or use the works applies to projects that are over
or under the railway, and/or that have required Railway Safety
Commission (RSC) New Infrastructure Works Assessment. It is likely
that specific requirements relating to the use of the works will have
been set out in the legal agreement for the project. However, it is also
expected that the general requirements below will apply.

IE inspects the works for completeness and safety. If satisfied, IE
informs the RSC that the works have been completed. An RSC
Inspector may wish to undertake an inspection. If the RSC is satisfied,
it issues the final acceptance - i.e. commissioning acceptance.

IE then issues written authorisation to the third party that it may
proceed to put the completed works into service.

Note: IE and the RSC must have given commissioning acceptance for
these types of project before the structure or installation can be opened
and/or used. If, for example, the works comprise an underbridge or an
overbridge, the third party is not permitted to open this to road or
pedestrian traffic until it receives authorisation as set out above.

Arrangements to pass rail traffic on underbridges constructed by third
parties are subject to special conditions and must be previously agreed
with IE during the approval process. Similar arrangements must be in
place if the third party intends to use a bridge for site haulage purposes
prior to public use. Risks arising from this and control measures to
address these must be set out in the relevant method statement.

Safety File

After satisfactory completion of the works, the third party must submit
a copy of the Safety File to IE (see Appendix H).

Maintenance

When the works are put into service, the maintenance obligations of
the third party come into being as set out in the legal agreement(s)
between the third party and IE/CIE.

Any subsequent third party maintenance works which involve access to
railway property or impact on the railway must follow the procedures
set out in the Safety File and the relevant legal agreement(s) between
the third party and IE.
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8 REVIEW

8.1 Review Procedure

8.1.1 This standard will need to be reviewed every five years or earliertit
required.

8.1.2 If changes arise from the review, this standard will be reissued. If no

changes arise from the review, the current version of this standard will
remain in force.

9 REVISION HISTORY

Issue No and Date Section No and Reason for Change
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APPENDIX A RISKS THAT MAY ARISE FROM THE WORKS

A.1
A.l.1

A.2

A.2.1

A.3

A.3.1

AND THE RAILWAY ENVIRONMENT

Overview

This section contains a non-exhaustive list of the hazards and risks that
may arise during third party works on or near the railway. Third parties
(particularly their planners and designers) must consider these hazards
and assess the risks when forming the appropriate control measures for
their project.

Hazards and Risks to Third Parties Arising from Train
Movements

Third party work and personnel must be protected from the risk of
being struck by a train. Appendix C Railway Protection Arrangements
gives details of the control measures relating to railway safety that IE
requires to be included within the third party’s overall safe system of
work.

Hazards and Risks to Railway Personnel, Operations and
Others due to Third Party Construction Activity

The third party needs to identify all risks and then set up control
measures that address these risks including what could be termed
normal construction risks. These measures will form part of the third
party’s safe system of work. The third party must also focus on risks to
the railway arising from the construction activity. The following is a
non-exhaustive list of risks to be considered when preparing control
measures:

1. A major accident or derailment caused by construction activity and
resulting in ill health, injuries, fatalities, damage to railway
operations and property, or loss of operability. Control measures
must ensure that any movements of vehicles, personnel and plant,
equipment or materials do not cause any such undesirable events
on or near the line.

2. Unauthorised access to the railway. Control measures such as
fencing and security, as necessary, must be in place.

3. The possible confusion of train drivers caused by red or green items
or lights; this could arise when third party personnel have to go on
or near the line. To guard against this hazard, no green or red
clothing, helmets or lights should be used by third party personnel
near the railway.

4. Dust and/or emissions affecting train drivers’ viewing distances.
Control measures must be in place to ensure this does not happen.

5. Temporary lighting blinding train drivers. Control measures must be
in place to ensure this does not happen.

6. Obscuring of railway signals (including sighting of these) or damage
to signal equipment or digging up of signal cables; these could lead
to danger or disruption to train operations. Control measures must
be in place to ensure that this does not happen.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Injury to third party personnel when they are working.an the
railway site. Orange high-visibility clothing and appropriate personal
protective equipment (PPE), including protective footwear,4nust be
worn at all times by third party personnel.

Handback of the railway working space that leaves the railway ii1-a
dangerous condition and/or handback that is late and affects railwav
operations. Appropriate control measures, including contingency
plans, must be in place to prevent these situations. (See Appendix
E.)

Danger to third party personnel from the electrified lines where the
activity is in OHLE areas. Control measures must be in place to
guard against this and to protect the OHLE from damage as a result
of the works.

Vandalism. Fencing must be intact, and materials and plant must be
secured to prevent vandals placing these on the line.

Scaffolding or temporary works or construction materials falling on
or near the line. Erection and/or removal must be carried out safely.
Control measures include submission for temporary works design
approval, as per Appendix D Design and Check Procedures in I-DEP-
0120 Guidance on Third Party Works.

Danger to passengers if the works are in or near stations. Due care
must be exercised and exits in stations must be maintained and not
impeded.

Dangers from driver-operated machines used for lifting purposes
(e.g. cranes). These machines must be strictly controlled to ensure
that the crane equipment or loads do not swing or fall on or near
the railway line.

Construction plant (including tower cranes and piling rigs) falling
onto the line if it collapses, even if it is located off railway property.
Control measures must be in place.

Works which may adversely affect the railway even though located
some distance from the railway boundary. For example, work which
lowers the water table might cause subsidence of the railway
formation. Control measures must be in place.

Increased traffic on adjacent bridges or level crossings, causing
damage to these or, in the case of level crossings, danger to train
operations. Control measures must be put in place.

Destabilisation of the track support which could give rise to
settlement causing train derailment. Control measures must be in
place to avoid this, including maintenance of the track support
system and movement monitoring of railway track.

Use of explosives near the line. See B.11.

Material falling on the line if demolition adjacent to the line is
proposed. Control measures must be employed to prevent this.

Contamination or any danger to railway land, personnel or
operations from any hazardous chemicals used during the works.
Control measures must be in place.
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21. Fire risks that could arise from the construction works,.The railway
line and operations must be protected.

22. The digging up or cutting of services on railway property (signal or
electricity cables, drains, culverts, gas pipes etc.). There mustbe
protection against this risk.

23. Structural collapse and poor construction practices that may affect
the railway. Contractors and designers employed by the third party
must be competent and control measures must be in place.

24. Third party personnel working on the railway site under the
influence of drugs or alcohol. Control measures must be in place to
guard against this, in line with the IE Drugs and Alcohol Policy.

25. Safety instructions not being understood. The third party must
ensure all personnel assigned to work on railway property can
understand safety instructions given in English.

26. Lack of familiarisation among third party personnel with the railway
environment, the particular site and the site boundaries. This could
cause accidents. Control measures must include provision for
Contractor Personal Track Safety (PTS) Training and briefing on the
site characteristics.

A.4 General Hazards that may be Found on Railway Land

A4.1 When planning and executing their works on or near the railway, third
parties should note that there may be general hazards on railway land
as listed below. They should carry out an investigation to see if these
exist and put control measures in place accordingly.

A.4.2 Confined Spaces - A considerable number of confined spaces exist on
or about the railway. In certain circumstances, this may be a transient
state dependent on usage. The third party must ensure that its staff are
suitably trained to recognise a confined space and a safe system of
work must be devised by the third party. This must also be notified to
IE before any work is carried out.

A.4.3 Contaminated Land - Railway land, especially in the area of former or
existing large sidings or depots, may be contaminated with dangerous
substances. The third party must investigate and take appropriate
precautions when carrying out activities that disturb or alter the
existing land.

A.4.4 Asbestos - The third party must check for the presence of asbestos
and take all appropriate precautions.

A.4.5 Lead - Railway bridges, structures and some buildings may have
protective and decorative coatings containing substantial quantities of
lead. Accordingly, the third party must take all appropriate precautions.

A.4.6 Cadmium - Cadmium may have been used as anti-corrosion plating on
some metal products (nuts for rail fastenings, for example) on or about
the railway. Accordingly, the third party must take all appropriate
precautions.
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A.4.7

A.4.8

A.4.9

Hazards from Rats and Birds - There may be a risk of leptospirosis
(Weils Disease) when working on the railway as a result of’
contamination by rats. There may be a risk in some locations-from
pigeon droppings. Accordingly, the third party must take all apprepriate
precautions.

Timber Sleepers - Some timber sleepers used on the railway are
treated with creosote which is a hazardous substance. The third party
must take appropriate precautions if its staff are likely to come into
contact with these sleepers.

Toilet Waste and Dumping of Hazardous Material - There is a risk
of individuals contracting infections arising from discharge of toilet
waste on tracks from some trains. Control measures could include
observation of normal hygiene, use of gloves and vaccinations as
appropriate. Note should also be taken of the risk of infection from
discarded needles which may have been illegally dumped on railway
land.
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APPENDIX B SPECIFIC SITE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR

THIRD PARTIES

Note: These requirements must be included as appropriate within the third
party’s safe system of work.

B.1
B.1.1

B.1.2

B.1.3

B.1.4

B.2
B.2.1

B.2.2

B.2.3

B.3
B.3.1

Personal Protective Equipment

All third party personnel working on railway property are required to
wear orange high-visibility clothing at all times. This must be clearly
labelled with either Third Party or Contractor or the name of the
contracting organisation. The clothing may be in vest form or wet
weather gear. The requirements are as follows: colours — EN471
Fluorescent Orange; for vests, the minimum visible area at the rear
must be 0.5 sg m, minimum visible area on the front must be 0.2 sq m;
the clothing must have sewn-on silver reflective tape, width 50 mm,
minimum visible area 0.13 sq m. Full specification is available on
request.

The third party is responsible for ensuring that its staff have personal
protective equipment (PPE) appropriate to the tasks being carried out
and in line with the control measures set out in its method statement.
As part of this, Iarnréd Eireann (IE) requires that third party personnel
have appropriate safety footwear when working on or near the line.

Third party personnel who do not have appropriate high-visibility
clothing or appropriate safety footwear may be instructed to leave the
railway site immediately.

Personnel on the railway site must not wear red or green clothing, or
red or green helmets, as these could be mistaken for signals or railway
safety flags by train drivers.

Personnel

Third party staff entering railway property must possess a Contractor
Personal Track Safety (PTS) Certificate. (See Appendix F for details.)

Third party staff entering railway property must be able to understand
safety instructions given in English.

Third party personnel must comply with the drugs and alcohol
requirements of the Railway Safety Act 2005. Any third party personnel
on IE property must be in compliance with the IE Drugs and Alcohol
Policy. During the approval process, third parties are required to
demonstrate how they will comply with this policy.

Railway Site Familiarisation

In addition to ensuring its staff have completed Contractor PTS
Training, the third party must ensure that detailed briefing on the
characteristics of the specific railway site is given to all its personnel
including contractors, sub-contractors and any others engaged by the
third party. This requirement applies both before commencement of the
work and at agreed intervals during the progress of the work.
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B.3.2

B.3.3

B.3.4

B.3.5

B.4
B.4.1

B.5
B.5.1

B.5.2

B.5.3

The briefing must include:

e Details of the boundaries of the railway site

¢ Requirements for fencing and security of the railway site
e Procedures for access close to the line

e Procedures for the safe operation of equipment, machinery and
storage of materials and other such relevant matters as set out in
the safe system of work for the site in the method statement

The third party must also ensure that its personnel undergo additional
briefing if the boundaries of the railway site or other relevant
circumstances are changed.

The third party must ensure that control measures are in place for safe
management of visitors to the site, in relation to the railway. This
includes, for example, briefing visitors on the characteristics of the
railway site and procedures for access close to the line and ensuring
they have suitable PPE and a Contractor PTS Certificate if they go on or
near the line.

Records of all such briefings and control measures must be kept by the
third party for monitoring purposes.

Removal of Third Party Employees

IE is at liberty to object to, and to require the third party to remove
from the railway site immediately, any person employed on its behalf
who:

¢ Has refused to immediately carry out an instruction given by IE
where such instruction relates to safety, or

e In the opinion of IE, is liable to endanger his/her health and safety,
or that of others.

Erection of Protective Fencing by the Third Party

If it is part of the agreed method statement, the third party must erect
a substantial temporary fence between the site and the railway, not
closer than 3 metres to the nearest rail.

The fence must be sufficiently high and strong, and located to prevent
plant and materials encroaching and endangering the railway. The
fence must extend on each side at least 5 metres beyond the
anticipated working zones. It must be secure and at least 2.4 metres
high.

The precise fencing specification and location is agreed with the Iarnrod
Eireann Designated Representative (IEDR) prior to commencement of
the works.
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B.6
B.6.1

B.6.2

B.6.3

B.6.4

B.7
B.7.1

B.7.2

B.7.3

B.8

B.8.1

B.8.2

No Trespass

Third parties carrying out works on or near the railway are résponsible
for maintaining the safety and security of the worksite and ensuying the
safety of the general public. This element must be included in the risk
assessment and the third party must have control measures in place'to
guard against trespass onto the railway.

The third party must confine its activities to the work described in the
agreed method statement(s) and must not allow its personnel to enter
railway lands, other than those agreed for the works in the method
statement(s).

All necessary steps must be taken to ensure that the works cannot be
used by vandals or trespassers for access to the railway while the
works are in progress. The third party must take the necessary
precautions, including the provision of security personnel if required by
the IEDR. Precautions must be in place when the site is unoccupied,
e.g. at weekends and on public holidays. The boundaries of the site
must be adequately secured at all times to deter trespassers and/or
stray animals from gaining access to the site. Any damage to railway
fencing must be immediately repaired.

If the works increase the risk of child trespass on the railway and
suitable trespass-proof fencing does not already exist, this must be
provided and maintained along the railway boundary during the works.

Interference with Train Drivers’ Views

The third party should not install lamps that may shine in the direction
of train drivers. Any lights provided should not interfere with railway
signalling. For example, traffic lights used as part of the arrangements
for works traffic management must be positioned so they are not visible
to train drivers. Ground lamps should be yellow and not red.

The third party should not allow dust, which could spread across the
railway, to rise from the worksite. The third party should not allow the
lighting of fires from which dense smoke or flames may spread across
the railway.

Train drivers’ views of signals, signs, notices etc. must not be
obstructed during the works.

Alterations or Excavations

Piling or vibro-stabilisation may cause ground heave or settlement and
is not allowed adjacent to the railway without prior approval. If such
methods are planned, they must first be submitted for assessment
during the technical approval process.

The third party is not allowed to carry out tipping of soil, the raising or
lowering of ground level or water table, deep excavation, or the
provision of large sewers where such works could affect the track
formation, track drainage or the stability of railway structures, cuttings
or embankments.
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B.8.3

To provide guidance for the third party in planning the safe execution of
works, a drawing of the track support zone is given below ‘(Figure B.1).
It should be noted that criteria such as 1:2 slope apply to gengral
conditions. The actual criteria to be applied depend on the specific
conditions such as soil, water flow or other local characteristics. If ird
parties require to carry out any excavation or disturbance of the ground
within 5 metres of the track support zone as set out here, they must
discuss the proposed work with the IEDR, obtain agreement and then
present this in the method statement (including any control measures)
8 weeks in advance of such work commencing.

Figure B.1: Track Support Zone

Typical cutting slope ==1 Ballast

=== Track Support Zone
EEN  Sleeper

e Soll Profile

Typical embankment slope
Slope1:2

TRACK SUFFPORT ZONE
No excavation is permitted within 5 m of this
without the permission of the IEDR

B.9
B.9.1

B.9.2

B.10
B.10.1

B.10.2

B.10.3

B.10.4

Alterations to Drainage

The third party is not allowed to carry out any alterations to drainage
that would increase the flow, or rate of flow, of water through railway
culverts and ditches or into soak ways.

The third party may not direct any drainage into the railway ditches and
gripes. It may not divert any drainage within 50 metres of the railway
boundary without the written permission of the IEDR.

Crossing of Line

The third party is not permitted to allow its personnel, plant or
equipment to cross or rest on the railway line at any time during the
works, except on a public level crossing or public bridge, or as
expressly authorised by the IEDR.

The third party is not allowed to use existing private bridges or level
crossings over or under the railway, unless by prior agreement with IE.

IE should be consulted if there are planned works which will introduce
additional traffic or danger of obstructions or damage from slow
moving, heavy, high or long vehicular traffic to level crossings and also
to railway underbridges or overbridges. Equally, there should be no risk
of damage to the OHLE from high vehicles. Control measures, such as
traffic management and other safety procedures, may be required to
minimise risk caused by this extra traffic.

Metal-tracked vehicles may trip track circuits across the rails. IE must
be consulted and appropriate control measures put in place.
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B.10.5

B.11
B.11.1

B.11.2

B.12
B.12.1

B.13
B.13.1

B.14
B.14.1

B.15
B.15.1

B.15.2

B.15.3

IE does not allow the installation of temporary level crossings because
of the unacceptable risk involved.

Use of Explosives

The third party is not normally allowed to use explosives within 400
metres of the railway. Depending on the circumstances, however, this
may be permitted in certain situations after due consideration of the
hazards and the possibility of applying adequate control measures. A
special application must be made to IE for approval in these instances.

The third party should consult the IEDR if it is considering the use of
explosives in the immediate area outside this 400-metre limit.

Demolition

Demolition by the third party of structures adjacent to the railway line
and which may potentially affect the railway is not allowed unless by
prior agreement with IE.

Felling of Trees

Felling of trees by third parties which may potentially affect the railway
is not allowed unless by prior agreement with IE.

Storage of Materials

During the progress of the works and when the site is unoccupied, all
loose materials and equipment must be locked away in a safe place.
The third party is not allowed to store highly inflammable materials
close to the railway or railway cable routes.

Protection of Railway Property and Services

All precautions must be taken to ensure that there will be no damage
arising from the works to IE infrastructure (track, formation, bridges,
OHLE, structures etc).

All precautions must be taken to ensure that no damage or accidental
disconnections occur to the signals, signal control or telephone cables
etc. The location of the signal control cables will be pointed out on site
and no interference is allowed with these.

Culverts, drains, underground or overhead wires or any other IE
services must be located and protected by the third party during the
course of the works. Diversions must be provided where necessary
(permanent, temporary or replacement as appropriate). The method
statement(s) must contain the procedures for excavation and/or
working close to the underground or overhead cables and facilities, and
specify the precautions that will be employed.
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B.16
B.16.1

B.17
B.17.1

B.17.2

B.18
B.18.1

B.18.2

B.19

B.19.1

B.19.2

B.19.3

Protection of Utility Services

The railway is crossed by overhead and underground utility pipes and
cables in many locations. The third party is responsible for identifying
the location of these at the railway worksite and taking appropriate
precautions to ensure that no damage occurs to them. The method
statement(s) must contain the procedures for excavation and/or
working close to the underground or overhead installations, and specify
the precautions that will be employed.

Monitoring

Arrangements, agreed with the IEDR, may be required to monitor the
stability of a railway structure if third party works could endanger the
integrity of such a structure.

Movement monitoring of railway track may be required as set out in
Appendix F of I-DEP-0120.

Plant and Machinery

Arrangements must be made to ensure that all construction plant and
machinery used by the third party on site are immobilised when not in
use so that they cannot be operated by unauthorised persons or put in
a position where they could endanger trains.

Plant and machinery must be parked so that these or their appendages
do not endanger train movements.

Craneage or Equipment with a Risk of Falling on the
Railway

The use of any equipment which has the potential to fall over railway
property or swing loads into railway property must be properly planned
and assessed. Control measures must be put in place to ensure that
risks are eliminated.

Operation of the following equipment near the railway line requires the
consent of IE, and appropriate control measures must be incorporated
in the method statement submitted for approval:

e Piling rigs
o Lifts or hoists or tall freestanding equipment including scaffolding

* Tower cranes and mobile cranes (these require a separate licence
agreement to be finalised with the IEDR; see B.20 and B.21 below
for indicative details)

The third party must comply with the requirements of IS 360:2004
Code of Practice for the Safe Use of Cranes in the Construction
Industry, Part 1, General and clauses 8.6.1 and 8.6.2. The lifting,
slewing and traversing of any load over the railway is not permissible
except under railway protection conditions.
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B.19.4

B.20
B.20.1

B.20.2

B.20.3

The third party must submit a detailed drawing for the crane (or piling
rig, hoist or other relevant equipment) showing the positicriof the
proposed support conditions in relation to the tracks and otherrailway
features, and proposed movements. This drawing must be subrnitted in
the method statement to the IEDR for consent 8 weeks prior to the
commencement of the operation of this equipment.

Tower Cranes

Where tower cranes are employed on IE property or swing over IE
property, their use is subject to an approvals process with a separate
licence agreement. If the tower crane is outside IE property but may
affect the railway in collapse mode, then IE must be consulted and
approval sought for the installation and operation of the crane.
Conditions for use are likely to reflect those set out below. Note: The
same rules apply to self-erecting cranes.

These requirements for approval and licencing are in line with the
stipulations of the Railway Safety Act 2005. These place an obligation
on all persons carrying out any works on or near the railway to ensure
that there is no increase in risk to the railway as a consequence of
these works.

It is likely that the licence agreement will include the following technical
requirements:

e All necessary bases, supports, grillages etc. must be provided for a
tower crane including any temporary works required for erection
and dismantling. All temporary works to support the tower crane
must be designed to the loading specified by the tower crane
manufacturer for the location, mast height and jib length required.

e When the distance between the tower crane mast and the nearest
rail on which trains may pass is less than the diagonal distance from
the base of the mast to the end of the jib plus 3 metres, the safe
working load of any tower crane must be downrated to 75% of its
safe lifting capacity.

¢ The jib of the tower crane must be allowed to weathervane freely
through 360° when not in use.

e Either automatic limiting devices (to restrict the travel along the jib
of the crane hook) or zoning devices upon the slewing ring must be
installed. This is to ensure that no part of any load oversails a
vertical plane 5 metres from the nearest edge of the nearest rail on
which trains may pass or within 5 metres of an operational platform.
Such limiting or zoning devices must give the crane driver advance
warning of the approach of the travel or slew limit. If there is a site
with a constraint on clearances, the actual arrangements must be
discussed and agreed with the IEDR.

* Any limit override facility must be key operated and located at the
base of the tower. The third party must submit to IE for acceptance
details of the system to be adopted for the management of the key
to the override facility. This is to prevent unauthorised use by the
crane driver or other contractor personnel.
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The detailed method statement augmented with drawings for the
erection and dismantling of the tower crane must be sumitted to
the IEDR for consent 8 weeks before the proposed date ¢f 2rection.
Note: If a mobile crane is used, a separate licence is requiréd {see
B.21).

Detailed drawings of the third party's tower crane proposals must
be submitted to the IEDR for consent 8 weeks prior to the proposed
date of erection. The drawings must show:

- the tower crane's location in relation to the tracks or operational
platforms

- the proposed tower crane supports and associated temporary
works

- mast height

- jib length and radius of travel

- the limits of operation of the crane hook
- operating procedures

A tower crane adjacent to the railway must be load tested by a
competent person under a Possession, and Isolation of the OHLE
where applicable, to 25% above its lifting capacity; this is subject to
manufacturer’s limits. If less is allowable, this should be discussed
with the IEDR who may apply an additional downrating of lifting
capacity. A copy of the test certificate (F91) must be given to the
IEDR prior to the crane being brought into use.

Radio or telephone communication must be provided between the
crane driver and the crane signaller.

The third party must demonstrate in its submission for approval
how the following is achieved:

1. Tower cranes are erected and dismantled by competent people

2. These cranes are examined after erection by an independent
competent person

3. The crane driver is competent to operate and carry out in-
service checks

4, Weekly in-service inspections are carried out by the crane
operator

5. Cranes are subject to a maintenance schedule

B.21 Mobile Cranes

B.21.1 A licence agreement with IE is required for operation of a mobile crane
on a site adjacent to the railway.

B.21.2 Generally the same principles apply as with a tower crane. A method
statement must be prepared and submitted to the IEDR in advance of
preparatory temporary works involved in setting up a mobile crane.

B.21.3  Under no circumstances should the jib of a mobile crane be positioned
such that, in the event of collapse, it will fall on IE property.
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B.22
B.22.1

B.23
B.23.1

B.24
B.24.1

No Electrical or Radio Interference

Steps must be taken to ensure that construction materials ahd
construction machinery do not cause electro-magnetic interferefice to
the signal system, telecommunications systems, train-to-base radic,
and continuous automatic warning systems or to the guard-to-driver
radio communications systems.

Staff Welfare

The third party must provide and maintain suitable facilities for IE
personnel. These will be for the sole use of IE personnel engaged on
supervision and protection duties. The third party must also provide
access to appropriate welfare facilities for such personnel. The actual
facilities to be provided will depend on the scale and extent of the
works. The facilities are provided at the third party’s expense and to
the requirements of the IEDR, as agreed in advance.

Environment

The third party must ensure that no environmentally harmful incident
occurs on site such as spillage, dumping of materials or release of
gases. If such an incident occurs, the third party is fully responsible for
rectifying the damage at its own expense and to the satisfaction of IE.
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APPENDIX C RAILWAY PROTECTION ARRANGEMENTS

C.1
C.1.1

C.1.2

C.1.3

C.1.4

C.1.5

C.2
C.21

C.2.2

Introduction

This section sets out details of possible railway protection )
arrangements. These arrangements are provided by Iarnrod Eireann
(IE). They must be included in the third party’s site-specific Safety
Management System and form part of the third party’s control
measures as set out in its method statement(s).

Protection is the term used to describe the arrangements put in place to
ensure the safety of train operations and persons while work is taking
place on or near the track. This may include arrangements for the
provision of IE staff to warn personnel of approaching trains. These
arrangements could also include specific arrangements agreed in
advance concerning work between train movements or the taking of a
Possession.

IE requires the third party to design and adhere to a safe system of
work in relation to the part of the works that potentially affect the
railway. In accordance with its requirements and the SHWW
Construction Regulations 2006, this system must include the railway
protection arrangements outlined below for works on or near the line.

If railway protection arrangements are needed, the third party must
discuss these beforehand with the Iarnréd Eireann Designated
Representative (IEDR) and then include them in a method statement to
the IEDR for approval at least 8 weeks in advance. This will allow time
for agreed railway protection arrangements to be scheduled into the
relevant IE work programmes. In agreeing to provide such
arrangements, IE has no liability for any ensuing costs that may arise in
the event of cancellation. IE may decide to cancel such arrangements
at any time due to resource issues or the exigencies of operating a train
service.

Note: The IEDR decides what the appropriate railway protection
arrangements will be in all circumstances.

Authority for a Third Party to Go On or Near the Line

A Railway Protection Representative (RPR) will inform third party
personnel when they may go on or near the line. The RPR will vary
depending on the circumstances. The third party will be advised of the
relevant RPR by an agreed method of communication in advance of the
works.

For background information, the IE personnel indicated in Table C.1
may be designated as RPRs acting in specific positions and depending
on the circumstances.

I-DEP-0121
Issue 1.0

Page 31 of 50



Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of

Railway Safety Requirements

Table C.1: Railway Protection Representative (RPR)

IE Designation by Type of Duty | Circumstance

Engineering Supervisor (ES) Person appointed by IE to be in c_narge
of the work being carried out undera
Possession.

Person in Charge (PIC) IE person responsible for ensuring that

protection is provided and removed
correctly and safely so that trains are
not endangered. Protection must be
provided on any line not under
Possession before the start of works
that may endanger trains on that line.

Person in Charge of Possession IE person appointed to take Possession
(PICOP) of the line.
Track Safety Coordinator (TSC) IE person appointed whenever there is

work on or near the line. The TSC is
responsible for ensuring that the person
doing the work is not endangered by
trains.

Note: One person may carry out a number of these duties.

C.3
C.3.1

C.3.2

C.3.3

C.3.4

C.3.5

Possessions Arrangements

Possessions are special arrangements to control the movement of trains
for a specific period over a particular stretch of railway line. Rail traffic
ceases to operate over a given stretch of railway line when a
designated Iarnrdd Eireann person takes a Possession of that line. This
person may or may not be the RPR, but it will be an RPR who
communicates instructions regarding railway protection arrangements
to the third party.

It is important to note that engineering trains and on-track machines
may still run during a Possession.

Granting of Possessions is entirely at the discretion of IE. Possessions
may be granted only when:

e They are not disruptive to services,
e Other options have been exhausted, and

e The proposed work poses a risk to train movements, such as the
use of machinery or potential interference with railway
infrastructure.

Possessions must be requested during the initial design approval
process. If granted, the detail must be planned and arranged well in
advance and usually arranged for restricted times in order to avoid
interference with train operations.

Specific applications for Possessions must be made to the Iarnrod
Eireann Designated Representative (IEDR) at the earliest possible date.
Where granted, these must be included in method statements
submitted to the IEDR.
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C.3.6

C.3.7
C.3.8

C.4
C4.1

C.4.2

C.4.3

C.4.4

C.4.5

C.5
C.5.1

C.5.2

C.6

C.6.1

In the case of a granted Possession, an RPR is provided to-implement
the arrangements for the works and no works can commenge unless
the RPR clearly indicates that the protection arrangement is in<place for
a particular section of line for a particular period.

The third party is responsible for all costs arising from a Possession:

Note that IE may cancel or curtail the Possession at any time for any
reason, including lack of resources or the exigencies of train operation.

Speed Restrictions

Speed restrictions may be imposed to reduce the speed at which trains
may travel over a section of track. Speed restrictions are only granted
in exceptional circumstances.

Requests for speed restrictions must be made during the detailed
design submission stage.

Where granted, the imposition of a speed restriction is discussed at an
early stage between the Third Party Designated Representative (TPDR)
and the IEDR. Note of the agreed restriction is then included in the
relevant method statement submitted at least 8 weeks in advance to
the IEDR.

Speed restrictions are at IE’s discretion and incur a daily charge to the
third party. The charge reflects the impact on train operations.

Note that IE may cancel or curtail the speed restriction at any time for
any reason, including lack of resources or the exigencies of train
operation.

Handover/Handback Arrangements

If previously sanctioned during the approval process, a
handover/handback arrangement will be put in place to allow the third
party to carry out work for a limited period within a section of the
railway. A Possession may be arranged to facilitate this aspect of the
works. Note that this arrangement may be cancelled by IE at any time
due to lack of resources or the exigencies of train operation.

IE considers it necessary to put in place a documented arrangement to
enable the railway to be satisfied that the third party works are
completed and in a safe condition to allow IE operations to resume.
These documents and arrangements are set out in Appendix E.

Protection Arrangements for Work Arranged Between
Train Movements

If previously sanctioned during the approval process, protection
arrangements may be permitted for work to be carried out between
train movements when the work is to be carried out close to a line
without interfering with the track itself. Permission is given on the basis
that the work can be stopped at any time to allow a train to pass. The
protection ensures that trains cannot enter the section of track while
the protection is in place. It is arranged for periods between normal
train operations and does not usually involve diversions or cancellations
of trains.
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C.6.2 An RPR is provided to implement the arrangements for the works and
no work can commence unless the RPR clearly indicates that the
protection arrangement is in place for a particular section of lirie for a
particular period.

C.6.3 Applications must be made to the IEDR for this arrangement. If agreed,
the details must be included in the method statement.

Cc.6.4 The setting up of this arrangement on a specified date is not
guaranteed. It depends on the running of trains, which have priority.

C.7 Other Protection Arrangements: Green and Red Zones

C.7.1 IE distinguishes two types of worksites: green zone and red zone. )
Different arrangements apply in each case. These are determined by IE
during the approvals process and set out in the method statement(s)
prepared by the third party.

C.7.2 Green Zone Working
1. A Green Zone is where work is arranged to take place without any

third party personnel going on or near any line or siding, including
one in a Possession, on which trains (or movements) may pass.

2. A Green Zone exists where the worksite is safeguarded by:

- stopping of trains on all lines, or

- being separated from the nearest line open to trains, by a
distance of at least 3 metres, or

- being fenced from the nearest line open to trains where one or
more lines remain open to trains.

3. Third party personnel present or working in the vicinity of the track
must be accompanied by the RPR who is responsible for
implementing the appropriate safe system of work regarding railway
protection. No works should begin unless the RPR gives permission
to proceed.

C.7.3 Red Zone Working
1. If any work cannot reasonably be carried out under Green Zone

protection, it may be possible in certain circumstances to work

within 3 metres of the nearest track open to rail operations. This is

termed Red Zone working and is allowed only when:

- absolutely necessary and it is not practical to arrange a Green
Zone, and

- protection can be provided to give sufficient warning of all trains
approaching on the line(s) concerned.

2. Where this protection is in place, an RPR is responsible for
implementing and maintaining the arrangements.

3. IE provides personnel to implement protection during the course of
the works in a Red Zone.

4. No works should begin unless an RPR is present and gives
permission to proceed.
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APPENDIX D SAFETY REQUIREMENTS WHEN WORKING IN

THE OHLE AREA

Note: These requirements must be included within the third party’s safe system

of work a

s specified in the method statement. The method statement will set-out

clear lines of organisation, responsibility and communication in this regard.

D.1
D.1.1

D.1.2

D.1.3

OHLE - Electrified Line

OHLE (overhead line equipment) concerns the electrified lines for the
operation of the DART for Dublin suburban rail services. The electrified
lines extend from Malahide to Greystones and include the branch from
Howth Junction to Howth. They also include interfaces at North Strand,
Newcomen Branch, East Wall Branch and Carriage Sidings at Connolly
Station.

OHLE is electrified at 1500 volts DC and is dangerous to human life.
Underground and overground cables that feed the OHLE are electrified
at up to 38 kV. Personnel must assume that the OHLE is live at all
times and keep outside the Prohibited Space (see Figure D.1). The
Prohibited Space is defined as being within 2.75 metres of any part of
the OHLE that is live. Note that the 2.75 m applies to third party
personnel, taking note of their unfamiliarity with IE overhead line
equipment. IE maintenance staff, where appropriate, are authorised to
work at closer distances.

Figure D.1: OHLE Prohibited Space

2,75 m nts

Parallel feeder ,

Messenger wire

Earth wire o

L_‘_‘-""‘—'-e -

- Contact wire

PRO 2.75 m nts

tact Wire Height Safety Clearance Limit ~
e,
n at level crossings
‘ght under worst

ing conditions
4700 nomal main line height

Third party work near OHLE must be agreed in advance with IE.
Without this agreement, work must not be carried out, or cranes or
other plant erected, operated or dismantled, or materials stored.
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D.1.4

D.1.5

D.1.6

D.1.7

D.1.8

Third party personnel working near the OHLE must observe certain
precautions as set out below. All of these control measures/iust be
included in the method statement which has to be submittea-to.the
Iarnréd Eireann Designated Representative (IEDR) for review at/least 8
weeks in advance.

If the work needs to be carried out within the Prohibited Space, thena
Form C Permit to Work on or near the OHLE is required. This requires
the OHLE to be isolated. Permits to Work are normally only granted
where the Isolation will not interfere with IE train services.

If the third party requires a Form C Permit to Work, approval for this
must be requested from the IEDR at least 8 weeks in advance. If
granted, Form C Permit to Work procedures must be included in the
method statement as appropriate. Part 1 of the Permit to Work gives
permission to work in relation to the OHLE (railway protection is a
separate issue, see D.1.7); Part 2 is signed by the person in charge of
the works (i.e. the TPDR); Part 3 is signed by the TPDR to confirm that
the works are complete and clear of the OHLE.

Note that a Form C Permit to Work only refers to working on or near
the OHLE; it is not a blanket approval to work on the railway site. If
work has to take place on or near the line, the third party also has to
abide by the requirements of the railway protection arrangements
previously agreed and included in the method statement.

General Precautions: When working on or near OHLE, third party
personnel must observe the following:

1. Works, equipment or materials must not come close to the
Prohibited Space or be in danger of being swung into it. Materials
cannot be stored within the Prohibited Space and must be secured
so that they cannot inadvertently enter this space.

2. When persons are handling tools or materials adjacent to the
Prohibited Space, the Prohibited Space must be increased by the
length of any tool or material being handled. However, normal work
on the track, station platform, walkways and the like (i.e. below or
near the OHLE) is permitted without special OHLE precautions,
provided that tools or equipment are not at any time raised above
head height.

3. When scaffolding that is being erected or dismantled may encroach
on the Prohibited Space, approval must be sought in advance from
the IEDR as a Form C Permit to Work will be required.

4. If a crane or other lifting equipment is being used, IE requires
control measures to be in place with regard to the safety of the
railway. These must be agreed with IE in advance. If a tower crane
is in use, IE requires a crane licence agreement to be in place. In
OHLE areas, control measures to be provided by the third party may
include suitable crane stops, fencing and warning notices to ensure
the equipment’s safe operation so that it keeps clear of the
Prohibited Space.

5. Ladders can lead to electrocution if allowed to come close to
overhead equipment and, therefore, special precautions must be
taken to ensure that the ladder cannot slip and encroach on the
Prohibited Space.
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D.2
D.2.1

D.2.2

6. Portable ladders used in the vicinity of the OHLE must be of timber
or other non-conducting material and must not be reinfdérced by
metal attachments running along the stiles of the ladders:

7. The third party is not allowed to cause any disturbances to thé
OHLE, or to attach anything to the OHLE.

Procedures for Working within the Prohibited Space

The third party must have reached agreement with the IEDR on the
works in question and the need to issue a Form C Permit to Work. The
third party must also have inserted a description of the work
procedures, including the permit arrangements, in the method
statement for submission to the IEDR for review 8 weeks in advance. In
this method statement, the third party must assign, in writing, a
competent Third Party Designated Representative (TPDR) who will be
responsible for this stage of the works.

The personnel and procedures required for working within the
Prohibited Space may vary depending upon the associated railway
protection arrangements. The precise arrangements for the actual
works (including lines of responsibility) must be set out in the method
statement. These arrangements are outlined below in Table D.1.

Table D.1: Working within the Prohibited Space

Circumstances Personnel Concerned and Necessary Actions

Isolation and - The OHLE Nominated Person (who may be an IEDR

No railway protection

depending on the circumstances) briefs the TPDR on the
salient features involved in the Permit to Work and the
limits of the Isolation, and gives the completed Part 1 Form

?er;alj?gezments C Permit to Work to the TPDR who signs Part 2.
At the end of the works, the TPDR signs Part 3 of the Form
C Permit to Work, certifying that work is completed and
cancelling the Permit to Work. The TPDR returns this to the
OHLE Nominated Person.

Isolation and - The OHLE Nominated Person briefs the TPDR on the salient

Railway protection

features involved in the Permit to Work and the limits of
the Isolation, and gives the completed Part 1 Form C
Permit to Work to the TPDR who signs Part 2.

arrangements

required; these may The TPDR checks with the RPR before works begin that
or may not include railway protection arrangements are in place and the
Possession circumstances under which the third party may go on or

near the line and/or start the work.

At the end of the works, the TPDR signs Part 3 of the Form
C Permit to Work, certifying that work is completed and
cancelling the Permit to Work. The TPDR returns this to the
OHLE Nominated Person.

The TPDR also confirms to the RPR at the end of the works
that the line is clear.

Handover/handback arrangements as per Appendix E may
apply.
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D.2.3 Before the commencement of the works, the OHLE Nominated Person
must have issued a completed Part 1 Form C Permit to Wori: to the
TPDR, in line with the control measures set out in the method
statement. The Permit to Work assures the holder that the OHLE is
isolated and earthed between the specified limits of isolation and‘wii
not be made live while the permit is in the custody of the holder. The
TPDR signs part 2 of the form certifying that he/she is in charge of the
works.

D.2.4 Usually, railway protection arrangements are applied when work takes
place close to the OHLE. In this case, the RPR will be present to brief
the TPDR on the railway protection arrangements. The OHLE Nominated
Person will also be at this briefing so that the TPDR can confirm as
outlined in D.2.5.

D.2.5 At this briefing, the TPDR must confirm his/her understanding of the
Permit to Work with the OHLE Nominated Person and comply with its
conditions and arrangements. When a Form C Permit to Work is issued,
it is the responsibility of the TPDR to:
¢ Confirm with the OHLE Nominated Person his/her understanding of

the limits of Isolation, as detailed in the method statement and the
Part 1 Form C Permit to Work

e Confirm with the RPR that no work will take place unless the railway
protection arrangements are also in place, if these have been
identified as necessary and set out in the method statement

e Ensure that each person employed on his/her behalf fully
understands the limits of the Isolation

e Ensure that no work begins within the limits of the Isolation unless
and until the Form C Permit to Work has been issued, and railway
protection arrangements are in place (as appropriate)

e Confirm understanding of the completion arrangements (see D.2.6)

D.2.6 On completion of the works, the TPDR must:

e Ensure that each person employed on his/her behalf (and plant and
equipment) are clear of the OHLE in the Isolation area.

e Complete Part 3 of Form C Permit to Work certifying that work for
which the permit was issued is completed and that all third party
personnel and materials are clear of the OHLE, and cancelling the
Permit to Work. The completed Part 3 is signed by the TPDR and
given to the OHLE Nominated Person.

¢ Inform the RPR, if railway protection arrangements are in place,
that works have been finished and that the third party personnel,
equipment and material are clear of the line. If handover/handback
arrangements are in place in accordance with Appendix E,
arrangements must be discussed and agreed in advance with the
IEDR.

I-DEP-0121 Page 38 of 50

Issue 1.0



Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of

Railway Safety Requirements

D.3
D.3.1

D.3.2

D.3.3

D.3.4

D.3.5

Protective Screens

In some cases, it may be advantageous for the third party té.install
protective screening to provide protection between the works aid the
OHLE. The erection of these screens (usually within the Prohibited
Space) may allow work to be carried out behind the screens without an
ongoing Permit to Work.

The erection of protective screening itself requires a Permit to Work. If
it is agreed in advance with the IEDR that protective screens can be
installed, the construction and installation of these screens must be
agreed and included in the method statement.

The protection screens are usually of steel construction with steel mesh
infill. These and other metal fixtures involved, such as temporary
scaffolding, need to be electrically bonded to the correct earthing
location within the OHLE.

The third party needs to ensure that its screens, scaffolding, equipment
or materials, as relevant, are bonded correctly for 1500 volts DC to the
point from where the IE staff connect to the OHLE earthing location(s).

A certificate signed by a competent person on behalf of the third party

must be submitted to the IEDR in this regard.

The connection from the third party bonding termination point to the
OHLE earthing location(s) can only be carried out by IE staff by prior
arrangement and at the third party’s expense.
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APPENDIX E HANDOVER/HANDBACK ARRANGEMENTS

E.1
E.1.1

E.1.2

E.1.3

E.2

E.2.1

E.2.2

E.2.3

E.2.4

E.2.5

Overview

Handover/handback arrangements cover the situation where Iarnréd
Eireann (IE) temporarily gives the right to work within a section of the
railway to a third party to allow it to carry out specified works as part ef
the third party project. On completion of the specified works, the third
party must hand back that section to IE in a safe condition. Usually,
this takes place within a Possession (or with an OHLE Isolation, as
appropriate).

These arrangements are only granted in exceptional circumstances and
will have previously been agreed during the acceptance of detailed
design stage.

The method statement setting out the detailed arrangements will
already have been submitted to IE for review and acceptance. Method
statements are submitted 8 weeks in advance for acceptance.

The Role of the Third Party Designated Representative
During Handover/Handback

The third party must appoint a competent person to be the Third Party
Designated Representative (TPDR) for the handover/handback process.
The TPDR will take responsibility for the safe completion of the
handover/handback arrangements. The TPDR will have the authority
and resources to take contingency action as necessary to ensure that
the handback can be made in a safe and timely manner.

The TPDR must have the training and experience to be competent in
assessing the technical safety of the works being undertaken. The
expertise required of the TPDR must be appropriate to the scale and
type of works being carried out. If required, additional expertise may be
engaged as assistance to the TPDR to support him/her when certifying
that the completed works are safe and pose no danger to the railway.

IE will nominate an Iarnréd Eireann Desighated Representative (IEDR)
to liaise with the TPDR before and during the works involved in the
handover/handback sequence. The IEDR may delegate responsibility to
other persons during the period of the construction works in question.
Any such delegation of responsibility must be established by the TPDR
in advance and included in the method statement. The IEDR will also
facilitate communications between the TPDR and IE personnel who
carry out railway protection duties - in some cases, the IEDR may be
one of these staff.

The name and CV of the TPDR (plus those of any additional experts
who may be engaged) must be submitted to the IEDR together with a
letter of authority from the third party. In this letter, the third party
must state that it has delegated responsibility to the TPDR to certify on
its behalf that the works on completion will be safe (in line with the
statements set out in Part C, the Site Handback Certificate), and that
the TPDR (and any proposed additional expertise) is competent to do
this.

Details of the TPDR, and other relevant personnel as appropriate, must
also be set out in the method statement for the handover/handback
sequence of the works.
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E.2.6 It is recognised that in some projects of long duration, the-role of the
TPDR may need to be carried out by several people. If this4s the case,
any such arrangements can be discussed with the IEDR and ‘procedures
for transfer of responsibility must be included in the method statement.

E.2.7 The TPDR is responsible and must have authority for:

e Ensuring that the third party contractor has made all reasonable
preparations, including provision of adequate resources, required to
carry out the works safely within the agreed programme and in
accordance with the approved method statement, legal agreements
and acceptances, and approved drawings

e Liaising with the IEDR prior to the works requiring
handover/handback in order to demonstrate that all preparations for
the works are complete

¢ Signing the relevant part of the Site Handover Certificate (Part B1)
and maintaining the third party copy of the completed Handover
Certificate

* Monitoring work progress against the agreed programme and
reporting progress to the IEDR

e Coordinating any changes to the programme or works necessary to
determine that it is safe to terminate the Possession and achieve a
timely handback, and/or ensure that there is no unplanned
disruption to IE train services

e Satisfying IE, represented by the IEDR, that the site is safe and
clear by completing the Site Handback Certificate (Part C of
Handover/Handback Certification) and any other certification that
may be required

E.3 Sequence On Site

E.3.1 At the appointed time, work may only commence on site after:

* The TPDR has completed Part B1 of the Site Handover Certificate to
confirm to the IEDR on site that the arrangements for the work are
in place in line with the accepted method statement, agreements
and drawings, and

e The IEDR has given the TPDR the completed Site Handover
Certificate (Part B of Site Handover/Handback Certification) to
confirm that the railway protection arrangements, in line with the
method statement, are in place and the third party may commence
the works as set out in the method statement.

E.3.2 The TPDR arranges for the limits of the site to be marked off (using
blue Netlon or similar fencing) as per the site demarcation set out in
the method statement. The designated section of the line may be
considered as a site.

E.3.3 The third party, including its agents and contractors, are then
responsible for the works and site in line with the SHWW Construction
Regulations 2006.

I-DEP-0121 Page 41 of 50

Issue 1.0



Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of

Railway Safety Requirements

E.3.4

E.3.5

E.4
E.4.1

E.4.2

E.4.3

E.4.4

The third party proceeds with the works. The TPDR or a delegated
representative must be present at all times to carry out his/her duties
as set out in the method statement.

On completion of the works, the TPDR, who must be present, infaitns
the IEDR that the works are complete and that the site is clear and
safe. The TPDR completes the Site Handback Certificate (Part C of Site
Handover/Handback Certification) and gives it to the IEDR who signs an
acknowledgement. Note that, depending on the circumstances and
complexity of the works, IE may require additional certification at this
point.

Unforeseen Events Affecting Handback

During the works, the TPDR must inform the IEDR immediately of any
unforeseen events which may affect the railway infrastructure, safety or
railway operations.

The third party is expected to have contingency plans within the
method statement for dealing with these unplanned events and to have
the appropriate resources available on site to ensure that the site can
be handed back safely and without disruption to IE train services. This
applies irrespective of whether or not the third party has been able to
complete the specified works.

In these circumstances, the TPDR arranges for the necessary remedial
measures after consultation with the IEDR.

Note: IE reserves the right at any stage to take steps to preserve the
integrity of the infrastructure as well as to ensure that the works do not
cause disruption to rail services. If unplanned events occur, the IEDR
may order the third party to carry out necessary works or remedial
measures. In some circumstances, IE may need to enter the site and
take the necessary steps itself to safeguard the railway operation and
infrastructure. If this is the case, IE will inform the third party of what
is intended and then implement this. The cost of such measures will be
at the third party’s expense.
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E.5 Site Handover/Handback Certification

(Page 1 of 3)

Site Handover/Handback Certification
Transfer of Site Responsibilities
between Iarnréd Eireann and Third Parties

Note: These certificates must be completed by the Iarnréd Eireann Designated
Representative (IEDR) and the Third Party Designated Representative (TPDR).

PART A: DETAILS OF WORK AND RELEVANT PERSONNEL

PROJECT

IE File Ref:

Name of Third
Party

Division

Line

Site Location

(append boundary of relevant site of works, description/sketch

from the method statement if necessary)

Mileage

Date

Summary of
Specified
Works as set
out in Method
Statement

PERSONNEL DETAILS

Iarnrdd Name

Eireann _

Designated Tel (include
Representative | @mergency contact)
IEDR _

( ) Signature

Third Party Name

Designated

Representative | Tel

(TPDR) Signature
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Site Handover/Handback Certification
Transfer of Site Responsibilities
between Iarnréd Eireann and Third Parties
(Page 2 of 3)
PART B: SITE HANDOVER CERTIFICATE (Transfer of Responsibility to Third Party;)

PART B1: TO BE COMPLETED IN ADVANCE OF SPECIFIED WORKS

I, being the authorised TPDR for

(insert third party name)

certify that the third party (including its contractor and other agents as relevant)
has taken all reasonable steps to ensure that the specified works can be carried
out safely in accordance with the legal agreements, accepted drawings and
method statement, and is now in a position to commence the works.

If additional certification at handback has been requested by the IEDR,
arrangements for this are in place.

Signed:

TPDR: Time and Date:
(print name)

Noted by:

IEDR: Time and Date:

(print name)

PART B2: AUTHORITY TO START WORK

The agreed railway protection arrangements are in place for the site (section of
railway) as set out in the approved method statement for the specified works.

The site is temporarily transferred to the third party to allow the specified works
to proceed.

If OHLE Isolation is required, a completed Part 1 of Form C Permit to Work has
also been given to the TPDR who has signed Part 2 of Form C.

These works must be complete and the site must be safe for handback by:

Handback Date and Time:

Authority is given by IEDR:

(print name)

Signed by IEDR: Time and Date:
Noted by TPDR: Time and Date:
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Site Handover/Handback Certificates
Transfer of Site Responsibilities
between Iarnréd Eireann and Third Parties

(Page 3 of 3)

PART C: SITE HANDBACK CERTIFICATE (Return of Responsibility to Iarnréd
Eireann)

I, being the authorised TPDR for

(insert third party name)

certify on behalf of the third party that:

1. The specified works (or part of the works) have been constructed in
accordance with the accepted drawings and specifications.

2. The site is safe and in a condition that does not pose a risk to railway
operations.

3. If OHLE Isolation was required, I also attach a completed Part 3 of Form C
Permit to Work (refer to Table D.1).

4. If additional certification has been requested in advance by the IEDR, I also
attach this.

Signed:

TPDR: Time and Date:
(print name)

Noted by:

IEDR: Time and Date:
(print name)
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APPENDIX F PERSONAL TRACK SAFETY TRAINING FOR

F.1
F.1.1

F.2
F.2.1

F.2.2

F.2.3

F.2.4

F.2.5

F.2.6

F.2.7

F.2.8

THIRD PARTY PERSONNEL

Overview

Third party personnel who have to work on or near the railway line are
required to attend the Contractor Personal Track Safety (PTS) Training
Course delivered by Iarnrdd Eireann (IE) and to possess a current
Personal Track Safety (PTS) certificate. Third parties are advised to
arrange for this well in advance of the time their personnel are due to
go on or near the railway line, and to factor this into their project
timescale.

Personal Safety on the Railway

Safety is of prime importance to IE. To this end, IE has developed a
Contractor Personal Track Safety training course which deals with
railway safety awareness. This training course informs third parties and
their personnel of the specific dangers of working in an operational
railway environment, and of safe working practices in that regard.

This training is provided by IE at its Training Centre, Inchicore, or at IE-
nominated regional training centres.

It is a requirement that each member of third party personnel
employed on site, including any agents or sub-contractors, possesses a
current Contractor Personal Track Safety (PTS) Certificate before being
permitted to work on or near the railway line.

Contractor PTS Certificates must be carried at all times on the railway
site and must be produced for inspection on request from any IE
authorised staff. If personnel cannot produce a certificate, they are not
permitted to remain on or near the railway line.

The IE Training Centre charges for the Contractor PTS Training Course
and will advise the third party of the fee. This charge must be paid in
advance. The third party must bear all other costs associated with
attending this course including employee time and travel.

Note: All third party personnel (and, thus, people sent for PTS training)
who are assigned to work on IE property must be able to understand
safety instructions given in English.

Contact details are:

Iarnréd Eireann Training Centre
Inchicore Railway Works
Dublin 8

Tel: (01) 703 3954
Fax: (01) 703 3942

The relevant course application form and guidelines (including current
fees) may be obtained on the IE website at www.irishrail.ie
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Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of
Railway Safety Requirements

APPENDIX G COMPLETION CERTIFICATE

This certificate must be filled out by the authorised representative of the third
party on completion of the works and returned to the Iarnréd Eireann Designated
Representative (IEDR). Note that other certification may be required as set ¢ut in
the legal agreement for the works.

COMPLETION CERTIFICATE _l
Project Contract/Ref No.
Description of Works Location (include milepost,
line, if necessary)

1. I certify that the works are complete and have been completed in accordance

standards. (Attach any testing and test results, as appropriate.)

2. I certify that the works being put into commission are safe, and in a condition
that does not pose a risk to the existing infrastructure, rolling stock or railway
operations.

Signed:
Authorised Representative of Third Party
(if agent, please include a letter of authorisation from the third party)

with the accepted drawings and specifications, and the relevant Iarnréd Eireann

Date:

Third Party:

Address:
Enclosed Documents v
(one copy of each)
As-built drawings (required)
As-built clearances to Iarnréd Eireann track,
boundary line etc. (as appropriate)
Testing/test certificates (as appropriate)
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Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of

Railway Safety Requirements

APPENDIX H THE SAFETY FILE

H.1
H.1.1

H.1.2

H.1.3

H.2
H.2.1

H.3
H.3.1

H.3.2

Background

Iarnréd Eireann (IE) requires a copy of the Safety File for the specified
works to be submitted at the end of the works. This applies irrespective
of who will maintain the completed works; the maintenance
responsibility is set out in the relevant legal agreements.

The objective of the Safety File is to ensure that information, including
details on possible hazards, is available for reference in the event of
any future work on the site. The information should be relevant
whether the future work involves a new construction or the repair,
alteration or maintenance of the existing works.

Note: The Safety File should only cover matters of interest to IE
relating to the safety impact on the railway. For example, IE does not
require details of the adjacent road project, only those of the bridge
over the railway.

Minimum Requirements in a Safety File

The actual contents of a Safety File required by IE can vary depending
on the type of project and may be set out in the legal agreements. The
minimum requirements are outlined below:

e As-built construction drawings, specifications and bill of quantities.

¢ Maintenance procedures and requirements for the installation
and/or structure. These should state whether maintenance requires
personnel or plant to go on or about railway property and should list
the relevant procedures if this is the case (including details of
approvals from IE).

e General design criteria and references to applicable standards.

¢ Details of the equipment and maintenance facilities regarding the
installation and/or structure.

e Manuals and certificates, where appropriate, produced by specialist
contractors and suppliers. These must outline operating and
maintenance procedures, and schedules for plant and equipment
installed as part of the installation and/or structure.

e Details on the location and nature of utilities and services including
emergency and firefighting systems, as may be appropriate.

Submission of the Safety File

The Project Supervisor Desigh Process (PSDP) finalises the Safety File.
This is submitted to the IEDR who checks it for completeness. If it is
not adequate, the third party is required to re-submit the Safety File for
review and approval.

The copy of the Safety File supplied to IE must include two hard copies
of the as-built drawings, and one digital copy. Where the information is
supplied in digital format, it should preferably be in Adobe PDF; other
formats, however, will also suffice such as MS Word or Excel. The
digital format for drawings is CAD format (AutoCAD 2000), in DWG or
DXF format.

I-DEP-0121
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Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of

Railway Safety Requirements

APPENDIX I SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

I.11

I.1.2

I.1.3

I.1.4

I.1.5

A Safety Management System must be established for all third party
railway-related work. An overview document describing the systerm
must be prepared by the third party. This must outline the relevant
information required by IE describing how safety is managed during the
project, including procedures for setting up a safe system of work in
those areas where there is a potential safety impact on the railway.
Specific details for the various stages are not required; these will be set
out in the relevant method statement(s). The document should not
include issues which are not of relevance to the railway-related works.
It may include appropriate extracts from the project Safety and Health
Plan of the third party’s contractors. Note that IE does not normally
require to be presented with the document setting out the Safety
Management System for the entire project.

The document setting out the railway-related details of the Safety
Management System must be issued to IE during the detailed design
review (reference Section 8.4 of I-DEP-0120). It can also be used for
submission by IE to the Railway Safety Commission (RSC) at this stage.

An updated final version of the above document, with th,e focus on the
final site-specific details, must be issued to the Iarnrod Eireann (IEDR)
at the pre-construction stage at the same time as the first method
statement is being submitted.

This document should also inclyde reference to measures that ensure
there will be no disruption to IE train services.

The document setting out the railway-related details of the Safety
Management System may include some or all of the following topics but
is not limited to them:

e Brief overall description of the planned works.

¢ Details of project team organisation. This includes identification of
the competent Project Supervisor Design Process (PSDP) and
Project Supervisor Construction Stage (PSCS), and, in relation to
safety issues, nomination of points of contact for IE such as the
Third Party Designated Representative (TPDR). The document
should describe how safety is managed and by whom.

e Schedule of method statements and temporary works submissions
(identify each and identify the delivery dates where appropriate).

e Procedures for checking and approving temporary works and
method statements. These must identify checkers and approvers
and include sample signatures. (See Appendix D Design and Check
Procedures of I-DEP-0120.)

e Description of safety auditing processes by the third party. These
must outline the frequency of audits, identify who conducts them,
and give details on the availability of audit reports.

e Safety and induction training arrangements (including Contractor
Personal Track Safety training). Site familiarisation and briefing by
the third party must also be covered.

¢ Segregated working areas. These must be defined.

I-DEP-0121
Issue 1.0

Page 49 of 50



Iarnréd Eireann Third Party Works: Additional Details of
Railway Safety Requirements

¢ Procedures for on-site storage of accepted designs and-method
statements.

e Handover/handback process, if applicable.
e Change control process, covering change of drawings etc.

e Quality control process with particular reference to railway safety.
For example, if bridge beams are to span the railway, details are
required of the quality control system for the production of these
beams.

e Control process for compliance of third party staff with the IE Drugs
and Alcohol Policy on the railway site.

e Emergency contact details.
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From: Gerard O'Sullivan

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:48
To: Brandon Taylor; Jimmy Sugrue
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from gosullivan@ivertec.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon

This development will have no impact on our network.

Kind Regards,

Gerard O Sullivan
Business Development Manager
Provincial House, Main Street, Caherciveen, Co. Kerry, V23 EH70

ivertec

Are you pleased with Ivertec?
Give us a rating on Google or Facebook. We'd love to get your feedback.
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:15 AM

To: Jimmy Sugrue <jsugrue@ivertec.ie>

Cc: Gerard O'Sullivan <gosullivan@ivertec.ie>
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

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Ivertec links within 5km of the site, if
any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine blade tip and
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
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From: Thomas Barry.

Sent: Monday 18 September 2023 08:03

To: Brandon Taylor

Subject: FW: From quarantine : EXTERNAL MAIL:- Potential Wind Farm Site
in Gannow

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

David,

We anticipate no impact from the development as proposed. Can you ensure it is also reviewed by
eir.

Regards,
Tom

From: Derek Rosarius

Sent: 28 August 2023 13:19

To: Neville Reilly; Thomas Barry

Subject: From quarantine : EXTERNAL MAIL:- Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Regards

Derek Rosarius | Quality & Compliance Manager |
TETRA Ireland Communications Ltd

Block 43a, 2nd floor, Yeats Way, Parkwest Business Park, Nangor Road, D12
M +353 85 1746044 | £ _.derek.rosarius@tetraireland.ie www.tetraireland.ie/

From: Brandon Taylor [mailto:btaylor@mkoireland.ie]

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:22

To: Neville Reilly

Subject: EXTERNAL MAIL:- Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

CAUTION: This mail is from outside Tetra.
Do NOT click suspicious links.
Do NOT click or download suspicious attachments.

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


mailto:Tom.Barry@TETRAIRELAND.IE
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http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=p7G025apv59Fey_ZSM6oQWPls-6v86inDCMcMQoDeA&s=187&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2etetraireland%2eie%2f

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Tetra links within 5km of the site, if
any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine blade tip and
the link.

If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your tirne.and
consideration to this matter.

Kind regards,
Brandon.

Brandon Taylor MSc. BSc.
Graduate Environmental Scientist

Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

A
Offices in Galway and Dublin M 14 o >
¥

mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

Privacy Notice: This message contains confidential information and is intended
only for the intended recipients. If you are not an intended recipient you should not
disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately
by e-mail if you have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from
your system. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free
as information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or
incomplete. The sender therefore does not accept liability for any errors or
omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of e-mail
transmission. If verification is required please request a hard-copy version. F
MAYNE (UK), K MAHER (US), O HENKEN (GE) REGISTERED IN IRELAND
NO.406355, PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES REGISTERED OFFICE:
C/O LAW DEBENTURE (IRELAND) LIMITED, 38/39 FITZWILLIAM SQUARE
WEST, DUBLIN 2, D02 NX53
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From: Monika Biniaszewska

Sent: Tuesday 29 August 2023 13:21
To: Brandon Taylor; Alan Hutchinson; David Montgomery,
Cc: Sean Kelly

Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow ;@

N
I Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments. Q/ b

Hi Brandon, 6\0

I've reviewed the potential Wind Farm Site at Gannow, Co. Galway and it will have affect 3 links on the Three Ireland Microwave Transmission network: 9\9
77
fa)
Freg. Length Site A X Y Dish Height Site B X Y eight
GA0356 - Towercom YZ?
1 ML020129 13GHz 15km Cappataggle 172628 225279 30m GA0253 - Attymon 159020 232000 30w D
GA0073 - IS

2 MLO050179 18GHz 11.6km GAD0300 - Loughrea ESB 163016 216988 30m Derrynamanagh 164160 228617 30m
3 ML051627 26GHz 9.2km GA0296 - Rahally 166170 225654 20m GAO0300 - Loughrea ESB 163016 216988 20m

Can you use the setback distance- 50m please.

Thanks
Monika

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mbkoireland.ie>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:35 AM

To: Alan Hutchinson <alan.hutchinson@three.ie>; Monika Bini
Subject: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

<Monika.Bini

hree.ie>; David Montgomery <David.Montgomery@three.ie>

CAUTION! External Email.

Good morning,
We are undertaking constraints mapping for the viability of a wind farm development at Gannow, Co. Galway. There are no turbine layouts at this early stage yet.
The centre coordinates for the Gannow site are 561285 (X, ITM), 729520 (Y, ITM). Please also see the attached 5km buffer shapefile and KML for your convenience.

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Three links within 5km of the site, if any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine blade tip and the
link.

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

Three Ireland
28/29 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland.

www.three.je Fali T YoIn

This e-mail message (including any attachment) is intended only for the personal use of the recipient(s) named above. This message is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not review, copy or
distribute this message. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by e-mail and delete the original message. Any views or opinions expressed in this message are those of the author only. Three Ireland (Hutchison)
Limited is a company registered in Ireland with company number 316982. Registered Office 28/29 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland. Three Ireland Services (Hutchison) Limited is a company registered in Ireland with company number
234895. Registered Office 28/29 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland. Furthermore, this message (including any attachment) does not create any legally binding rights or obligations whatsoever, which may only be created by the exchange of
hard copy documents signed by a duly authorized representative(s) of Three Ireland (Hutchison) Limited or Three Ireland Services (Hutchison) Limited
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From: Mark Nolan

Sent: Monday 11 September 2023 11:30
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,

This development will have no impact on Virgin Media’s wireless network.
Rgds

Mark

Mark Nolan B2B Access Network Manager

Virgin Media |LEDP, Roxboro Road, Limerick.

D: +353(0) )1 2458480 | M: + 353(0)862315007
mark.nolan@yirginmedia.ie | www.virginmedia.ie

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>
Sent: Monday, September 11, 2023 11:27 AM
To: Mark Nolan <Mark.Nolan@virginmedia.ie>
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from btaylor@mkoireland.ie. Learn why this is important

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning,

I am following up with the request for the start and end point (ITM) of all Virgin Media links within
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

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:26 AM
To: mark.nolan@virginmedia.ie

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

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Virgin Media links within 5km of the
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

FrRkeksees®* Virgin Media Ireland Limited Registered Number in Ireland: 435668
Registered Address: Macken House, 39/40 Mayor Street Upper, Dublin 1, DO1
COWS8. The contents of this email and any attachments are sent for the attention of
the addressee(s) only and are or may be confidential, proprietary and/or privileged
material. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender
immediately and delete it from your system. If you are not the addressee, any
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review, retransmission, disclosure, copying or other use of this email and any
attachments is prohibited. Statements and opinions expressed in this email may
not represent those of the company and any representations or ccmmitments in
this email are subject to contract,"«******xxsrxeex



From: Robert Power, Vodafone (External)

Sent: Wednesday 30 August 2023 12:18

To: Brandon Taylor

Cc: Siobhan Burke, Vodafone; Gavin Byrne, Vodafone
Subject: RE: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

You don't often get email from robert.powerl @vodafone.com. Learn why this is important

I Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,
There are 3 links inside the 5km buffer. A clearance of 30m from the first fresnel zone is desired.

Details provided below. Please let me know if you need any other information.

Kind Regards,
Robert

Site A
Link Name / ID Band MHz\GHz | . Ant
Lat Long Easting | Northing Height
GY023GY055_S0 28 GHz 5.86km 53.33686877 | -8.615908731 15m 53.37010633 | -8.547296308 15m
GYCPGGY023_S0 18 GHz 13.72km 53.37010633 | -8.547296308 15m 53.27736181 | -8.411045379 15m
GYCPGGY229_S0 26 GHz 6.45km 53.28036684 | -8.507950265 15m 53.27736181 | -8.411045379 15m

Robert Power
Transmission Engineer
Technology- NET
+353864648455
robert.powerl @yvodafone.com

Vodafone Ireland Limited, Registered Office:
View, L , Dublin 18, Regi in
Ireland: No. 326967

vodafone.ie

The future is exciting.
Ready?

€2 General

From: Siobhan Burke, Vodafone <siobhan.burkel@vodafone.com>
Sent: Wednesday 30 August 2023 10:37

To: Robert Power, Vodafone (External) <robert.powerl@vodafone.com>
Subject: FW: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

Hi Rob,
Can you please have a look at below when you get a chance.

Thanks.
Siobhan

€2 General

From: Gavin Byrne, Vodafone <gavin.byrne@vodafone.com>
Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:48

To: Siobhan Burke, Vodafone <siobhan.burke1@vodafone.com>; Sean Lyons, Vodafone (External) <sean.lyons@vodafone.com>

Subject: FW: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

HI Siobhan,



https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
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Can you ask one of the team to take a look at the attached windfarm.

Gavin Byrne

Senior TX Planning & Design Engineer
Converged Transmission

+353 876448159
gavin.byrne@yodafone.com

Vodafone Ireland Limited, Registered Office:
inView, L , Dublin 18, Regi: din
Ireland: No. 326967

vodafone.ie

The future is exciting.
Ready?

C2 General

From: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:27

To: Gavin Byrne, Vodafone <gavin.byrne @vodafone.com>
Subject: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow

sure that an k attachments contained within it are safe? If in ai use the Report Mes

Good morning,
We are undertaking constraints mapping for the viability of a wind farm development at Gannow, Co. Galway. There are no turbine layouts at this early stage yet.
The centre coordinates for the Gannow site are 561285 (X, ITM), 729520 (Y, ITM). Please also see the attached 5km buffer shapefile and KML for your convenience.

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Vodafone links within 5km of the site, if any? Please also confirm your required setback distance from any potential turbine
blade tip and the link.

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



http://vodafone.ie/
mailto:gavin.byrne@vodafone.com
http://vodafone.ie/
mailto:btaylor@mkoireland.ie
mailto:gavin.byrne@vodafone.com
http://www.mkoireland.ie/

From: Westnet

Sent: Monday 28 August 2023 11:48
To: Brandon Taylor
Subject: Re: Potential Wind Farm Site in Gannow [wn#146644/]

You don't often get email from info@westnet.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Brandon,

We don't have any infrastructure in that area that would be affected by the
proposed development.

Jules
Westnet Support
On Mon 28 Aug 2023, 10:27 Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie> wrote:

Good morning,

We are undertaking constraints mapping for the viability of a wind farm
development at Gannow, Co. Galway. There are no turbine layouts at
this early stage yet.

The centre coordinates for the Gannow site are 561285 (X, ITM),
729520 (Y, ITM). Please also see the attached 5km buffer shapefile
and KML for your convenience.

Could you please provide the start and end point (ITM) of all Western
Broadband links within 5km of the site, if any? Please also confirm your
required setback distance from any potential turbine blade tip and the
link.

If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank
you for your time and consideration to this matter.

Westnet Broadband Mayo Ltd t/a Westnet

PO Box 101, Castlebar DSU, Castlebar, Co Mayo
Registered in Ireland no. 572580
www.westnet.ie
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From: Donal Bracken

Sent: Friday 30 May 2025 09:20

To: Phelim Dolan; Catherine Johnson; Michael O'Connell

Cc: Darren Wallace; Brandon Taylor; Edel Mulholland; auroralink

Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

You don't often get email from donal.bracken@gasnetworks.ie. Learn why this is important

I Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments.

Hi Catherine,

As Phelim said, we are alongside the gas pipeline at the southern impact location, 3no. 50mm ducts(green, white and orange in colour) usually approx. 1m of cover and within tm{of the pipeline,
this will have to be exposed under GNI supervision(we are available to attend also) and the crossing process agreed with GNI.

As for the impact location on the L3103, we have 2no. 32mm ducts on the southern side of the road, this was installed by directional drill and would generally be at approx. 1m cover| tHisill not
show up with a CAT scan as it is a fibre optic cable, this will have to be located by trial holing(hand dig) under our supervision and left exposed while your ducts pass underneath.

| am available to attend site to discuss details and can be contacted on 086 8344473.

Regards
Donal

From: Phelim Dolan <Phelim.Dolan@gasnetworks.ie>

Sent: Wednesday 28 May 2025 09:46

To: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>; Michael O'Connell <Michael.OConnell@gasnetworks.ie>

Cc: Darren Wallace <darren.wallace@gasnetworks.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; auroralink <auroralink@gasnetworks.ie>
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

Thanks Michael,
Hi Catherine,
Thanks for reaching out to us. Our telecom duct is adjacent to the gas pipeline at the intersection shown below. I’ll let Michael and the guys come back to you on the crossing methodology.

Please keep auroralink@gasnetworks.ie posted on your planning progress.

Regards,
Phelim

Phelim Dolan | Operations Manager
M: +353 87 1867622

An operating division of Gas Networks Ireland

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 27 May 2025 18:06

To: Michael O'Connell <Michael.OC: works.ie>

Cc: Darren Wallace <darren.wallace@gasnetworks.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Phelim Dolan <Phelim.Dolan@gasnetworks.ie>
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

Hi Michael,

Thanks so much for the supplying the below information. We have contacted Aurora telecoms as well.
Can you please confirm if GNI is able to advise on the crossing methodology at this proposed location?
Kind regards,

Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

From: Michael O'Connell <Michael.OCc I works.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 27 May 2025 17:45

To: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Cc: Darren Wallace <darren.wallace @gasnetworks.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Edel d <emulhol oireland.ie>; Phelim Dolan <Phelim.Dolan@gasnetworks.ie>
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

You don't often get email from michael. ie. Learn why this is important

I Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments.

Catherine

Find attached as-laid drawing where you cross the Gas pipeline.
For the other location where you are crossing the Aurora Telecom please contact Auroralink@gasnetworks.ie for details and crossing requirements.
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Regards

Michael O Connell

GIS Super User

Gas Networks Ireland

P.O. Box 51,Gasworks Road, Cork, Ireland

M 087 3833858

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mpkoireland.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 27 May 2025 13:18

To: Michael O'Connell <Michael.OC I works.ie>

Cc: Darren Wallace <darren.wallace @gasnetworks.ie>; Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Edel d <emulhol i ie:
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

Hi Michael,

Please see the IG and ITM coordinates below as well as a KML of these point locations.

Interaction No. W/ | X IG YIG
GNI Network

1 146416 229549
2 229549 228225

Please let me know if you need anything further.
Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

From: Michael O'Connell <Michael.OC I works.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 27 May 2025 11:58

To: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mkoireland.ie>

Cc: Darren Wallace <darren.wallace @gasnetworks.ie>

Subject: FW: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

You don't often get email from michael. 2, ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care when clicking links or opening attachments.

Catherine
Do you have the 2 locations where you cross the GNI network so | can send you on the as-laids.
Regards

Michael O Connell

GIS Super User

Gas Networks Ireland

P.O. Box 51,Gasworks Road, Cork, Ireland

M 087 3833858

From: Darren Wallace <darren.wallace @gasnetworks.ie>

Sent: Tuesday 27 May 2025 11:25

To: Donal O'Caoimh <Donal.OCaoimh@gasnetworks.ie>; Michael O'Connell <Michael.OCt
Cc: Process Safety <ProcessSafety @gasnetworks.ie>; Chris Dillon (C) <Chris.Dillon @gasnetworks.ie>
Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

.ie>; Brendan Creedon | IPEC <brendan@ipec.ie>

Hi All,

Donal, thanks for sending through.
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@Michael O'Connell if possible, can you send this developer over the required GNI network information?
@Brendan Creedon | IPEC | will schedule a meeting with this developer to discuss the project. Is the Galway region covered by yourself or Chris?

Thanks,
Darren.

From: Donal O'Caoimh <Donal.OCaocimh@gasnetworks.ie>

Sent: Monday 26 May 2025 17:00

To: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie>; Chris Dillon (C) <chris.dillon @gasnetworks.ie>; Darren Wallace <darren.wallace @gasnetworks.ie>
Cc: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mk e>; Edel Mulholland <emulholland @mkoirelan Process Safety <ProcessSafety@gasnetworks.
Subject: Re: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

Hi Catherine,
Thanks for your mail. | have since moved roles in GNI.

@Darren Wallace, see below and attached for reference.

Regards,

Dénal O Caoimh
Health and Safety Manager
donal.ocacimh@gasnetworks.ie

0872841209

Gas Networks Ireland,
P.O. Box 51, Gasworks Road,
Cork, Ireland. T12 RX96.

From: Catherine Johnson <cjohnson@mpkoireland.ie>

Sent: Monday 26 May 2025 12:00 pm

To: Donal 0'Cacimh <donal.ocacimh@gasnetworks.ie>; Chris Dillon (C) <chris.dillon@gasnetworks.ie>

Cc: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mkoireland.ie>; Process Safety <ProcessSafety@gasnetworks.ie>
Subject: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

Morning Mr. O Caoimh and Mr. Dillion,

My name is Catherine Johnson; | am an environmental scientist at MKO and am currently project managing the proposed Gannow Renewable Energy Development in CO. Galway.

MKO has been appointed as Environmental Consultants on this project and will be preparing an Environmental Impact Assessment Report Statement (EIAR) for the proposed renewable energy
development on behalf of Gannow Ltd.
Gannow Ltd is investigating the potential for a proposed renewable energy development at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in County Galway.

The Proposed Grid Connection 38kV underground cable route from the proposed onsite 38kV substation to the existing Cashla 220kV substation interacts with a GNI high-pressure pipeline and
associated telecommunications duct at 1 no. location, and a separate telecommunications duct at a second location. Please see attached a briefing note with key information on the Proposed
Grid Connection and its interactions with the GNI network as well as key project details. | have also attached a KML of the EIAR Site Boundary for your information.

As part of the EIA process, MKO is seeking the as built details of the relevant sections of the GNI network, i.e., the 2 no, locations in which the Proposed Grid Connection underground cable route
interacts and clarity on the most appropriate crossing methodology at these locations. Furthermore, MKO would welcome any comments that GNI might have in relation to the Proposed Project,
including baseline data and survey techniques at the above identified interaction points with the GNI network that should be considered as part of the assessment process and in the preparation
of the EIAR.

If you could return any comments or suggestions at your earliest convenience, it would be much appreciated. If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Appreciate that you both might not be the appropriate point of contact, if this is the case please let us know who would be most appropriate to direct this email to.

Kind regards,

Catherine

Catherine Johnson BSc. LLM.
Environmental Scientist

MKO
Tuam Road, Galway, H91 VW84

Offices in Galway and Dublin
mkoireland.ie | +353 (0)91 735 611

Ta an fhaisnéis & seachadadh dirithe ar an duine né ar an elnmeas chuig a bhfuil si seolta amhain agus féadfar abhar faoi ran, faoi phribhléid né abhar ata iogair ¢ thaobh trachtala de a bheith mar chuid de. Ta aon
athsheachadadh né den fhaisnéis, aon a ar no aon usaid eile a bhaint as, né aon ghniomh a dhéantar ag brath ar an bhfaisnéis seo ag daoine né ag eintitis nach déibh sitd an fhaisnéis seo,
toirimiscthe agus féadfar ¢ a bheith neamhdhleathach Nil Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh iomlan agus ceart na faisnéise sa chumarsaid seo né maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. Ni
ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon dliteanas faoi ghnimh né faoi iarmhairti bunaithe ar Gsaid thoirmiscthe na faisnéise seo. Nil Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh ceart agus iomlan na
faisnéise sa chumarsaid seo né maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. M4 fuair tu an teachtaireacht seo in earraid, mas é do thoil é, déan teagmhail leis an seolt6ir agus scrios an t-abhar ¢ gach aon riomhaire.
Féadfar riomhphost a bheith soghabhalach i leith truaillithe, idircheaptha agus | leith leasaithe neamhudarallhe Ni ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon fhreagracht as athruithe né as idircheapadh a rinneadh ar
an riomhphost seo i ndiaidh é a sheoladh né as aon dochar do chérais na bk iri déanta ag an ht seo n6 ag a ceangaltain. Mas é do thoil é, tabhair faoi deara chomh maith go bhféadfar
monatéireacht a dhéanamh ar theachtaireachtai chuig né 6 Lionrai Gais Eireann chun comhlionadh le polasaithe agus le caighdeain Lionrai Gais Eireann a chinntiti agus chun ar ngné a chosaint. Lionrai Gais
Eireann cuideachta ghniomhaiochta ainmnithe, faoi theorainn scaireanna, ata corpraithe in Eirinn leis an uimhir chlaraithe 555744 agus a ta hoifig chlaraithe ag Béthar na nOibreacha Gais, Corcaigh, T12 RX96.

Go raibh maith agat as d'aird a thabhairt.

The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential, commercially sensitive and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination
or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. Gas Networks Ireland accepts no liability for actions
or effects based on the prohibited usage of this information . Gas Networks Ireland is neither liable for the proper and complete transmission of the information contained in this communication nor for any delay in its
receipt. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from any computer.

E-Mail may be susceptible to data corruption, interception and unauthorized amendment. Gas Networks Ireland accepts no responsibility for changes to or interception of this e-mail after it was sent or for any
damage to the recipients systems or data caused by this message or its attachments. Please also note that messages to or from Gas Networks Ireland may be monitored to ensure compliance with Gas Networks
Ireland’s policies and standards and to protect our business. Gas Networks Ireland a designated activity company, limited by shares, incorporated in Ireland with registered number 555744 and having its registered
office at Gasworks Road, Cork, T12 RX96.

Thank you for your attention.
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Téa an fhaisnéis & seachadadh dirithe aran dume né ar an elnmeas chulg a bhfuil si seolta amhain agus féadfar abhar faoi rtn, faoi phribhléid n6 abhar ata iogair ¢ thaobh trachtala de a bheith mar chuid de. Ta aon
athsheachadadh né den aon att U ar n6 aon Usaid eile a bhaint as, n6 aon ghniomh a dhéantar ag brath ar an bhfaisnéis seo ag daoine né'ag eintitis nach doibh sitid an fhaisnéis seo,
toirimiscthe agus féadfar ¢ a bheith neamhdhleathach. Nil Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh iomlan agus ceart na faisnéise sa chumarséid séojiwo,maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. Ni
ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon dliteanas faoi ghnimh né faoi iarmhairti bunaithe ar tsaid thoirmiscthe na faisnéise seo. Nil Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas naidir le seachadadh ceart agus iomlan na
faisnéise sa chumarséid seo né maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. Ma fuair ti an teachtaireacht seo in earraid, mas ¢ do thoil €, déan teagmhail leis an seoltéir agus scrigs an t-abhar 6 gach aon riomhaire.
Féadfar riomhphost a bheith soghabhalach i leith truaillithe, idircheaptha agus i leith \easaithe neamhudaraithe. Ni ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon fhreagracht as athruithé o as idircheapadh a rinneadh ar
an riomhphost seo i ndiaidh € a sheoladh n6 as aon dochar do chérais na bhfai i déanta ag an i ht seo nd ag a ceangaltain. Mas ¢é do thoil ¢, tabhair faoi deara.chgfnh maith go bhféadfar
monatéireacht a dhéanamh ar theachtaireachtai chuig né ¢ Lionrai Gais Eireann chun comhlionadh le polasaithe agus le caighdeain Lionrai Gais Eireann a chinntiti agus chun arngné.a chosaint. Lionrai Gais
Eireann cuideachta ghniomhaiochta ainmnithe, faoi theorainn scaireanna, ata corpraithe in Eirinn leis an uimhir chlaraithe 555744 agus a ta hoifig chlaraithe ag Béthar na nOibreactia Géis, Corcaigh, T12 RX96.

Go raibh maith agat as daird a thabhairt.

The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential, commercially sensitive and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmissiah.dissemination
or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. Gas Networks Ireland accepts no tiability for actions
or effects based on the prohibited usage of this information . Gas Networks Ireland is neither liable for the proper and complete transmission of the information contained in this communication nor for afy(dlay in its
receipt. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from any computer.

E-Mail may be susceptible to data corruption, interception and unauthorized amendment. Gas Networks Ireland accepts no responsibility for changes to or interception of this e-mail after it was sent or for asy
damage to the recipients systems or data caused by this message or its attachments. Please also note that messages to or from Gas Networks Ireland may be monitored to ensure compliance with Gas Netwrks
Ireland’s policies and standards and to protect our business. Gas Networks Ireland a designated activity company, limited by shares, incorporated in Ireland with registered number 555744 and having its registered:
office at Gasworks Road, Cork, T12 RX96.

Thank you for your attention.

Téa an fhaisnéis & seachadadh dirithe aran duine né ar an elnmeas chuig a bhfuil si seolta amhain agus féadfar abhar faoi run, faoi phribhléid n6 abhar ata iogair 6 thaobh trachtala de a bheith mar chuid de. Ta aon
athsheachadadh né den fh aon ath it ar n6 aon Usaid eile a bhaint as, n6 aon ghniomh a dhéantar ag brath ar an bhfaisnéis seo ag daoine n¢ ag eintitis nach déibh siud an fhaisnéis seo,
toirimiscthe agus féadfar ¢ a bheith neamhdhleathach. Nil Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh iomlan agus ceart na faisnéise sa chumarséid seo né maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. Ni
ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon dliteanas faoi ghnimh né faoi iarmhairti bunaithe ar tsaid thoirmiscthe na faisnéise seo. Nil Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh ceart agus iomlan na
faisnéise sa chumarsaid seo né maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. M4 fuair tu an teachtaireacht seo in earraid, mas é do thoil é, déan teagmhail leis an seolt6ir agus scrios an t-abhar ¢ gach aon riomhaire.
Féadfar riomhphost a bheith soghabhalach i leith truaillithe, idircheaptha agus | leith leasaithe neamhudaralthe Ni ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon fhreagracht as athruithe n6 as idircheapadh a rinneadh ar
an riomhphost seo i ndiaidh é a sheoladh né as aon dochar do chérais na bk iri déanta ag an ht seo n6 ag a ceangaltain. Mas é do thoil é, tabhair faoi deara chomh maith go bhféadfar
monatdireacht a dhéanamh ar theachtaireachtai chuig n6 ¢ Lionrai Gais Eireann chun comhlionadh le polasaithe agus le caighdeain Lionrai Gais Eireann a chinntiti agus chun ar ngno a chosaint. Lionrai Gais
Eireann cuideachta ghniomhaiochta ainmnithe, faoi theorainn scaireanna, ata corpraithe in Eirinn leis an uimhir chlaraithe 555744 agus a ta hoifig chlaraithe ag Bothar na nOibreacha Gais, Corcaigh, T12 RX96.

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
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When carrying out work in the vicinity of the tranmsission
network follow the following process &S

Oé}%\
IMPORTANT: Q.
Flowchart should be used in conjunction with this Code of Practiceggyl not in
isolation. If at any time during the works the transmission network is #Baged,
even slightly, then observe the precautions in Section 1 of this document.S

DESIGN & PLANNING
Consider the requirements of this document and the impact on proposed works
(Sections 8 & 9)

CONTACT GAS NETWORKS IRELAND
Contact Gas Networks Ireland to obtain formal consent
(Section 5)

NOTICE TO COMMENCE
Having received formal consent, a minimum of 5 working days notice prior to

commencement of the work is required

REQUEST MARKING OUT OF TRANSMISSION PIPELINE ROUTE
A minimum of 3 working days notice is required by GNI to mark out the transmission
pipeline route

OBSERVE RESTRICTIONS
Observe GNI restrictions on the allowed proximity of mechanical excavators and other power
tools and the measures to protect the transmission pipeline and associated installations
during any works (Sections 10, 11, 12 & 13)
NOTE: GNI may wish to oversee the work. Such instances will be identified in the formal consent

BACKFILLING
Contact GNI prior to any backfilling over, alongside or under the transmission pipeline and
obtain GNI's agreement to proceed. GNI require 2 working days notice prior to backfilling
(Section 12)

If in doubt contact Gas

SPECIFIC ACTIVITIES
Networks Ireland

If work involves any of the following activities:
Trenchless Techniques, Piling,
DIAL BEFORE YOU DIG

Surface Mineral Extraction, Land Filling, Demolition,
Blasting, Pressure Testing, Seismic Surveys, Wind Farms =) (18004277 47

Comply with the requirements in Section 14
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Foreword

Compliance with this Code of Practice does NOT confer immunity from
prosecution for breach of statutory or other legal obligations.

This code of practice does not cover emergency work or normal agricultural work
(as defined below), but it is recommended that in such cases the requirements of the
code should be observed as far as possible.

Any damage to a transmission pipeline or its coating can affect its integrity and

can resultin failure of the transmission pipeline with potentially serious hazardous
consequences for individuals located in the vicinity of the transmission pipeline. Itis
therefore essential that the procedures outlined in this document are complied with
when working near the transmission network.

Failure to apply for consent and/or to comply fully with this Code of Practice to the
satisfaction of GNI may result in the commencement of legal proceedings by Gas
Networks Ireland to stop such works.

Activities associated with working in the vicinity of the transmission network may
impact on the safety of the general public, site workers, GNI staff and contractors,
and may affect the local environment. All Third Parties working close to the
transmission network shall carry out suitable and adequate risk assessments prior
to the commencement of work to ensure that all such issues are properly considered
and risks mitigated.

Contractors and other users external to GNI should direct their requests for further
copies of GNI engineering documents to Gas Networks Ireland.



1 Safety Procedure in the Case of Damage to the

Transmission Network ’%\O
®L
If the GNI transmission network is damaged or leaking, the fO"O\i'(l\tD)g
precautionary measures shall be taken immediately: 9%9
/90
%

e Inthe event of gas leakage do not switch any machinery on or off in the vicinity
of the leak.

e Advise GNI or its representative if there are any safety features on the machine
such as engine idling automatic shutoff facilities.

e Prohibit smoking, the use of naked flames, the use of electrical switches,
the use of mobile phones and the use of all other ignition sources in the
vicinity of the leak/damage.

e Evacuate all personnel away from and upwind of the affected area.

e Ensurethat no one approaches the affected area without the consent of
Gas Networks Ireland.

e Once clear of the area, report all damage or leakage, however minor it may
appear, to the Gas Networks Ireland 24hr Emergency Service on 1800 205050

e Do not attempt to repair the damage or stop the leak.

Note: Any damage to the coating of a GNI transmission pipeline, no matter
how apparently insignificant, shall be brought to the attention of GNI in

order to carry out repairs. Minor damage to pipe coating and/or ancillary
connections brought to the attention of GNI will be repaired free of charge.

If you smell gas call

1800 20 50 50

24hr emergency service



2 Definitions

For the purpose of this Code of Practice the following definitions shall apply:

GNI: Gas Networks Ireland.

GNI Inspector: The person appointed
from time to time by GNI, to act as the
GNI Representative on site, to ensure

compliance with this Code of Practice.

Third Party: The promoter of New Works,
the person or persons, firm, company or
authority for whom new services or other
works are being provided, including their
servants, agents and contractors.

Wayleave: A strip of land, upon and

over which GNI has, under the terms of
Gas Act (1976 as amended), acquired

the rights to lay, construct, inspect,
maintain, protect, use, replace, remove
or render unusable a main or pipe for the
transmission or storage of gas or other
materials connected with the exercise and
performance of the functions of GNI and
all necessary apparatus ancillary thereto.
The wayleave can extend up to 9 metres
either side of the transmission pipeline.

A GNIlwayleave is a legal burden on the
title of the property within which it exists
and is noted as such on the relevant Land
Registry Folio.

Normal Agricultural Works: For the
purpose of this Code of Practice, ‘Normal
Agriculture Works' are such works which
do not involve the use of

a) Excavators (tracked or wheeled)
irrespective of the proposed
excavation depth, or

b) Other mechanical soil penetrating
machines such as fence post augers.

Installation: GNI transmission
installations are primarily above ground
(AGI) with a number below ground (UGI)
comprising some or all of the following:
Main stream pipework, control pipework,
telemetry, instrumentation, boiler houses,
analyser kiosks, generators and services.

Hot Works: Hot works is any tool,
equipment and/or activity, which produces
sparks, fire or has the potential to cause
fires or explosions including, but not limited
to, electric/battery powered tools, welding,
cutting, brazing, soldering, grinding, etc.

Distribution Strategic Mains: Due to an

increased gas safety risk the following Dx

mains shall be designated as strategic:

e Single feeder mains to with in excess
of 5000 customers

e PE400 mains.



3 Scope

This Code of Practice sets out the requirements and considerations forthe design,
construction and maintenance of services and/or structures and other wétks in
the vicinity of existing Gas Networks Ireland (GNI) Gas transmission pipelinesand
associated Installations located in both Wayleaves and public roadways.

4 Purpose

The purpose of this Code of Practice is to:

e Setoutconsiderations for the design, planning and execution of works.
e Advise on the GNI procedures associated with works.

e I|dentify the measures to be taken to ensure the integrity of the gas network,
and

e Assistin ensuring the safety of persons involved in the works.



5 Formal Consent

Work shall not be undertaken within a wayleave, installation, or'within 3
meters either side of a transmission pipeline or distribution strategi¢’mainsin a
public roadway without the prior Formal Consent of Gas Networks Ireland.

e GNIshall be consulted if work is to be undertaken within 10 meters either side
of a transmission pipeline or distribution strategic mains in a public roadway.

e Formal Consent may be issued by GNI following receipt of the following items.

e Written agreement to implement the terms and conditions of this Code of
Practice and any site specific requirements as advised by GNI.

e A method statement detailing the work which will be undertaken and the means
of ensuring the integrity of the gas network.

e Anindemnity as outlined in Section 5.
e Evidence of insurance cover to the level required by GNI.

e Formal Consent may, in its simplest form, consist of a valid GNI Permit or a more
comprehensive list of conditions.

e Where Formal Consent has been issued, the Third Party shall notify GNI,
5 working days in advance of commencing the works.

6 Indemnity

Itis an essential part of the granting of Formal Consent in the terms of this document
that the Third Party shall indemnify GNI, its servants, agents and contractors against
all loss, damage, expense, claims and actions incurred by or brought against GNI, its
servants, agents and contractors in consequence of the provision of the new service
and any works and activities associated therewith, or ancillary thereto.



7 Role of GNI Inspector

The primary role of the GNI inspector is to ensure the integrity of the gas network.

The GNI Inspector has the right to stop any work where in his/her opinion, the actions
of the Third Party may adversely affect the integrity of the gas network.

The GNI Inspector shall inform the person in charge on site of his/her reason
for stopping work and afford them the opportunity to address the issue to the
satisfaction of the GNI Inspector.

A‘Corrective Action’ shall be issued and recorded against the Third Party if the reason
for stopping work is for non-conformance to any, some or all of the following:

e This Document,
e Conditions of the Formal Consent,
e (Conditions of GNI Permits.

The GNI Inspector reserves the right to inspect any plant or equipment and/or any or
all documentation/certification associated with plant, equipment and/or personnel
associated with the work and not permit the use of any such plant, equipment and/or
personnel in the works if found to be non-compliant.

10



8.1

8.2

8.3

Design Consideration for Proposed Works

Services Crossing Transmission Pipelines and Distribution Stvategic Mains

Where a new service is to cross over the transmission pipeline or distfibution
strategic mains a clearance distance of 0.6 meters between the crown ofithe
pipeline and underside of the service shall be maintained. If this cannot be
achieved the service shall cross under the transmission pipeline with a
minimum clearance distance of 0.6 meters.

Services Parallel to Transmission Pipelines and Distribution
Strategic Mains

Pipelines within a wayleave
No new service shall be laid parallel to the transmission pipeline within a wayleave.

Pipelines within a roadway

® Any new service running parallel to a transmission pipeline in a roadway
may, in consultation with GNI, be laid with a minimum horizontal clearance
of Tm (5m for High Tension Cables) to the side of the pipeline and may not be
above or below a transmission pipeline within that distance.

e Under certain circumstances consideration may be given to the relaxation
of the above conditions on a case by case basis following prior consultation
with GNI Asset Integrity, where the methods and safeguards to be employed
have been considered and specified under a Safe System of Work Plan and
where the work is supervised by GNI on site.

Cathodic Protection

Cathodic Protection is applied to GNI's transmission network and is a method
of protecting pipelines from corrosion by maintaining an electrical potential
difference between the pipeline and anodes placed at strategic points along
the pipeline.

Where a new service is to be laid and is to be similarly protected, GNI will need
to carry out interaction tests to determine whether its own system is adversely
affected. The cost of any mutually agreed remedial action shall be borne by
the Third Party.

Should any cathodic protection posts or associated apparatus need moving to
facilitate construction operations, reasonable notice shall be given to GNI.

1



8 Design Consideration for Proposed Works (continued)

8.4

8.5

8.6

12

Installation of Electrical Equipment

Where electrical equipment is being installed close to the transmission
network, the effects of a rise of earth potential under fault conditions shiall be
considered by the third party and a risk assessment shall be submitted to GNI
for its approval as part of the Formal Consent process.

Slabbing and Other Protective Measures

Protective measures including the installation of concretes slab protection
shall not be installed over or near to the transmission pipeline without the
prior written consent of GNI.

Where consent has been given, a GNI Inspector must be present for the entire
installation.

The material, composition, dimensions and method of installation of the
proposed protective measure shall be agreed with GNI and shall form part of
the submission for Formal Consent.

Changes to Depth of Cover

Any works, which will result in an increase or decrease in the cover of an
existing Transmission Pipeline or distribution strategic mains on completion of
those works, shall be agreed with GNI in advance.



9 General Consideration for Proposed Works

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

GNI Protective Measures

Where protective measures are required by GNI, work shall not corfitnence
until such time as the GNI Inspector is satisfied that those measures meef the
requirements of GNI.

Gaseous Atmospheres

Third Parties shall be mindful of potentially gaseous atmospheres and the
generation of sparks, particularly indoors or when a change in wind
conditions/direction occurs.

Inductions

Personnel involved in the works may be required to attend a GNI induction.
Such a requirement shall, if required, be identified in the Formal Consent.
Method Statements

Method statements, where required, shall include risk assessments and
be submitted to GNI for review no fewer than 10 working days in advance of
commencing works associated with that method statement.

Identification of Transmission Pipeline and Strategic Mains Routes

Before any work is carried out in the vicinity of existing transmission pipelines
or distribution strategic mains, GNI shall, with 3 working days notice, mark/peg
out the transmission pipeline route.

The Third Party shall confirm the position of the pipeline before work
commences.

A GNI Inspector shall be in attendance for the duration of the excavation of any
trial holes necessary to confirm the position of the pipe.

Handheld Power Assisted Tools

Where the use of handheld power assisted tools is required in the vicinity of
the live network, alternatives to electrically/battery powered tools should, in
the first instance, be considered. These tools, as with others, by virtue of their
makeup generate a spark when activated/run and as such are in themselves
subject to 'Hot Work' permits and associated procedures.

13



9 General Consideration for Proposed Works (continued)

9.7

9.8

2.9

92.10

14

Hot Work

Hot works shall not take place within an installation, wayleave or within 3
metres either side of a transmission pipeline in a public roadway without the
prior written consent of Gas Networks Ireland.

Induced Voltage

Where high voltage power lines run parallel to a transmission pipeline, there is
potential to induce high voltages on the pipeline. To prevent injury, people
working on exposed pipe in this area must have suitable protection against
electric shock. GNI can provide advice in relation to suitable protection measures
and a GNI Inspector must be present when any such work is being performed.

Construction Traffic
Construction traffic shall not be sited over or moved along or across a

transmission pipeline without the prior written approval of GNI.

Construction traffic shall only cross a transmission pipeline at previously
agreed and clearly marked crossing lanes.

All crossing lanes shall be fenced on both sides over a width to be specified by
GNI. These fences shall be returned along the wayleave on both sides for a
distance of 6m away from the crossing.

The crossing lane shall be protected by laying approved sleeper rafts or by
protection made from other GNI approved materials, unless otherwise agreed
in writing with GNI.

Construction traffic shall be operated at “dead slow” when using crossing lanes.

Suitable warning notices, drawing attention to the danger of not using the
crossing, shall be erected and maintained in a clearly legible condition.

Lifting

Any plant and/or equipment involved in lifting shall be certified fit for purpose.
Slewing across an exposed pipe shall not be permitted. However, under certain
circumstances consideration may be given to the relaxation of thisrule on a

case by case basis provided that the lifting methods and safeguards to be
employed have been formally risk assessed and the work is approved and



9 General Considerations for Proposed Works (continued)

92.11

9.12

supervised by GNI or its representative on site. Reference cafi be made to
the GNI Lifting Procedure AO/PR/174.

Storing Materials

Materials, including those excavated or stripped shall not be stored within a
wayleave or Installation without the prior written approval of GNI.

Materials, including those excavated or stripped shall not be stored over a
transmission pipeline.

Fires

Fires shall not be permitted within a wayleave or in the vicinity of an installation.

10 Preliminary Works

101

10.2

Demarcation

Where work is being carried out parallel to a transmission pipeline within

or immediately adjoining a wayleave, a demarcation line shall be erected, to the
satisfaction of GNI, so as to clearly delineate the boundary between the works
site and the wayleave/pipeline.

Surface Stripping

Cultivated/Unmade Ground

e Where trial holes have established that sufficient depth of cover exists,
light tracked vehicles may strip top soil to a depth of 0.25 metres using a
toothless bucket.

Metalled Surfaces
e Bituminous or concrete surface layers may be stripped to a depth of 0.3
metres by mechanical means.

e Where the bituminous or concrete layer extends below 0.3m, only the
use of handheld power assisted tools is permitted, and only in the
presence of GNI.



11 Excavations

11

Plant/Equipment Limitations

The following limitations shall be observed when working in the vicinity of a

transmission pipeline or distribution strategic mains.

Hand dig within 1.5 meters of the pipeline.

Handheld power assisted tools permitted beyond 1.5 meters of the pipeline.
Mechanical excavators permitted beyond 3 meters of the pipeline.

The use of ‘chain trenchers'is not permitted within 3 meters of the pipeline.

A mechanical excavator may not reach across a pipeline while working,
i.e. cab at one side of pipeline with bucket (rock breaker, etc.) on opposite
side of pipeline.

A mechanical excavator shall not ‘pull’ towards the pipeline.

Under certain circumstances consideration may be given to the relaxation of the

above conditions on a case by case basis provided that the excavation methods
and safeguards to be employed have been considered and specified under a Safe
System of Work Plan and the work is approved and supervised by GNI on site.

Factors that should be considered in this determination include,
but are not limited to:

Pipeline size, pressure, wall thickness and location.
Excavator size (weight)

Operator competency and experience

Type and width of bucket/attachment

Type and width of bucket/attachment (e.g. toothless)
Ground conditions (e.g. rock, soft ground etc.)

Weather conditions

Visibility, particularly of the machine operator

Machine orientation (e.g. working along the axis of the pipe)

Supervision arrangements

Note: Mechanical excavators must never be permitted to work closer

than 0.5 meters from the pipeline.



11 Excavations (continued)

11.2

11.3

Exposed Pipeline Protection

Once a pipeline has been exposed, it shall be immediately protected with timber
or nylon batons at least 50mm wide and 25mm thick secured to each other with
webbing at a distance of no greater than 10mm over the entire exposed area of
the pipeline. The method of securing the webbing to batons should be such

that any impact would not cause damage to the pipeline coating or other
methods approved by GNI.

Where heavy gauge trench sheets are used in addition to batons to protect
a pipeline, care should be taken while placing the trench sheets that buried
stones, debris, etc. are not dislodged against the pipeline.

Depending on the type of work being carried out, ground conditions, etc.,
GNI may require additional measures.

Pipeline Support

Where it is necessary to excavate below a transmission pipeline, the pipeline
shall, during stages of the operation, and for the duration of the works, be
supported to the satisfaction of GNI, by means of ratchet straps secured to

a steel beam (or GNI approved equivalent) across the pit/trench. On completion,
permanent supports shall, if necessary, be constructed to avoid future
settlement.



12 Backfilling
A
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The Third Party shall give GNI at least 2 working days’ notice oftﬁe{br intention to
backfill below, above or adjacent to an existing transmission plpellnio/

The Third Party shall afford GNI the opportunity and facility to inspect th/%y
coating on the pipeline and/or ancillary connections to the pipeline prior to
backfilling.

A GNI Inspector shall be in attendance to monitor backfill around the pipeline
during the whole of the backfilling operations.

Note: Any damage to the coating of a GNI transmission pipeline, no matter
how apparently insignificant, shall be brought to the attention of GNI

in order to carry out repairs. Minor damage to pipe coating and/or ancillary
connections brought to the attention of GNI will be repaired free of charge.

13 Above Ground Installations

131 PPE Requirements

GNIs minimum PPE requirements for working in a live installation are hard hat,
safety glasses, safety shoes/boots, gloves and Hi-Viz Jacket/vest. All clothing shall
be anti-static and flame retardant. Contact GNI Safety Department for
information on compliance of PPE.

13.2 Above Ground Pipework With Ancillary Connections

Where construction plant and machinery are used in an AGl, all above ground
pipework with ancillary control pipework, telemetry and/or instrumentation
adjacent to the work, shall be protected on all sides by timber/metal hoarding,
secured in place, a minimum of 2 meters from any extremity and extending
vertically to the uppermost point of any pipe/equipment. A suitable point of
access shall be provided in the hoarding. Where this 2 meter separation distance
cannot be physically achieved due to the layout and size an installation, the works
may be allowed to proceed but only where suitable precautions have been
agreed and implemented to protect all relevant pipework and personnel.



13 Above Ground Installations (continued)

13.3

13.4

13.5

The risks and associated mitigating measures shall be identified orbthe relevant
risk assessment and method statement for the proposed works. Thefelevant

details supporting any relaxation of this code of practice shall be recordeg on the

relevant general works permit or excavation permit by the permitissuer.

Heras type fencing may be used where a distance of 6m from any extremity can
be achieved.

Above Ground Pipework Without Ancillary Connections

Where construction plant and machinery are used in an AGI, all above ground

pipework which does not have ancillary connections adjacent to the work, shall be

protected on all sides by heras type fencing a minimum of 2 meters from any
extremity. A suitable point of access shall be provided in the fencing. Where this
2 meter separation distance cannot be physically achieved due to the layout
and size an installation, the works may be allowed to proceed but only where
suitable precautions have been agreed and implemented to protect all relevant
pipework and personnel. The risks and associated mitigating measures shall be
identified on the relevant risk assessment and method statement for the
proposed works. The relevant details supporting any relaxation of this code of
practice shall be recorded on the relevant general works permit or excavation
permit by the permitissuer.

Vehicles, Plant and Machinery
Only diesel powered vehicles are permitted within the confines of an AGI.
Petrol, Electric or compressed natural gas CNG vehicles are not permitted.

All plant and machinery used within an AGI shall be diesel powered.

Petrol or electrically powered equipment may be used under hot works permit
system if a diesel alternative is not available. Any hot works permit for petrol
powered equipment are issued at the discretion of GNI and to be supervised by
GNI or its representatives.

General

This code of practice shall apply to all work carried out within an AGI.



14 Specific Activities

This section details the precautions that need to be taken when carryingout certain
prescribed activities in the vicinity of the transmission network. Consult GN¥if you are
intending to undertake one of the listed prescribed activities and/or you requirefurther
advice on whether the work that you are intending to undertake has the potentialto
affect the transmission network.

The table below shows, for some specific activities, the prescribed distances within
which GNI shall be consulted.

Activity Distance within which GNI shall be consulted

Any Excavation Actions 10m
Piling 15m
Surface Mineral Extraction 100m
Land filling 100 m
Demolition 150 m
Blasting 400 m
Wind Farm 2 times the turbine mast height from the
nearest edge of a transmission pipeline
Trenchless Techniques 10m
Pressure Testing 8m

141 Trenchless Techniques

Trenchless techniques must not take place within 10m of the GNI Transmission
Network without prior consultation with GNI.

14.2 Piling
Piling shall not be permitted within 15 metres of the transmission network
without an assessment of the vibration levels at the pipeline. Contact GNI with
regard to peak particle velocity criteria and other precautionary measures.
Where ground conditions are of submerged granular deposits of silt and sand, an
assessment of the effect of vibration on settlement and liquefaction at the
transmission pipeline shall be made.

20



14 Specific Activities (continued)

14.3

14.4

14.5

Surface Mineral Extraction

An assessment shall be carried out on the effect of surface mineral extraction
activity within 100 meters of the transmission network.

Where the mineral extraction extends up to the transmission pipeline wayleave,

a stable slope angle and stand-off distance between the transmission pipeline and
slope crest shall be determined by GNI. The wayleave strip should be clearly marked
by a suitable permanent boundary such as a post and wire fence, and where
appropriate, slope indicator markers shall be erected to facilitate the verification of
the recommended slope angle as the slope is formed, by the Third Party. The
wayleave and slope needs to be inspected periodically to identify any signs of
developing instability. This may include any change of slope profile including bulging,
the development of tension cracks on the slope or wayleave, or any changes in
drainage around the slope. The results of each inspection should be recorded.

Where surface mineral extraction activities are planned within 100 meters of

the transmission pipeline but do not extend up to the pipeline wayleave boundary,
an assessment, by GNI may be made on whether the planned activity could
promote instability in the vicinity of the pipeline. This may occur where the
transmission pipeline is routed across a natural slope or the excavation is deep.
Assignificant cause of this problem is where the groundwater profile is affected by
changes in drainage or the development of lagoons.

Where the extraction technique involves explosives the provisions of section 14.6
apply.

Land Filling

The creation of slopes outside of the wayleave may promote instability within
the vicinity of the transmission pipeline. An assessment should therefore be
carried out on the effect of any land filling activity within 100 meters of a
transmission pipeline. The assessment is particularly important if land filling
operations are taking place on a slope in which the pipeline is routed.

Demolition

Demolition shall not be permitted within 150 meters of a transmission network
without an assessment of the vibration levels at the pipeline. Contact GNI with
regard to peak particle velocity criteria and other precautionary measures.

Where ground conditions are submerged granular deposits of silt or sand, an
assessment of the effect of vibration on settlement and liquefaction at the

transmission pipeline shall be made.
21



14 Specific Activities (continued)

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

14.10

22

Blasting

Blasting shall not be permitted within 400 meters of a transmission riétwork
without consulting GNI and making an assessment of the vibration levelsat the
pipeline. Contact GNI on 1800 42 77 47 with regard to peak particle velocity
criteria and other precautionary measures.

Where ground conditions are of submerged granular deposits of silt or sand,
an assessment of the effect of vibration on settlement and liquefaction at the
transmission pipeline shall be made.

Pressure Testing

Hydraulic or pneumatic testing shall not be permitted within 8m of the
transmission network unless precautions have been taken against the effects of
a possible burst. These precautions may include the use of pre installation tested
pipe, sleeving, barriers, etc., as agreed with GNI.

Seismic Surveys

GNI shall be advised of any seismic surveying work in the vicinity of a
transmission pipeline. Contact GNI with regard to peak particle velocity criteria
and other precautionary measures.

Wind Farm Development

GNI should be consulted if wind turbines are to be sited any closer than 2 times
the proposed height of the turbine mast away from the nearest edge of a
transmission pipeline or associated installation.

Solar Farm and Battery Storage Facilities

GNI shall be consulted if Solar Farm or Battery Storage Facilities are to be sited
in the vicinity of a transmission pipeline or associated installation.



15 Referenced External Documents

1S328: Code of Practice for Gas Transmission Pipelines & Pipeline Insiallations.
HSA Code of Practice for Avoiding Danger from Underground Services
HSA Guide to Safety in Excavations

Both are available free of charge from:
Health and Safety Authority on 1890 289 389/ www.hsa.ie

16 Referenced Gas Networks Ireland Documents

Categorizing & Processing of Dial Before You Dig Queries AM/WI1/072
Guide to Dealing with DBYD Online Queries HSQE/GU/033
Dial Before You Dig Process (Map) HSQE/BP/042
Safety Advice for Working in Vicinity of Natural Gas Pipelines HSQE/GU/016
GNI Lifting Procedure AO/PR/174

17 Safety Information

The online version of this code of practice is available at
https://www.gasnetworks.ie/home/safety/dial-before-you-dig/

Before starting any excavation work, it is essential to check for the location of gas pipes
by calling 1800 42 77 47 or emailing dig@gasnetworks.ie

In an Emergency dial 1800 20 50 50

DIAL BEFORE YOU DIG If you smell gas call
=) 100427747 1800 20 50 50
T 5 & Mo 24hr emergency service

23
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The main contact details for Gas
Networks Ireland are:

General Enquiries
1800 464 464

Dial Before You Dig
18004277 47

24hr Emergency Service
1800205050

gasnetworks.ie
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Important safety information
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DIAL BEFORE YOU DIG

1800427747
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In Emergency call

1800 20 50 50

\\\| ll/,

When planning any excavation works dial
180042 77 47

to obtain up to date gas network maps.
Monday to Friday 9am - 5.30pm

Or you can sign up to DBYD online at
gasnetworks.ie/dbyd

and have access to maps 24 hours, 7 days a week
You can also contact us on
dig@gasnetworks.ie

If you have damaged a gas pipe call

1800 20 50 50
immediately, even if you do not suspect that
gas is leaking

24 hours, 7 days a week

If you smell gas call

1800 205050

24hr emergency service
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Natural gas characteristics and behaviour

Characteristics

Natural gas is:

a highly flammable gas;

lighter than air and will rise when
released;

non-toxic (but can suffocate in
enclosed or confined spaces); and
made up mostly of methane and has
a smell added for safety purposes.

Behaviour

During an uncontrolled eszape,
natural gas will behave in the
following ways:

® Inopen excavations, where thereis a
clear path to the atmosphere, natural
gas will rise, dilute and disperse into
the air.

e [fthe path to the atmosphere is
blocked, the gas will travel through
soil, ducts, drains, sewers and voids.
It can also follow the line of other
buried utility services. This can lead
to gas entering a building or other
confined spaces, and may lead to a
fire or explosion.

Note: Never cover a damaged gas pipe;
or attempt to carry out a repair. Call
1800 20 50 50 immediately.



Risks of damaging a gas pipe

The risks of damaging a gas pipe can be classified as:

Highest Risk

Mechanical excavators
pose the highest risk
and “should not be used
within 500 mm of a gas
distribution pipe.”

(HSA Code of Practice)

Mechanical excavators
must not be used within

3 metres of a Transmission
pipeline.

(Refer to Code of Practice for

Working in the Vicinity of the
Transmission Network - AO/PR/127)

High Risk

Hand held power tools
should not be used
directly over the line of a
gas pipe, unless the gas
pipe has been positively
located by hand and a safe
working distance has been
established.

Use of handheld power
tools is not permitted
within 1.5 mof a
Transmission pipeline.
(Refer to Code of Practice for
Working in the Vicinity of the
Transmission Network - AO/PR/127)
Damage to gas pipes from
power tools presents a
high risk to the operatives
involved in the work.

Low Risk

Hand digging using
shovels and spades
presents the lowest risk of
damaging a gas pipe.

This is the method that
should be used where the
presence of gas pipes is
suspected or closeto a
known gas pipe.



Risks from a damaged gas pipe

® Remember when gas escapes, orisreleased in
an uncontrolled way; it can fuel a fire; give rise to an
explosive atmosphere or cause asphyxiation.

e [fyoususpectthereisagas leak, immediately call
Gas Networks Ireland’s 24hr Emergency Service
on 1800 20 50 50.

e Gas can quickly fill underground cavities and
travel into buildings through soil, or following the
line of other buried utilities.

e Gascanonlyburnifexposed to anignition source:
e Do notturn electrical switches on or off
e Do notoperate any plant or equipment
e Do notuse naked flames, smoke or vape
e Do notuse mobile phones in the vicinity.

e Move people away from, and upwind of, the
affected area.

e [fgas hasentered a confined space or building:
® Opendoorsand windows
e Turn off the gas supply at the meter

e Do notexpose to anignition source.



Gas Networks Ireland transmission network

Gas Networks Ireland transports gas in Ireland through a network of steel and
polyethylene (PE) pipes. The network operates at pressures between 20 mbar and 85
bar and is split between Transmission and Distribution pipelines.

The Transmission system is made up of steel pipes and operates from 7 bar to 85 bar.

The Distribution system is made up mostly of polyethylene pipes and operates from
20 mbar to 7 bar.



The network

The network is made up of
three elements:

Pressure Regulating
Installations

Transmission pipes

These are high pressure pipelines that transfer gas across
the country. They are constructed from steel, with a black,
white, cream, yellow or concrete coating, and may have
marker posts at intervals along their length, particularly
at field boundaries and road crossings.

If a transmission pipeline is identified near intended
excavations then work must not proceed until

Gas Networks Ireland Transmission has been
consulted on 18004277 47.



The network

Distribution pipes

These are medium or low pressure pipelines within urban
areas. They are mainly constructed from Polyethylene
(PE) and are predominantly yellow in colour, but may have
brown or black stripes. There are two types - Mains and
Services.

Mains gas pipes usually run parallel to property in the
footpath, grass verge or road and range in size from
63 mm to 400 mm diameter.

Service gas pipes are connected to mainsandrunto a
meter position at the property, and range in size from
20 mm to 63 mm diameter.

Note: There is a limited use of steel pipes in areas like
bridges or where only shallow depths can be achieved.

There are still a small number of ductile and cast iron
gas mains in use, ranging in size from 3 inch (75 mm) to
24 inch (600 mm) in diameter (these mains are similar
in appearance to metal water mains). Steel and PE gas
services are run from these metal mains to the meter
location at each building.

These ductile and castiron mains and services have been
largely replaced with PE pipes. In urban areas a large
number of redundant ductile or castiron pipes are utilised
as carrier pipes for new PE pipelines.

Some Distribution pipelines have been classified as strategic
mains due to their pressure, diameter and/ or location and
the elevated consequences if they are damaged.

If a Distribution strategic main is identified near an
intended excavation then work must not proceed
until Gas Networks Ireland has been consulted

on 18004277 47.



The network

District Regulating Installation
(DRI)
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Pressure Regulating Installatiors

There are two types: Above Ground and Ungder Ground

Above Ground Installations (AGI) /
District Regulating Installations (DRI)

An AGI/DRIis a fenced area containing a visible
arrangement of pipework and ancillary equipment
and will be clearly marked with Gas Networks Ireland
signage. Some DRI's can be housed in a steel unit with
no fencing surround.

Under Ground Installations (UGI /DRIug)

Gas Networks Ireland also have underground pressure
regulating installations which have metal or concrete
cover plates. There will be no visible arrangement of
pipework etc, as this will be contained within the chamber.

If an AGI/DRI or UGI/DRIug is identified near
intended works, then work must not proceed until
Gas Networks Ireland has been consulted on
18004277 47.



Gas Networks Ireland construction methods

Gas Networks Ireland use three main construction methods:

‘Dig’ Technique

Open Cut - installing pipe
using standard trenching
techniques. Pipe is laid
with a sand or pea gravel
surround and gas marker
tape s laid above the sand.

‘No-Dig’ Techniques

Insertion - utilising
existing metal gas mains

/ services as a carrier for
new PE pipes. Inserted PE
may be a close or loose
fit. The carrier pipeis
broken out at connection
points, i.e. at pipe joints or
where a gas service pipe is
connected.

Moling/Directional
Drilling - installing mains/
services where a‘moling’
machine drills from one
location to another pulling
the pipe behind it using
“no-dig” technology.

Note: Where pipe has been installed using “no-dig”
techniques, the gas pipe will not have sand surround

or marker tape.

1



Gas Networks Ireland construction - depth of cover

Typical service arrangement

Service Connection

Purge Point

12

New Mains - Normally 750 mm in roads and 600 mm in
footpaths. (1.1 m in open fields)

New Services - 450 mm rising to 375 mm withid.5 m
of the building line. In some cases these depths are not
achievable.

Note:
Older mains and services may have reduced cover.

Services and other connections are taken from the top
of the main and will therefore have a reduced depth of
cover.

Alteration since original installation - roads, footpaths
and grass verges may have been altered since the gas
main or service was laid and reduced the depth of cover.

Purge Points and Test Caps - Mains are laid with “purge
points” and/or test caps at the ends. These may also rise
above the top of the main.

Gas Valve Covers -Gas valves are a key safety
component part of the gas network.

Some gas mains and services have valves installed below
ground with valve covers marked “GAS".

Do not cover over or remove gas valve covers.

The risk of a gas valve cover being removed or
covered over is particularly high during resurfacing or
reinstatement works.

Even shallow excavation techniques such as road
planing can damage gas pipelines with reduced cover.



Requesting Gas Networks Ireland maps

Gas Networks Ireland 7 N\

operates a Dial Before You DIAL BEFORE YOU DIG

Dig service to enable those 1800 42 77 47

\\\II[,,/ Gas
Z Networks

involved in excavations to

obtain natural gas network
maps prior to starting

In Emergency call

=
S
N

iy,

work L 1800 20 50 50 i Ireland
This service operates

from 9am to 5.30pm, Maps will be sent out by post or by email where
Monday to Friday. appropriate. When you contact Gas Networks Ireland to

request a map, ensure you give the precise location of
the intended works. You may be required to give some
information regarding the nature of the planned work,
i.e. start date, any high risk activity, etc.

Or you can sign up to
DBYD online at
gasnetworks.ie/dbyd
and have access to maps

24 hours, 7 days a week. Ensure you have allowed enough time for the maps to
be obtained and to organise for the pipe location to be

You can also email your marked out if transmission pipelines are involved.

enquiry to:

dig@gasnetworks.ie Note: Typical turnaround for maps is five working

days when contact is made through phone or email,
however using the online system will allow you instant
access to up-to-date maps.

Organisers or planners of any work should ensure that
the map is made available to personnel on-site.

Excerpt from a Gas Networks Ireland map.
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Reading Gas Networks Ireland maps

A
<<\O
®b
Note: Natural Gas Network maps will only show mains and not sé}yices.
See page 16 for more information on service pipe locations. ' 99/
%
0
The colour coding is as follows: 3
Red =Transmission Main*
=7 to 85 bar.
Blue = Distribution Medium Pressure
=100 mbar to 7 bar.
Blue Buffer =Distribution strategic main*

=100 mbar to 7 bar.

Green = Distribution Low Pressure
=up to 100 mbar.

Pressure regulating installations are marked as:

DRI - District Regulating Installation (Above Ground).
DRIug - District Regulating Installation (Under Ground).
UGI - Under Ground Installation.

AGI - Above Ground Installation.

Typical AGI

*If you obtain a natural gas network map that shows a red
Transmission main in the area of the proposed works or a
distribution strategic main with a blue buffer, a consultation
with Gas Networks Ireland must take place before starting
works. Gas Networks Ireland will advise you on the safety
measures required and will arrange for the location of the pipe
to be marked out on site.

14



Reading Gas Networks Ireland maps

"6\0 Abbreviations
.‘<3 OK=Kerb, Curb
‘Q/@RE =Road Edge
0 ORai\ Base
OB= B‘iflf}ﬁing
OW =Wall
OF=Fence
ODW = Dividing Wall
OGW = Garden Wall
RD =Road
BR=Branch
RED = Reducer
C=Cover totop of pipe
LH = Left Hand
RH= Right Hand
SWP =Sweep
CNR=Corner
S=South
N =North
E=East
W= West
No. =Number
Ctr=Centre
CL=CentreLine
Trans =Transition
DIV =Dividing
PK = Park
Conn = Connection
Opp = Opposite
Cplg = Coupling
ST =Steel
PE = Polyethylene

Gas Networks Ireland

Example of a Gas Networks Ireland map



Gas services

Natural gas services are not normally identified on
network maps, but their presence shouldte assumed.
Services will normally, but not always, run at ¥ight
angles from the main to the meter point.

To assistin determining the approximate position of gas
services ensure you:

e Obtain a natural gas network map to identify the
position of the gas main.

Typical service arrangement
e Complete a site survey looking for gas meter
boxes/cabinets, house entry points, service risers
and gas valve covers.

e Older buildings may have no visible signs of a
service, as the service may run directly into the
building underground, with the meter fitted
internally. In these cases a check should be made
inside the building to identify the meter position.

Service riser cover Note: Ensure you utilise safe digging practices to
locate the exact position of gas services.

Domestic meter box Six meter cabinet Purpose built multi-meter
house (apartment complex).



Safe systems of work

Safe systems of work, as recommended by the Health
and Safety Authority (HSA) should be employed on
all projects. Code of Practice

Guidance on this can be found in the:

HSA: Code of Practice for Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services.

Available from HSA website: www.hsa.ie

A safe system of work will include the following elements:

For Avoiding Danger
From Underground Sertica

Planning.

Obtaining and using utility maps.
Identifying pipes/services.
Safe digging practices.

Explosives must not be used within 30 m of any gas pipe (400 m for Transmission
Pipelines), without prior consultation with Gas Networks Ireland.

Piling, directional drilling or boring must not take place within 15 m of a gas pipe
unless Gas Networks Ireland has been consulted.

Extra care should be exercised when performing ‘hot work’ (such as welding)
where a gaseous atmosphere could exist. If this potential exists Gas Networks
Ireland must be consulted.

Extra care should also be taken when using welding equipment, burners,
torches or other heat generating equipment near pipelines (even if there is no
potential for a gaseous atmosphere to exist) to ensure that the heat or sparks
generated do not lead to the melting of polyethylene pipes or damage to
pipeline coatings.

Contact Gas Networks Ireland for general enquiries on: 1800 464 464.



Safe systems of work

Planning

e  Early contact should be made with
Gas Networks Ireland to obtain a
Natural Gas Network map.

Dial Before You Dig 1800 42 77 47
or visit gasnetworks.ie/dbyd

e Workinvolving piling, demolition,
directional drilling, use of explosives
or 'hot works' should be mentioned,
as this may necessitate a site visit
from Gas Networks Ireland personnel.

e Ensure you have allowed enough time
to obtain the maps.

e  Gas Networks Ireland will issue maps
as outlined in this booklet. Itis
imperative that these maps are
available for the operatives on-site for
the duration of any works.

The responsible person should
ensure that operatives on-site
understand the maps.

Identifying Pipes

e Steel, castiron and ductie iron
gas pipes can usually be traced using
a conventional pipe/cable locating
device set to “R” (Radio) mode.

e Polyethylene mains and services
cannot be traced using conventional
devices, so it is essential that maps
are used and site surveys for meter
boxes, valve covers, service risers,
reinstatement scarring and other
signs are completed.

e Duringthe progress of works ensure
no gas valve covers or markers are
covered over.

e The position of gas mains and services
should be marked out as they are
located.

Note: Transmission pipelines pipelines
and Distribution strategic mains must
be marked out by a Gas Networks
Ireland inspector.



Safe systems of work

Safe Digging Practices:

e Asperthe HSA Code of Practice, gas mains and
services should be located by digging trial holes by
hand. Mechanical excavators should not be used
within 500 mm of any gas main.

Mechanical excavators MUST NOT be used
within 3 m of a Transmission pipeline.

(Refer to Code of Practice for Working in the Vicinity of the
Transmission Network - AO/PR/127)

e Neveruse hand held power tools directly over gas
pipes unless precautions to prevent damage have
been made and the pipe has been positively located.
Use of handheld power tools is not permitted
within 1.5 m of a Transmission pipeline.

(Refer to Code of Practice for Working in the Vicinity of the
Transmission Network - AO/PR/127)
e Donotleave a polyethylene gas pipe exposed.

e Provide adequate support for any gas pipe
uncovered during the work.

e Reportany damage, no matter how minor it may
appear, to 1800 20 50 50.

e Ifyou have any concerns regarding safety around
gas pipes contact Gas Networks Ireland for advice
on 1800 464 464.



What to do if a gas pipeline is damaged
(or if you smell gas in the area)

® Do notturnany electrical switches on or off, e.g. ignition switches.
e Do notoperate any plant or equipment.

® Move people away from, and upwind of, the affected area.
Restrict employee and public access to the affected area.

® Prevent smoking, vaping, the use of naked flames, the use of mobile
phones and other ignition sources in the vicinity of the leak.

® Reportthe leak/damage immediately to:
Gas Networks Ireland 24hr Emergency Service on 1800 20 50 50.

®  Provide accurate information on your location and the nature
of the incident.

® Do notattempt to repair the damage.

® Do notcover up adamaged main or service, this may lead to the gas
travelling through soil, ducts, sewers, chambers or voids and
potentially building up inside a premises or confined space.

e Do notturnoffany gas valves in the road or footpath
(you may be causing further problems by doing so).

®  Assist Gas Networks Ireland emergency personnel as required.

e Remember any damage to gas pipes, even if the pipe does not appear
to be leaking, must be reported to Gas Networks Ireland.

If you smell gas call

1800 20 5050

24hr emergency service

20



Gas Networks Ireland contacts

The main contact numbers for
Gas Networks Ireland are

24hr Emergency Service
1800 20 50 50

24 hours, 7 days a week

Dial Before You Dig
1800 42 77 47
Monday to Friday 9am - 5.30pm

or sign up to DBYD online

gasnetworks.ie/dbyd

General Enquiries
1800 464 464
Monday to Friday 8am - 8pm

Saturday 9am - 5.30pm

gasnetworks.ie

DIAL BEFORE YOU DIG

18004277 47

\\11y,
W%, Gas
In Emergency call Z Networks

For “Dial Before You Dig" posters or stickers s %
1800205050 %, Ireland

for your workplace call: 1800 464 464




Other useful publications
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HSA: Code of Practice for Avoiding Danger 6\0.
from Underground Services <o
.................................................................................................................... Dy
/T-)

HSA: Guide to Safety in Excavations 0‘36‘

both are available free of charge from:
Health and Safety Authority on 01 6147000

www.hsa.ie

ESB Networks: How you can avoid hitting electrical
cables when digging and drilling

available free of charge from:
ESB Networks on 1800 372 757
esh.ie/esbnetworks
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The main contact details for
Gas Networks Ireland are:

General Enquiries
1800 464 464

Dial Before You Dig
18004277 47

24hr Emergency Service
1800205050

gasnetworks.ie

Guideline No: HSQE/GU/016 Rev2 Date: November 2020



From: Accounts-AuroraTelecom

Sent: Wednesday 28 May 2025 09:49

To: Catherine Johnson; auroralink

Cc: Brandon Taylor; Edel Mulholland

Subject: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Developmerit Briefing
Note - GNI

Attachments: RE: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Brieitiig
Note - GNI

You don't often get email from accounts-auroratelecom@gasnetworks.ie. Learn why this is important

Caution: This is an external email and may be malicious. Please take care
when clicking links or opening attachments.

*%% [CONFIDENTIAL] ***

HI Catherine,

Just acknowledging this email as | have replied to your other email, please keep
Auroralink@gasnetworks.ie in the loop.

Regards,
Phelim

From: Catherine Johnson cjohnson@mbkoireland.ie

Sent: Tuesday 27 May 2025 17:52

To: auroralink <Auroralink@gasnetworks.ie>

Cc: Brandon Taylor <btaylor@mkoireland.ie>; Edel Mulholland <emulholland@mbkoireland.ie>
Subject: 240323 - Gannow Renewable Energy Development Briefing Note - GNI

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of your organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and are sure that the content is safe.

HI,

My name is Catherine Johnson; | am an environmental scientist at MKO and am currently
project managing the proposed Gannow Renewable Energy Development in CO. Galway.

MKO has been appointed as Environmental Consultants on this project and will be
preparing an Environmental Impact Assessment Report Statement (EIAR) for the
proposed renewable energy development on behalf of Gannow Ltd.

Gannow Ltd is investigating the potential for a proposed renewable energy development
at Gannow and adjacent townlands, located in County Galway.

The Proposed Grid Connection 38kV underground cable route from the proposed onsite
38kV substation to the existing Cashla 220kV substation interacts with a GNI high-
pressure pipeline and associated telecommunications duct at 1 no. location, and a
separate telecommunications duct at a second location. Please see attached a briefing
note with key information on the Proposed Grid Connection and its interactions with the
GNI network as well as key project details. | have also attached a KML of the EIAR Site
Boundary for your information.

The grid coordinated for these interactions are in the briefing note and also in the below
table.
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mailto:auroralink@gasnetworks.ie
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Interaction No. W/ | X IG Y IG
GNI Network

1 146416 229549
2 229549 228225

We have contacted Michael O’Connell in relation to our interaction with the high-pressure
pipeline, but as we also interact with telecommunications ducting we were advised-to
direct further queries here.

As part of the EIA process, MKO is seeking the as built details of the relevant sections of
the GNI network, i.e., the 2 no, locations in which the Proposed Grid Connection
underground cable route interacts and clarity on the most appropriate crossing
methodology at these locations. Furthermore, MKO would welcome any comments that
GNI might have in relation to the Proposed Project, including baseline data and survey
techniques at the above identified interaction points with the GNI network that should be
considered as part of the assessment process and in the preparation of the EIAR.

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

Ta an fhaisnéis a seachadadh dirithe ar an duine n6 ar an eintiteas chuig a bhfuil si seolta amhain
agus féadfar abhar faoi run, faoi phribhléid né abhar ata iogair 6 thaobh trachtala de a bheith mar
chuid de. Ta aon athsheachadadh n6 scaipeadh den fhaisnéis, aon athbhreithnit ar né aon usaid
eile a bhaint as, n6 aon ghniomh a dhéantar ag brath ar an bhfaisnéis seo ag daoine n6 ag eintitis
nach doibh siud an fhaisnéis seo, toirimiscthe agus féadfar € a bheith neamhdhleathach. Nil
Lionrai Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh iomlan agus ceart na faisnéise sa
chumarsaid seo né maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. Ni ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon
dliteanas faoi ghnimh no6 faoi iarmhairti bunaithe ar Usaid thoirmiscthe na faisnéise seo. Nil Lionrai
Gais Eireann faoi dhliteanas maidir le seachadadh ceart agus iomlan na faisnéise sa chumarsaid
seo n6 maidir le haon mhoill a bhaineann Iéi. Ma fuair tU an teachtaireacht seo in earraid, mas é do
thoil é, déan teagmhail leis an seoltéir agus scrios an t-abhar 6 gach aon riomhaire.

Féadfar riomhphost a bheith soghabhalach i leith truaillithe, idircheaptha agus i leith leasaithe
neamhudaraithe. Ni ghlacann Lionrai Gais Eireann le haon fhreagracht as athruithe né as
idircheapadh a rinneadh ar an riomhphost seo i ndiaidh é a sheoladh n6 as aon dochar do choérais
na bhfaighteoiri déanta ag an teachtaireacht seo n6 ag a ceangaltain. Mas é do thoil é, tabhair faoi
deara chomh maith go bhféadfar monatoireacht a dhéanamh ar theachtaireachtai chuig n6é 6


http://www.mkoireland.ie/

Lionrai Gais Eireann chun comhlionadh le polasaithe agus le caighdeain Lionrai Gais Eireann a
chinnti agus chun &r ngné a chosaint. Lionrai Gais Eireann cuideachta ghniomhaiochta
ainmnithe, faoi theorainn scaireanna, ata corpraithe in Eirinn leis an uimhir chifraithe 555744 agus
a ta hoifig chlaraithe ag Béthar na nOibreacha Gais, Corcaigh, T12 RX96.

Go raibh maith agat as d’aird a thabhairt.

The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed@rid
may contain confidential, commercially sensitive and/or privileged material. Any review,
retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this
information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may be
unlawful. Gas Networks Ireland accepts no liability for actions or effects based on the prohibited
usage of this information . Gas Networks Ireland is neither liable for the proper and complete
transmission of the information contained in this communication nor for any delay in its receipt. If
you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from any computer.
E-Mail may be susceptible to data corruption, interception and unauthorized amendment. Gas
Networks Ireland accepts no responsibility for changes to or interception of this e-mail after it was
sent or for any damage to the recipients systems or data caused by this message or its
attachments. Please also note that messages to or from Gas Networks Ireland may be monitored
to ensure compliance with Gas Networks Ireland’s policies and standards and to protect our
business. Gas Networks Ireland a designated activity company, limited by shares, incorporated in
Ireland with registered number 555744 and having its registered office at Gasworks Road, Cork,
T12 RX96.

Thank you for your attention.
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Our Ref: LTR-25_084-001
Date: 25 July 2025

Keelin German

Clifton Scannell Emerson Associates
3rd Floor The Highline

Bakers Point,

Pottery Road,

Dun Laoghaire,

Co. Dublin.

A96 KW29

Re: 25_084 Gannow Rail Bridge HDD

Subject: High level feasibility assessment of single bore duct for 38kV cable beneath Attymon
bridge

Dear Darren,
As requested, CSEA have had a high-level look at the proposed scheme outlined below:

The Gannow Renewable Energy Development requires a 38kV connection route from the
proposed wind farm at Gannow to the Cashla 220kV Substation. The proposed route crosses the
Dublin-Galway railway line near Attymon station.

CSEA have considered your proposal to cross the line by horizontal directional drilling (HDD)
beneath Attymon bridge (OBG147) and the railway line below simultaneously. Attymon bridge is
a single-arch limestone railway bridge, built in 1851, carrying a road over the Dublin-Galway
railway line. It has rock-faced rusticated parapet walls and piers and cut-stone string courses. It
has an elliptical arch with ashlar soffit, cut limestone impost course and rock-faced rusticated
voussoirs. It has not been possible to confirm the nature of substructure of the bridge. However,
given the era during which the original structure was constructed in it is highly likely that the
substructure consists of shallow foundations built directly off a competent foundation stratum
rather than piles.

The depth of pavement construction between the road surface and the top of the masonry
structure which is on the proposed line of the duct does not leave sufficient space to install the
duct within the depth of the depth of the pavement itself.

The GIS website indicates the bedrock to be limestone of the Lucan formation, and the
overburden has a depth varying from 1-3m in the vicinity of the bridge abutments. The rock head
rises to 0-1m BGL to the north of the bridge and then drops to 3-5m BGL both north (approx.
100m from bridge) and south (approx. 30m) of the bridge. This suggests that the railway line in
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this location is constructed very close to the bedrock level, if not in it, and it is plausible that the
bridge foundations’ formation level is not much deeper. This would need to be verifieg pn site
with a thorough Site Investigation. CSEA have not yet conducted an inspection of the structure,
this would need to be carried out in tandem with the Site Investigation.

This proposal would involve drilling a single bore 38kV circuit; 450mm in diameter (to be
confirmed by HDD specialist), at 80-90 degrees to the railway line and parallel to the line of the
bridge. Irish Rail dictate a minimum depth of 4.5m below the railway line. This stipulation,
combined with the assumed depth of the bedrock suggests a bore at this minimum depth would
be approximately 3.5m below the existing foundation formation level.

The bore will be through rock, a SI will be needed to confirm this along with the overburden
ground conditions. This investigation along with a HDD feasibility study, a crossing design with
predicted settlement, bentonite frac out assessment, an electromagnetic compatibility
assessment, would facilitate the design of the required depth of the HDD bore to avoid damaging
the bridge. The HDD can go as deep as is necessary to avoid undermining the foundations.

CSEA would recommend boring deeper than the minimum allowed by Irish Rail, at depth to be
determined, whereby vibrations would be below 10mm/s. A previous case study of monitored
HDD drilling through the Lucan formation at 9m below a Luas line recorded negligible levels of
vibration to the line.

Structural assessment will be carried based on the information gathered while liaising with a
specialist contractor with a history of similar work.

If the assumptions made are confirmed by the SI, Bridge Inspection and HDD specialist CSEA are
confident that a depth can be determined below ground level, that drilling will cause negligible
vibrations to the existing structure above. Additionally, it is highly unlikely that there are deep
foundation present that may be damaged by or interfered with by the drilling. Despite this CSEA
recommend that the appointed Contractor continually monitor and assess the ground conditions
during the drilling operation.

To mitigate potential issues during the works vibration measurements should be carried out in
accordance with BS ISO 4866: 2010 Mechanical Vibration and Shock, Vibration of Fixed Structures,
Guidelines for the Measurement of Vibrations and Evaluation of their effects on structures using
vibration meters.

It would be proposed to utilise an Automatic Total Station (ATS) or Automatic Multistation
(AMS) to survey the IR track assets and infrastructure at the proposed location on a continuous
basis. Manual monitoring techniques such as precise levelling, should also be carried out along
the extents of the site.
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In conclusion; subject to adequate engineering design and oversight during construction, the
HDD crossing can be successfully achieved without adverse effects on the structural intégyity of
the existing bridge.

Yours sincerely,

Keelin Germaown

Keelin German
Clifton Scannell Emerson Associates



	FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping  Document Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - DoD
	FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Forest Service
	FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document  - Ref 429 - 2024
	FW: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document  - Ref 429 - 2024
	FW: EIS 24/371 - EIA Scoping for Proposed RE Development, Gannow, Co Galway
	RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Failte Ireland
	RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - GCC Roads Department
	EIA Scoping Application for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development Gannow Co. Galway
	RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - IAA
	RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - IFI
	Re: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Irish Wildlife trust
	RE: 240323 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway - Waterways Ireland
	TII Ref: TII24-129128 - Gannow Scoping Report: EIA Scoping Document for the Proposed Renewable Energy Development in the townland of Gannow and adjacent townlands in County Galway


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



https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/19b8d-tree-felling-licences/

https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/19b8d-tree-felling-licences/

https://www.gov.ie/en/publication/19b8d-tree-felling-licences/



Where a tree Felling Licence application is received, the Department will publish a notice
of the application before making a decision on the matter. The notice shall state that any
person may make a submission to the Department within 30 days from the date of the
notice. The notices are published online at: gov.ie - Felling Licence Applications

(www.gov.ie)

Third parties that make a submission or observation will be informed of the decision to
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
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P ofgra WEST REGION
0 W Office of Public Works ARTERIAL DRAINAGE &
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





(7 ' 0 Pw Otbrescha poibl WEST REGION
W17 Office of Public Works ARTERIAL DRAINAGE &
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
in its ducting across watercourses on new support structures spanning the watercourses, these should
be treated as if they are bridges, and the consent of the commissioners under Section 50 should be
obtained. If the cable and ducting is to be buried under the natural bed of the watercourses being
crossed, Section 50 would not apply, and we would recommend that the duct be buried a sufficient
distance below the natural bed to allow for erosion and mobility of the stream bed.

We would recommend that a flood risk assessment be carried out with regard to the proposed
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

£ Oconnel)

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
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Department of the Environment, ireland | Eireann
Climate and Communications

An Roinn Comhshaoil, Geological Survey
Aeriide agus Cumarsdide @ Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochta

Catherine Johnson

MKO

Tuam Road

Galway, H91 VW84 22 October 2024

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



http://www.gsi.ie/

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



Department of the Environment, Ireland | Eireann
Climate and Communications

An Roinn Comhshaoil, Geological Survey
Aerdide agus Cumarsaide @ Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochta

Other Comments

Should development go ahead, all other factors considered, Geological Survey Ireland would much appreciate a copy of
reports detailing any site investigations carried out. The data would be redacted for confidentiality and added to Geological
Survey Ireland’s national database of site investigation boreholes, implemented to provide a better service to the civil
engineering sector. Data can be sent to the Geological Mapping Unit, at mailto:GeologicalMappingInfo@gsi.ie.

If we can be of any further help, please do not hesitate to contact me Clare Glanville, or my colleague Trish Smullen at
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
and rural economies in every part of the country. The impact and interaction of tourism with the
environment is complex and the assessment of environmental impacts is of utmost importance to
creating a sustainable tourism economy and protecting the natural resources that are so often a
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

l|Page





Where Natura 2000 Designated Sites are potentially affected by tourism development
Appropriate Assessment must be carried out by the appropriate authority in accordance with
Article 6(3) of the EU Habitats Directive.

3. Legislation and Statutory Guidance

Environmental Impact Assessment is a procedure that ensures that the environmental
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
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¢ The developer is required to have competent experts to prepare the EIAR and the
Board is required to have access to sufficient expertise to assess the EIAR;

¢ Requirement for the incorporation of mitigation and monitoring measures in consents
and ensuring that developers deliver these measures;

e The requirements for the assessment of cumulative effects with existing and/or
approved projects, taking into account existing environmental issues to be considered,;
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

START
Is the dewslopment a type

that requires an EIA?

Is it of a type that
rrqul res 3 mandatory EI.E;1
[Foe 3.2.3)

J

Is- it abowve the 5|:|n=crfr:d
Threshold?
[Foe 3.2.3)

v

L
Prepare an

Environmental impact
Assessment Report

ks it a type of project that
could kead to effects?
(See 3.24)

L

L i and / or

Is it a senstive location?
(Fam 3.24)

and / or

Could the effects
be significamt?
(See 2.24)

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
of possible significant impact are assessed. Identifying sensitivities and stakeholders should
take account of tourism facilities and consider Failte Ireland in scoping requests where
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
upon the tourism asset. The potential for development to impact these sensitivities, and the
environmental criteria under which they can be considered, are identified in section 7 of the
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

7|Page





The character of an area from a tourism perspective should be described and the principal
types of tourism in the area. Where relevant, the specific environmental resources or attributes
in the existing environment which each group uses or values should be stated and where
relevant, indicate the time, duration or seasonality of any of those activities.

The significance of the tourism assets or activities likely to be affected should be highlighted.
Reference to any existing formal or published designation or recognition of such significance
should be included. Where possible the value of the contribution of such tourism assets and
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

The assessment should also consider current Government policy on nature conservation as
outlined in the National Biodiversity Action Plan 2017-2021 (NBAP) (and subsequent iterations
(Including draft NBAP recently open for public consultation, to cover 2023 to 2027) which also
includes Ireland’s vision for biodiversity below.

‘That biodiversity and ecosystems in Ireland are conserved and restored, delivering benefits
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

Cultural heritage can be a key component of tourism projects and the impact of tourism on the
maintenance of cultural heritage should be given the utmost consideration, whether positive
or negative. As a tourism attraction, cultural heritage should be strongly considered in non-
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

Transboundary impacts should be included in EIAR. In the case of tourism, especially
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
The National Tourism Development Authority has a portfolio of research across a number of
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
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http://www.failteireland.ie/Research-and-insights.aspx

https://www.failteireland.ie/Regional-experience-brands/Wild-Atlantic-Way/The-Wild-Atlantic-Way-Operational-Programme/Environmental-Surveying-and-Monitoring-Programme.aspx
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https://www.tourismireland.com/Research
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FSS Seirbhis Naisitunta Slainte Comhshaoil
Péirc Ghno na Gaillimhe, An Daingean, Gaillimh.
H91 EW40

T: (091) 737350

R: PEHO.galway@hse.ie

HSE National Environmental Health Service
Galway Business Park, Dangan, Galway
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
The EIAR should indicate the proposed future use of the development site at the
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





accurate assessment of the potential impacts of the foundations on water quality
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

l/

J O . -l 4

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

Offices in Galway and Dublin M l( o

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

mailto:matthew.craig@2rn.ie
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http://www.mkoireland.ie/

mailto:matthew.craig@2rn.ie

mailto:btaylor@mkoireland.ie

mailto:windfarms@rte.ie

mailto:johnny.evans@2rn.ie

mailto:cjohnson@mkoireland.ie



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
Offices in Galway and Dublin M |< o >
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

AN
Offices in Galway and Dublin M |< o )
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





